
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Amy Dredge 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 863100   Ebost: dredga@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 4 Ebrill 2018 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar 
Dydd Mercher, 11eg Ebrill, 2018 am 2.00 pm. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  
Gall cynghorwyr a'r cyhoedd sy'n dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r 
Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i chi hefyd ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod.  Mae'r ddau gais hyn yn gofyn am 
gyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith, a bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu os gofynnir amdano. 
 
 
 
 

 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

 
1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  

 
 
 
 
 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 

 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
  

 
 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 
a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 
 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar yr 28ain Chwefror 2018.  

1 - 10 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt 
 
4  Cynllun Corfforaethol yn cynnwys Amcanion Lles 2018 - 2023.  

11 - 94 
 

5  Strategaeth Gwent ar gyfer Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Trais Rhywiol a Cham-drin Domestig.  
95 - 150 

 
6  Prosiectau Adfywio yn y Dyfodol - Defnydd y Gronfa Datblygu o Adnoddau'r Gyfarwyddiaeth.  

151 - 154 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 



 

 

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, TREDOMEN 
AR DDYDD MERCHER, 28AIN MAWRTH 2018 AM 2.00 P.M. 

 

 
YN BRESENNOL  

 
Y Cynghorydd D. Poole - Cadeirydd 

 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 
 C. Cuss (Gofal Cymdeithasol a Lles), N. George (Gwasanaethau'r Gymdogaeth), C.J. Gordon 

(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), Mrs B.A. Jones (Cyllid, Perfformiad a Llywodraethu), 
P.A.Marsden (Addysg a Chyflawniad), S. Morgan (Economi, Isadeiledd a Chynaliadwyedd), L. 
Phipps (Cartrefi a Lleoedd) ac E. Stenner (Yr Amgylchedd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd).  

 
 

Ar y cyd gyda: 
 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr Dros Dro), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol), M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Cymunedau), R. 
Hartshorn (Pennaeth Polisi a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd), P. Lewis (Pennaeth TG Dros Dro ac 
Uwch-berchennog Risg Gwybodaeth), L. Donovan (Pennaeth Adnoddau Dynol a Datblygu 
Sefydliadol), S. Harris (Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol Dros Dro), T. Stephens (Rheolwr Rheoli 
Datblygu), K. Cole (Prif Swyddog Addysg), J. Reynolds (Rheolwr Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon a 
Hamdden) J. Jones (Rheolwr Llywodraethu Gwybodaeth Gorfforaethol) ac A. Dredge 
(Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 
 
 

Hefyd yn Bresennol: 
 

 D. Harteveld – Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr - Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg (GCA) 
 
 
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 
 Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan N. Scammell (Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol a Swyddog Adran 151 Dros Dro)  
 
 
2. PROFEDIGAETH – HARRY ANDREWS MBE 
 
            Safodd Aelodau a Swyddogion am funud o dawelwch fel arwydd o barch gan fod cyn-

Arweinydd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, Harry Andrews, wedi marw ddydd Mawrth 27ain 
Mawrth 2018 yn 80 oed. 

 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



3. DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB 
 
 Ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod, datganodd y Cynghorydd C. Gordon ddiddordeb mewn perthynas ag 

eitem agenda 5 - Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith - Ystyriaeth o'r Galwad i Mewn, yng 
nghyd-destun yr Adolygiad Hamdden.  Datganodd y Cynghorwyr L. Phipps a C. J. Cuss 
ddiddordebau mewn perthynas ag eitem agenda 6 - Cynllun Busnes Gwasanaeth 
Cyrhaeddiad Addysg (EAS) 2018-2021. Datganodd y Cynghorwyr C. Gordon a Mrs B.A.  
Jones ddiddordebau mewn perthynas ag eitem agenda 9 - Cronfa Deddf Eglwys Cymru.  Yn 
ystod y cyfarfod, datganodd y Cynghorwyr P. Marsden a L. Phipps ddiddordebau mewn 
perthynas ag eitem agenda 11  - Gwaith Mwynau ac Adfer Tomenni Bedwas a Gynigiwyd.  
Mae manylion ohonynt yn cael eu cofnodi gyda'r eitemau perthnasol. 

 
 
4. COFNODION Y CABINET - 14EG MAWRTH 2018 
 
 Cymeradwywyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 14eg Mawrth 2018. 
 
 
 MATERION SYDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL 
 
 
5. COMISIYNU INTEGREDIG A CHYTUNDEB ADRAN 33 AR GYFER CARTREFI GOFAL I 

BOBL HYN YN RHANBARTH GWENT (CRONFEYDD CYFUN)  
 
 Rhoddodd yr adroddiad ddiweddariad i'r Cabinet ar ddatblygiad trefniadau i gronni arian ar 

gyfer trefniadau cartrefi gofal.  Sefydlu cyllideb gyfun rhanbarthol mewn perthynas ag arfer 
swyddogaethau llety cartrefi gofal (yn yr achos hwn cartrefi gofal i bobl hyn) rhwng Cyngor Sir 
Caerffili ac Awdurdodau Lleol Gwent eraill (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Blaenau Gwent, Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Sir Fynwy, Cyngor Dinas Casnewydd, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Torfaen) a 
Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan (ABUHB).  

 
 Cynghorwyd y Cabinet y bydd sefydlu cytundeb partneriaeth, a elwir yn Gytundeb Adran 33, 

yn galluogi comisiynu integredig a chronfeydd cyfun mewn perthynas ag arfer swyddogaethau 
llety cartrefi gofal.  Mae hwn yn ofyniad Statudol ar Awdurdodau Lleol a Byrddau Iechyd Lleol 
o fewn y Ddeddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) (2014) (SSWBA) sy'n dod i 
rym o fis Ebrill 2018.  Mae partneriaeth a chydweithio yn elfen arwyddocaol o fewn Rhan 9 o'r 
Ddeddf lle nodir dyletswyddau a disgwyliadau o ran gweithio mewn partneriaeth.  Sefydlir y 
Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol (BPR) ar sail statudol ac mae'n cynnwys ABUHB, 5 
Awdurdodau Lleol, 2 Sefydliad Gwasanaeth Gwirfoddol Sirol a chynrychiolwyr y Panel 
Dinasyddion rhanbarthol a Fforwm Darparwyr. 

 
 Esboniwyd bod cwmpas y cytundeb a'r egwyddorion dylunio wedi'u halinio i'r blaenoriaethau 

drafft ar gyfer pobl hŷn yn Asesiad o Anghenion y Boblogaeth a'r cynllun ardal drafft (a 
gymeradwywyd yn ddiweddar gan y Cyngor llawn).  Mae Cytundeb Adran 33 yn ei gwneud yn 
ofynnol sefydlu 'rheolwr cronfa gyfunol' a chadarnhawyd ei fod yn cael ei ystyried ar hyn o 
bryd pa un o'r chwe phartner fydd yn cymryd y rôl hon.  Nododd y Cabinet na fydd y gronfa yn 
rhannu risg ariannol nac yn cyflwyno croes-gymhorthdal posibl rhwng y partneriaid.  Bydd 
angen cymeradwyaeth pellach gan bob parti i'r cytundeb ar gyfer unrhyw newidiadau i'r dull 
hwn. 

 
 Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol am gyflwyno'r adroddiad 

ac am faint o waith y mae wedi'i gyflawni gydag Awdurdodau eraill wrth weithio tuag at y 
cytundeb hwn. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

Page 2



PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog:-  
 
(i) y trefniadau cyllideb cyfun ar gyfer swyddogaethau llety Cartrefi Gofal i'w 

goruchwylio gan y Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol (BPR) ac, yn arbennig, ni 
fydd y gronfa'n rhannu risg ariannol nac yn cyflwyno unrhyw groes-gymhorthdal 
posibl rhwng y partneriaid ; 

 
(ii) bydd angen cymeradwyaeth pellach gan yr holl bartneriaid a chytundeb pellach 

gan y Cabinet ar gyfer unrhyw newidiadau i'r dull hwn, yn cael eu cymeradwyo;  
 
(iii) rhoddir pwerau dirprwyedig i'r Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol a Lles, fel 

Aelod Cyngor Sir Caerffili o'r Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol, wrth arfer y 
swyddogaethau hynny, ac ystyried unrhyw drefniadau penodol sydd angen 
cael eu rhoi ar waith i fodloni dyletswyddau statudol ar lefel leol a rhanbarthol, 
yn cael eu cymeradwyo; 

 
(iv) yr elfennau allweddol gofynnol ar gyfer y trefniadau hyn drwy ddatblygu 

Cytundeb Partneriaeth ffurfiol, e.e. cytundeb Adran 33, yn cael eu cadarnhau; 
 
(v) goblygiadau adnoddau i'r Awdurdod Lleol mewn perthynas â'r trefniadau 

cyllideb cyfun a goruchwylio'r cytundebau cyllideb cyfun gan y Bwrdd 
Partneriaeth Ranbarthol, yn cael eu cadarnhau; 

 
(vi) Prif Gyfreithiwr y Cyngor i ddiwygio Cyfansoddiad y Cynghorau i weithredu'r 

ddirprwyaeth yn 10.3, yn cael ei gytuno. 
 
 
6. CANOLFAN HAMDDEN PONTLLAN-FRAITH - YSTYRIED Y SESIWN GALW I MEWN YNG 

NGHYD-DESTUN YR ADOLYGIAD HAMDDEN 
 
 Datganodd y Cynghorydd C. Gordon ddiddordeb rhagfarnol mewn perthynas â'r eitem hon 

gan ei fod yn Aelod ward a hefyd yn ddefnyddiwr y gwasanaeth.  Gadawodd yr ystafell 
gyfarfod ac ni chymerodd ran yn y ddadl. 

 
 Gwnaeth yr adroddiad ddiweddaru'r Cabinet ar ganlyniad ymgynghoriad ychwanegol a wnaed 

mewn perthynas â chau posib Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith ac i ganfod a oedd y Cabinet 
yn dymuno ailddatgan ei benderfyniad gwreiddiol neu newid ei benderfyniad yn seiliedig ar 
ymgynghoriad ychwanegol.  Ar 13eg Rhagfyr 2017, ystyriodd y Cabinet adroddiad ar ddyfodol 
Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith a chytunodd ar nifer o benderfyniadau gan gynnwys cau 
Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith.  Roedd penderfyniad y Cabinet yn destun sesiwn galw i 
mewn a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Adfywio a'r Amgylchedd ar 18fed Ionawr 2018, lle 
penderfynwyd cyfeirio'r mater yn ôl i'r Cabinet i'w ystyried ymhellach. 

 
 Cyfeiriwyd y Cabinet at baragraff 4.8 yn yr adroddiad lle nodir elfennau'r ymgynghoriad 

gwreiddiol, a chaiff eu dadansoddiad ei gyflwyno yn Atodiad 1 (ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad).  
Cyfeiriwyd hefyd at yr ymatebion a dderbyniwyd gan Gomisiynydd Cymru.  Dywedodd 
Swyddfa'r Comisiynydd Plant nad oedd yn gallu ymateb i ymgynghoriadau mewn perthynas â 
chyllid lleol gan y gallai ymyriadau o'r fath niweidio Statws Annibynnol y Comisiynydd.  
Dywedodd Comisiynydd Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol nad oes ganddynt swyddogaeth 
gwaith achos i roi cymorth i achosion unigol, ond dywedodd wrth y Cyngor i gymhwyso'r 
'Egwyddor Datblygu Cynaliadwy'.  Mae hyn yn cynnwys y pum ffordd o weithio: ystyried y 
tymor hir, helpu i atal problemau rhag digwydd neu waethygu, cymryd ymagwedd integredig a 
chydweithredol, ac ystyried a chynnwys ystod amrywiol o bobl.  Ni dderbyniwyd ymateb gan y 
Comisiynydd Pobl Hŷn.   

 

Page 3



 Cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriad ychwanegol gyda'r Fforwm Ieuenctid (yr ail gyfle) i roi sylwadau ar 
y posibilrwydd o gau Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith.  Derbyniwyd 28 o ymatebion lle'r 
oedd gweithwyr ieuenctid wedi mynychu cyfarfodydd ar draws y Fwrdeistref, a nodwyd eu 
manylion yn atodiad 3 (ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad). 

 
 Yn ychwanegol, dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet, ar 29ain Ionawr 2018, y derbyniwyd llythyr gan 

Chris Evans AS ynghyd ag 84 o ymatebion i'r arolwg.  Yn anffodus, nid oedd yr un o'r 
ymatebion yn cynnwys cyfeiriadau na manylion o gysylltiad yr unigolyn â'r Ganolfan 
Hamdden.  Ar 15fed Chwefror 2018, derbyniodd y Cyngor hysbysiad ffurfiol o lansio 
Adolygiad Barnwrol mewn perthynas â Phenderfyniad y Cabinet a wnaed ar 13eg Rhagfyr 
2017.  Ar hyn o bryd, mae'r Adran Gyfreithiol yn ystyried sail y llythyr a dderbyniwyd gan 
Gyfreithiwr yr Hawlydd. 

 
 Gofynnwyd am eglurhad mewn perthynas â'r atebolrwydd Ardreth Annomestig Genedlaethol 

mewn perthynas â'r Ysgol, gan mai £17,000 yw'r costau blynyddol disgwyliedig ar gyfer y 
Ganolfan Hamdden.  Cadarnhaodd y Swyddogion mai £1 yw'r Ardreth Annomestig 
Genedlaethol am weddill y flwyddyn.  Eglurwyd pe bai'r Ganolfan Hamdden yn cau, ni fyddai'r 
Gymuned yn colli gwasanaethau.  Mae yna gyfleusterau eraill ar gael a byddai'r defnydd yn 
cael ei ledaenu dros Ysgol Gyfun Coed Duon ac Ysgol Uwch Islwyn a chanolfannau hamdden 
eraill yn yr ardal.  O ran y cynaladwyedd hirdymor, cynghorwyd y Cabinet nad yw'r ystâd 
hamdden ar draws yr Awdurdod cyfan yn gynaliadwy oherwydd y toriadau yn y refeniw sydd 
ar gael i'r Awdurdod Lleol.  Mae sicrhau darpariaeth gwasanaethau chwaraeon a hamdden yn 
awr ac yn y dyfodol yn mynnu bod yn rhaid gwneud penderfyniadau anodd sy'n cydbwyso 
ystyriaethau tymor byr yn erbyn cynaladwyedd hirdymor.  Mae'r hinsawdd ariannol yn golygu 
nad yw'n bosibl parhau i roi cymhorthdal i bob safle ac felly mae'n rhaid cymryd 
penderfyniadau nawr i sicrhau gwasanaeth chwaraeon a hamdden ar gyfer cenedlaethau'r 
dyfodol.  Bydd Strategaeth Chwaraeon a Hamdden deng mlynedd yn dod yn ôl i'r Cabinet yn 
nes ymlaen yn 2018 a fydd yn golygu 'cael mwy o bobl, yn fwy egnïol'. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y Swyddog a'r argymhellion a 
nodir isod ym mharagraff 10.1 (iii) a (iv) a 10.2: - 
 
(i) y penderfyniad i ohirio (i gau Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith) a gymerwyd ar 

13eg Rhagfyr 2017 ac ystyried dyfodol Canolfan Hamdden Pontllan-fraith yn 
nes ymlaen yn 2018 unwaith y bydd Strategaeth Chwaraeon a Hamdden 10 
mlynedd yr Awdurdod wedi'i mabwysiadu, yn cael ei gefnogi; 

 
(ii) Swyddogion i ysgrifennu at Gyngor Tref Coed Duon yn unol ag argymhelliad y 

Pwyllgor Craffu; yn cael ei gefnogi 
 
ac   
 
ARGYMHELLWYD i'r Cyngor: - 
 
(i) yr arbedion gohiriedig sy'n gyfanswm o £136 mil fel y manylir ym mharagraff 

7.8 yr adroddiad, sef cefnogaeth iaith mewn Ysgolion Cynradd (swyddi gwag) - 
£66 mil a gostyngiad rhannol yn yr arbedion arfaethedig ar gynnal priffyrdd i'w 
lleihau o £212 mil i £142 mil yn cael ei adfer hyd nes y gwneir penderfyniad 
terfynol ar ddyfodol y Ganolfan.   

 
 
7. CYNLLUN BUSNES GWASANAETH CYFLAWNI ADDYSG (GCA) 2018-2021  
 
 Datganodd y Cynghorwyr L. Phipps a C. J. Cuss ddiddordebau personol mewn perthynas â'r 

eitem hon am eu bod ar Fwrdd y Cyfarwyddwyr ar gyfer y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg.  

Page 4



 
 Gwnaeth yr adroddiad ddiweddaru'r Cabinet ar Gynllun Busnes Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg 

(GCA) 2018-2021 ac Atodiad benodol Caerffili (Ebrill 1af 2018 - Mawrth 31ain 2019).  Mae’n 
ofynnol i GCA gyflwyno eu Cynllun Busnes i Lywodraeth Cymru yn dilyn cymeradwyaeth y 
Cabinet.  Amlinellodd yr adroddiad Gynllun Busnes GCA De Ddwyrain Cymru 2017-2020.  
Mae'r cynllun yn nodi'r blaenoriaethau, y rhaglenni a'r canlyniadau i'w cyflawni gan yr GCA ar 
ran Consortiwm De Ddwyrain Cymru. Mae’r adroddiad hefyd yn canolbwyntio ar ganlyniadau 
disgwyliedig yng Nghaerffili a'r holl raglenni penodol a fydd yn cael eu gweithredu yn ystod 
2017-2018, ac mae'r rhain wedi'u cynnwys yn Atodiad yr Awdurdod Lleol (ALl). 

 
 Cynghorwyd y Cabinet bod ffocws cynyddol yn y cynllun, gan fod y mater hwn wedi cael ei 

godi 12 mis yn ôl.  Cytunwyd ar rai mân newidiadau gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a 
Chyflawniad ers i'r adroddiad gael ei ysgrifennu ac nid oedd unrhyw newidiadau i'r Atodiad.  
Mae'r model cyflwyno ar gyfer y Cynllun Busnes yn rhanbarthol, caiff anghenion pob ysgol a 
thueddiadau yng Nghaerffili eu cwrdd â gwaith pwrpasol gyda phob ysgol.  Mae'r GCA yn 
cynnig ystod eang o gymorth pwrpasol sy'n seiliedig ar arfer gorau ac yn ymrwymedig i 
ddarparu gwasanaeth cadarn a chryf.   

 
 Eglurwyd bod pryderon wedi'u codi'n flaenorol o ran Cyfnodau Allweddol 2 a 3, ac mae'r 

rhagolygon ar gyfer 2019/20 ar ffurf Ddrafft ar hyn o bryd.  Gofynnodd y Cabinet y dylid 
cyflwyno adroddiad pellach ddiwedd mis Gorffennaf 2018, gyda'r rhagamcanion disgwyliedig 
yn hyn o beth. 

 
 Mae'r GCA wedi ymrwymo i gynnig arbedion effeithlonrwydd o 2% ar gyfraniad cyllido craidd y 

llynedd ar gyfer 2018/19 ac effeithlonrwydd dangosol o 2% ar gyfer y 2 flynedd ariannol nesaf.  
Mae'r arbedion hyn wedi'u hystyried yn ofalus yn yr hinsawdd ariannol heriol ar gyfer y GCA a 
Chynghorau.  Mae'n debygol y bydd angen i'r GCA weithredu rhaglen rheoli newid i alluogi 
gosod cyllideb gytbwys ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD yn amodol ar argymhelliad ychwanegol a bod y Gwasanaeth 
Cyflawni Addysg (GCA) yn cyflwyno adroddiad pellach i'r Cabinet ar ddiwedd mis 
Gorffennaf 2018 mewn perthynas ag  ar gyfer Cyfnodau Allweddol 2 a 3, ac am y 
rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 
(i) mae’r blaenoriaethau a gynhwysir o fewn y Cynllun Busnes a’i Atodiad ac 

effaith y cynllun ar Gymunedau o fewn ardal yr Awdurdod Lleol, yn cael eu 
nodi;  

 
(ii) cymeradwyo Cynllun Busnes EAS cyn ei gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru; 
 
(iii) y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg (GCA) i gyflwyno adroddiad pellach i'r Cabinet 

ar ddiwedd mis Gorffennaf 2018 mewn perthynas ag amcanestyniadau yn y 
Cyfnodau Allweddol 2 a 3 yn y dyfodol, yn cael ei gytuno. 

 
 
8. CYHOEDDI DATA AM Y BWLCH CYFLOG RHWNG Y RHYWIAU - RHEOLIADAU DEDDF 

CYDRADDOLDEB 2010 (DYLETSWYDDAU PENODOL AC AWDURDODAU 
CYHOEDDUS) 2017 

 
 Gofynnodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i gyhoeddi Datganiad ysgrifenedig yr 

Awdurdod am y Blwch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau.  O dan Reoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 
(Dyletswyddau Penodol ac Awdurdodau Cyhoeddus) 2017, mae'n ofynnol i bob sefydliad a 
restrir yn Atodlen 2 i'r rheoliadau sy'n cyflogi dros 250 o weithwyr adrodd yn flynyddol ar eu 
Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau o 2017. 

 

Page 5



 Cynghorwyd y Cabinet bod y darpariaethau o dan y Rheoliadau hyn yn berthnasol yn unig i 
gyflogeion a benodir ac a reolir yn uniongyrchol gan y Cyngor.  Felly, nid oes angen cynnwys 
gweithwyr sy'n cael eu penodi a'u rheoli gan Benaethiaid ysgol/Cyrff Llywodraethu o fewn 
cwmpas Data y Cyngor am y Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau.  Mae hyn yn adlewyrchu'r 
sefyllfa deddfwriaeth cyflogaeth unigryw lle mae pob gweithiwr ysgol yn cael ei gyflogi gan yr 
awdurdod lleol, ond mae Penaethiaid / Cyrff Llywodraethu'n cyflawni penderfyniadau ynghylch 
penodi a rheoli gweithwyr o'r fath yn bennaf, fel sy'n briodol.  Ni fydd yn ofynnol i Ysgolion 
Caerffili gyhoeddi ac adrodd ar eu ffigurau penodol eu hunain gan nad oes Ysgol sy'n cyflogi 
mwy na 250 o staff. 

 
 Eglurwyd bod angen cyhoeddi data'r Cyngor am y Blwch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau ar wefan y 

Cyngor a gwefan y Llywodraeth erbyn 30ain Mawrth bob blwyddyn.  Rhaid i'r data gynnwys y 
tâl fesul awr, fel ffigwr cymedrig (yn nodi'r gwahaniaeth rhwng cyfartaledd cyflogau dynion a 
menywod), a'r ffigur canolrifol (yn nodi'r gwahaniaeth rhwng y canolbwyntiau yn ystod tâl 
dynion a menywod).  Anogir cyflogwyr i gynhyrchu datganiad ysgrifenedig sy'n egluro'r data.  
Mae'r Rheoliadau bellach yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor gyhoeddi cymedr a chanolrif y 
bwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau sy'n ymwneud â thal bonws.  Nid yw'r Cyngor yn cynnig 
cynlluniau cymhelliant gwaith ar dasg neu bonws. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, i gyhoeddi'r 
Datganiad ysgrifenedig sy'n manylu'r data am y Blwch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau ar 
wefan y Cyngor a gwefan y Llywodraeth gan ddefnyddio gwasanaeth adrodd y Blwch 
Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau. 

 
 
9. DIWYGIO DIOGELU DATA - DIWEDDARIADAU I BOLISÏAU CRAIDD 
 
 Gofynnodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i fabwysiadu'r fersiynau diwygiedig o 

bedair polisi llywodraethu/diogelu gwybodaeth craidd.  Mae angen y diweddariadau i gwrdd â 
gofynion y Rheoliad Diogelu Data Cyffredinol newydd, sy'n adlewyrchu arfer gorau'r diwydiant 
ac yn sail i ddarpariaethau diogelwch gwybodaeth y Cyngor. 

 
 Cynghorwyd y Cabinet y bydd y Rheoliad Diogelu Data Cyffredinol yn uniongyrchol berthnasol 

yn y DU o 25ain Mai 2018.  Mae Mesur Diogelu Data yn mynd rhagddo drwy'r Senedd ar hyn 
o bryd, sy'n sicrhau nid yn unig cydymffurfiad y DU â gofynion y Rheoliad Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol ond hefyd Cyfarwyddeb newydd Gorfodi Cyfraith yr UE, agweddau ar y Ddeddf 
Economi Ddigidol ac ystyriaethau diogelwch cenedlaethol.  Nododd y Cabinet ym mis Hydref 
2017, bydd mwy o ofyniad am atebolrwydd a "Preifatrwydd drwy Ddylunio", mwy o hawliau ar 
gyfer pynciau data, gan gynnwys hawliau i wybod beth fydd y Cyngor yn ei wneud gyda'u data 
a chyflwyno adroddiadau torri gorfodol o fewn 72 awr. Bydd y gosb ariannol uchaf am dorri'r 
Ddeddf Diogelu Data a osodir ar hyn o bryd yn £500,000 yn cynyddu i gyfwerth â €20 miliwn 
neu 4% o drosiant blynyddol byd-eang o dan y Rheoliad Diogelu Data Cyffredinol.  

 
 Daw'r Rheoliad Diogelu Data Cyffredinol ar adeg heriol pan fo'n rhaid i wasanaethau leihau, 

sy'n gofyn am ffyrdd mwy effeithlon o weithio a chydweithio â sefydliadau eraill.  Mae 
rheolaethau llywodraethu gwybodaeth effeithiol i leihau risg i ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth ac i'r 
Cyngor yn hanfodol i'r broses hon. Mae hyn yn gyfle i wneud defnydd gwell o holl asedau 
gwybodaeth y Cyngor, nid yn unig y rhai sy'n cynnwys gwybodaeth bersonol, i gynorthwyo'r 
broses o ddarparu gwasanaethau ac arbed costau, yn ogystal â mynd i'r afael â gofynion 
cynyddol ceisiadau a wneir o dan Ddeddf Rhyddid Gwybodaeth a deddfwriaeth hawliau 
gwybodaeth cysylltiedig  

 
 Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Rheolwr Llywodraethu Gwybodaeth Corfforaethol am ei gwaith caled 

a'i chefnogaeth gyda'r hyfforddiant diweddar a wnaed gyda staff ar draws yr Awdurdod. 
 

Page 6



 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, 
mabwysiadu'r fersiynau diwygiedig o bedair Polisïau Llywodraethu/Diogelu 
Gwybodaeth Craidd, yn cael eu cymeradwyo. 

 
 
10. CRONFA DEDDF EGLWYSI CYMRU 
 
 Datganodd y cynghorwyr C. Gordon a Mrs B.A.  Jones ddiddordebau rhagfarnol mewn 

perthynas â'r eitem hon gan eu bod yn Aelodau o Gronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru.  Gadawsant 
yr ystafell gyfarfod ac ni chymerasant ran yn y ddadl. 

 
 Gofynnodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i'r argymhellion a gefnogir gan y 

Grantiau i Banel y Sector Gwirfoddol (y Panel) ar yr 17eg o Ionawr, 2018. 
 
 Dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet fod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn derbyn dyraniad blynyddol 

o oddeutu £62 mil gan Gyngor Sir Fynwy ac oherwydd na chafodd y dyraniad hwn ei wario'n 
llawn yn y blynyddoedd blaenorol, rhagwelir y bydd gweddill o £263 mil yn cael ei 
drosglwyddo i flwyddyn ariannol 2018/19.    

 
 Mewn cyfarfodydd blaenorol o'r Panel, penderfynwyd y byddai'r meini prawf canlynol yn 

berthnasol ar gyfer CBS Caerffili wrth ystyried ceisiadau am gymorth gan Gronfa Deddf 
Eglwysi Cymru: - 

 
(i) Rhoi grant am ddim mwy na £2,000 i brosiectau sy’n cael eu hariannu yn rhannol o 

£6,000 a throsodd. 
 
(ii) Prosiectau llai na £6,000 yn cael cymorth grant hyd at draean o'r cyfanswm cost. 
 
(iii) Yr holl sefydliadau sy'n derbyn grantiau'n cynhyrchu'r cofnodion ariannol angenrheidiol 

i ddangos y gwariant a gafwyd. 
 
(iv) Ni chaniateir i unrhyw sefydliad ymgeisio mewn blynyddoedd olynol. 

 
 Yn ei gyfarfod ar 13eg Gorffennaf 2009, cytunodd y Panel y byddai Swyddogion, yn y dyfodol, 

yn cymeradwyo ceisiadau grant sy'n cwrdd â meini prawf Cronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru, gan 
ddefnyddio pwerau dirprwyedig.  Byddai'r penderfyniadau fel hyn yn cael eu hadrodd i'r Panel 
er gwybodaeth, lle gallai Aelodau ofyn am ragor o wybodaeth os oes angen.   

 
 Mae'r Panel wedi mynegi pryderon am beth amser ynghylch y lefel uchel o falansau sy'n cael 

eu cario ymlaen ar gyfer Cronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru.  O ganlyniad, yn ei gyfarfod anffurfiol 
ar 17eg Ionawr 2018 cyflwynwyd 5 opsiwn i'r Panel mewn perthynas â lefel y grantiau a 
ddyfarnir gan Gronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru. Roedd manylion amdanynt wedi'u nodi yn atodiad 
A (ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad).  Ar ôl ystyried yr opsiynau, dewis ddull y Panel oedd Dewis 4 - 
Ceisiadau am hyd at £5,000 i gael eu hariannu'n llawn gyda cheisiadau dros £5,000 i fod yn 
ddarostyngedig i gyfradd grant o 75% ar y swm sy'n fwy na £5,000 e.e. byddai cais sy'n gofyn 
am £8,000 a sy'n bodloni'r meini prawf yn derbyn £7,250 (£5,000 ynghyd â 75% o £3,000). 
Gyda chytundeb grant uchaf sy'n daladwy o £10,000.   

 
 Ystyriodd y Cabinet yr opsiynau a gyflwynwyd a gofynnodd am argymhelliad ychwanegol y 

byddai'r gronfa hon yn cael ei hysbysebu'n eang. 
 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD cytuno â'r argymhellion yn 1.9.1 i 1.9.4 gydag argymhellion pellach 

Page 7



i gynnwys uchafswm grant sydd ar gael o £10,000 a bydd Swyddogion yn rhoi 
cyhoeddusrwydd eang i Gronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru a'r manteision sydd ar gael, ac 
am y rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y Swyddog 
 
(i) cefnogi argymhelliad y Grantiau i  Banel y Sector Gwirfoddol y dylid gweithredu 

Opsiwn 4 o 1af Ebrill 2018, yn y ceisiadau hynny am hyd at £5,000 i gael eu 
hariannu'n llawn gyda cheisiadau uwchlaw £5,000 i fod yn ddarostyngedig i 
gyfradd grant o 75% ar y swm sy'n fwy na £5,000 e.e. byddai cais sy'n gofyn 
am £8,000 a sy'n bodloni'r meini prawf yn derbyn £7,250 (£5,000 ynghyd â 
75% o £3,000).  Gyda chytundeb grant uchaf sy'n daladwy o £10,000, yn cael 
ei gytuno; 

 

(ii) dylid cyfyngu grantiau i fudiadau cymunedol a phrosiectau cymunedol yn y lle 
cyntaf ac y dylid adolygu'r sefyllfa hon ymhen 12 mis, yn cael eu cytuno; 

 

(iii) dyfarniadau grant sy'n bodloni'r meini prawf y cytunwyd arnynt yn parhau i gael 
eu cymeradwyo gan y Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol gan ddefnyddio pwerau 
dirprwyedig, yn cael eu nodi ; 

 

(iv) Bydd swyddogion yn cynnal adolygiad o'r broses ymgeisio i hwyluso taliadau 
lle bynnag y bo modd, yn cael ei nodi; 

 

(v) Bydd swyddogion yn rhoi cyhoeddusrwydd eang i Gronfa Deddf Eglwysi Cymru 
a'r manteision sydd ar gael. 

 
 

11. MATER EITHRIEDIG  
 

 Ystyriodd yr Aelodau dystysgrif prawf budd y cyhoedd gan y Swyddog Priodol a daethant i'r 
casgliad bod ar gyfartaledd y budd i'r cyhoedd o gynnal yr eithriad yn bwysicach na'r budd i'r 
cyhoedd o ddatgelu'r wybodaeth.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 

PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol ag Adran 100A (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, bod y 
cyhoedd yn cael ei wahardd o weddill y cyfarfod oherwydd y byddai'n debygol y 
datgelir gwybodaeth eithriedig iddynt fel y nodwyd ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o 
Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 
 

12. GWAITH MWYNAU AC ADFER TOMENNI BEDWAS A GYNIGIWYD  
 

 Datganodd Cynghorwyr P. Marsden a L. Phipps ddiddordebau rhagfarnol mewn perthynas â'r 
eitem hon gan eu bod yn Aelodau'r Ward. Gadawsant y cyfarfod ac ni chymerasant ran yn y 
ddadl. 

 

 Gofynnodd yr adroddiad am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar gyfer gwaith mwynau ac adfer 
tomenni Bedwas arfaethedig. 

 

 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 

 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y 
Swyddog, yr argymhelliad  a gynhwysir ym mharagraf 10.1. 

 
 

 Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 3.35pm. 
 
 

 Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y 
cyfarfod a gynhalir ar 11eg Ebrill, 2018. 

 

Page 8



 

__________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 9



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10



 
 

 

CABINET 11TH APRIL 2018 
 

 
SUBJECT: CORPORATE PLAN INCLUDING WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES      

2018 - 2023  
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present to Cabinet the local authority’s Corporate Plan (the Plan) with Well-being 

Objectives for 2018 - 2023 and to seek the views and approval of Cabinet prior to its 
presentation to Council on 17th April 2018. 

 
1.2 The Local Government Measure 2009 requires all local authorities in Wales to set and publish 

a set of priorities called Improvement Objectives as soon as is ‘practicably possible’ in the 
new financial year. However, the introduction of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 (WBFGA) also places a legal requirement for ‘public bodies’ to set and publish    
Well-being Objectives.     

 
1.3 As there is a cross over between the two pieces of legislation, authorities are treating the two 

requirements as one outcome, to publish one set of Well-being Objectives, the Wales Audit 
Office and Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) have endorsed this approach.  

    
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Plan introduces the local authority’s new set of Well-being Objectives to run for five years; 

2018-2023.  The WBFGA statutory guidance states that “public bodies may decide they want 
to change one or more of their well-being objectives. There is no deadline or fixed point in time 
where this should happen”.  However we would aim to review them on a yearly basis in line 
with reporting progress on performance of the Objectives to the public.  

 
     
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Council’s Well-being Objectives contribute to Public Services Board (PSB) Well-being 

Plan and all of the Well-being Goals in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015:  

   
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
• A globally responsible Wales 

 
 

Page 11

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



 
4.0 THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The WBFGA came into effect in April 2016 and required public bodies to publish their       

Well-being Objectives by 31st March 2017.  This presented conflicting timing requirements, 
due to the local government elections in May 2017 and the Public Services Board’s (PSB) 
Well-being Plan not due to be finalised until May 2018.  The advice received from the Welsh 
Local Government Association and the Wales Audit Office was to set objectives prior to 31st 
March 2017 to meet the legislation, and then review them after local elections.  This would 
also take into account any emerging priorities from the PSB Well-being Assessment.  

 
4.2  Therefore officers have reviewed the 2017/18 objectives and began by assessing the 

feedback from citizens that arose from the PSB Well-being Assessment. This was an 
extensive engagement process and included analysing both data and qualitative information 
to arrive at areas that citizens thought were important.  Areas of concern were around jobs 
and having the right skills or transport connections to get a job, education for young people 
but in a broader sense of helping provide life opportunities such as skills into employment, 
travel and to be able to afford a home. There were wide ranging areas around health also. 
Some areas of concern were not within the authority’s area of influence such as improved 
access to GPs, whilst other areas such as volunteering and apprenticeships required a 
collaborative response and are being addressed by the PSB Well-being Plan, “The Caerphilly 
We Want”.  
      

4.3 It is proposed that Objectives are set over a five year period. Setting the Objectives over a 
longer period has some real benefits. A yearly cycle is quite short and if done correctly can be 
a time consuming process.  By the time the Objectives are consulted on, reviewed and set it is 
nearly time to reset them again. A five year cycle also allows for greater consideration of what 
is needed with more time to take action and to evaluate their successes.  This is also in 
keeping with the requirement of the five ways of working (long term impacts) and also aligns 
with the medium term financial plan and the life of an administration.  The draft Corporate 
Plan 2018-23 replaces the previous Corporate Plan 2016/17 and Well-being Objectives 
2017/18. 

 
4.4  The Well-being Objectives proposed for 2018-2023 included in the Plan are:   
  

Objective  Outcomes  

1. Improve education 
opportunities for all 

 Aim to reduce the impact of poverty within early years.  
 

 Raise standards of attainment.  
 

 Reduce impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational 
and non-vocational qualifications to provide equality of 
opportunity. 

 

 Help those who are not able to follow a traditional 
attainment path. 

 

 Support learning that enables young and adult employment 

opportunities including a focus on ‘future skills’ 

 Improve ‘Digital Skills’ for all ages.  
 

 Improve the learning environment. 
 

 Safeguard all children and young people in order to create 
a climate for learning, particularly for those most 

vulnerable. 
 

Page 12



2. Enabling employment  Aim to reduce the impact of poverty by supporting people 
into better employment prospects.  

 

 Meet the targets of the European Social Fund programmes 
of getting people skilled and into work. 

 

 The Council will use the value of its third party spend to 
bring greater social and economic regeneration to the 
communities we serve. 

 

 Use investment in the housing stock to increase the 
number of skilled, qualified workers and tackle 
worklessness by providing apprenticeship, training and 
work placements with our in-house workforce and building 
contractors. 

 

 Ensuring local delivery of work programmes aligns and 
maximises opportunities from the Cardiff Capital Region 
‘City Deal’. 

 

3. Address the 
availability, condition 
and sustainability of 
homes throughout the 
county borough and 
provide advice, 
assistance or support 
to help improve 
people’s well-being 

 All council housing is improved to meet the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard by 2020. 

 

 Provide support to improve housing conditions in the 
owner-occupied sector.  

 

 Increase the provision of new, affordable, social housing 
that meet the ‘Lifetime Homes’ principles and identified 
needs, whilst supporting the governments’ innovative 
housing programme. 

 

 Deliver adaptations to support the health and well-being of 
people in their homes and maximise the delivery and 
appropriate use of accessible homes. 

 

 Increase the supply of housing by supporting opportunities 
to bring long-term, empty homes back into use.  

 

 Promote the development of a healthy and vibrant private 
rented sector as a viable housing option. 

 

 Prevent homelessness and tackle rough sleeping. 
 

 Prevent tenancies from failing by providing a range of 
housing related support (including those affected by 
financial hardship, mental health issues or physical 
disabilities). 

 

 Help reduce fuel poverty by making homes more energy 
efficient and providing people with advice on how best to 
heat their homes. 

4. Promote a modern, 
integrated and 
sustainable transport 
system that increases 
opportunity, promotes 
prosperity and 
minimises the 

 Work with the delivery of the South East Wales Metro, 
aiming for the Valley Lines Electrification programme as 
part of the delivery of the wider South East Wales Metro 
scheme 

 

 Develop the CCBC Regeneration Strategy and Delivery 
Plan with connectivity at its heart, promoting accessibility, 

Page 13



adverse impacts on 
the environment 

the Metro and digital and Broadband improvements that 
support innovation and improves accessibility for all.  

 

 Promote the reinstatement of passenger services to the 
Nelson to Ystrad rail line under the Metro programme 

 

 Promote the reinstatement of the Caerphilly to Newport rail 
line as part of the Metro programme. 

 

 Promote a sustainable bus network that supports 
accessibility and connectivity both locally and regionally 
through a road network that encourages efficient bus 
operation. 

 

 Maximise transport connectivity within and between modes 
by integrating the delivery of the CCB Active Travel Plan 
with the Metro to improve bus, rail, walking and cycling 
provision to increase accessibility and add value to the 
Metro proposals. 

5. Creating a county 
borough that supports 
a healthy lifestyle 

 

 Aim to reduce inequalities in health across the county 
borough. 

 

 Creating a place that supports a healthy lifestyle 
Including: 
 Contributing towards the Welsh Government target to 

reduce smoking prevalence rates to 16% by 2020  
 Reducing the overweight and obesity rates in children  

 Understand and address what helps to encourage people 
to become more physically active  

6. Support citizens to 
remain independent 
and improve their 
well-being 

 Support people to ‘help themselves’ by providing 
comprehensive advice and information including signposting 
to other services. 

 

 Have ‘meaningful conversations’ to help people identify 
‘what matters’ to them to inform ‘outcome focused’ planning.  

 

 Provide support to reduce the need for higher tier statutory 
interventions. 

 

 Identify and support carers. 
 

 Improve the recruitment of foster carers and Shared Lives 
carers. 

 

 Continue to identify opportunities to work collaboratively 
wherever appropriate. 

 
4.5  The WBFGA legislation states that when public bodies produce their Well-being Objectives 

they must explain the following: 
 

 Why the public body considers that its well-being objectives will contribute to the 

achievement of the well-being goals; 

 Why the public body considers that its well-being objectives have been set in 

accordance with the sustainable development principle (the five ways of working);  

 The steps to be taken to meet the well-being objectives in accordance with the 

sustainable development principle; 

 How each public body will govern itself to meet its well-being objectives; 

Page 14



 How each public body will keep the steps it takes to meet its well-being objectives 

under review; 

 How each public body will ensure that resources, including financial, are allocated 

annually for the purpose of taking steps to meet its objectives; 

 When each public body expects to meet its well-being objectives; 

 Any other relevant information about their well-being objectives that they consider 

relevant. 

 

Therefore the Plan provides narrative under each of these headings. 

 

4.6 Setting objectives is not new to the authority.  Priorities and objectives have been set for many 
years.  However the intent of the legislation has changed to place more of an emphasis on 
getting real knowledge to understand cause and effect in order to put in place the right 
solutions.  With that in mind, the Corporate Plan with the Well-being Objectives (2018-2023) 
aims to be realistic in delivery yet provide greater aspiration, to be alive to innovation and new 
technologies and take a more forward and longer term thinking approach. The publication has 
a greater emphasis on making better connections in both understanding the issues and in 
collaborating with those who can help us achieve our objectives.  In particular, we show strong 
connections and commitment to the Cardiff Capital Region and the City Deal and how these 
innovative and emerging activities can help over the long term, and improve the well-being 
and quality of life for our citizens.  

 
4.8 The Corporate Plan also introduces 7 Cabinet ‘Commitments’.  The Cabinet carried out 

considerable work to agree a set of principles and values as to how the Executive wants to 
carry out its business. The Plan introduces the commitments, as shown on page 3 on 
Appendix 1.   

 
4.9 The Council has also reviewed its principles for helping to guide financial management and 

decisions and the new ‘Medium Term Financial Plan Principles’ are shown on page 4 of 
Appendix 1. 
 

 
5.0 WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
 
5.1 The proposed Well-being Objectives are integrated across the Well-being Goals as set out in 

para 3.1. Each objective explains how it was set within the sustainable development principle 
in the WBFGA and how it focuses on long term solutions with an emphasis on prevention and 
shows how it takes a longer term approach.  Changing the time frame of the objectives to a 
five year plan is part of the longer term alignment to other business processes.  

 
 
6.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified; therefore a full EIA has not been carried out. The 
Well-being Objectives however will benefit different groups of citizens if achieved and each 
objective is assessed against its contribution to the national goals, which includes ‘A More 
Equal Wales’.   

 
 
7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications at this time, but the Well-being Statement must 

explain how the Council will ensure that resources, including financial, are allocated annually 
for the purpose of taking steps to meet its objectives. 

Page 15



 
 
8.0 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications from this report. 
 
 
9.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received are 

reflected in this report. 
 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Cabinet provide any views and endorse the proposal to present the draft Corporate Plan 

with Well-being Objectives to Council for approval on June 2018.   
 
 
11.0 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 For the reasons set out in the report, Cabinet endorse the Corporate Plan and Well-being 

Objectives in meeting our statutory duty of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 and the Local Government Measure 2009 

 
12.0 STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 & Local Government Measure 2009. 
 
 
Author:   Ros Roberts, Corporate Performance Manager, roberr@caerphilly.gov.uk 
  
 

Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive   
Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services   

 Steve Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance  
 Mark.S.Williams, Interim Head of Communities Directorate   

Cllr Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader/Cabinet Member for Finance Performance and 
Governance 
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer  
Gareth Jenkins, Assistant Director, Children’s Services 
Jo Williams, Assistant Director, Adults Services 
Sue Richards, Interim Head of Education Service, Education Planning and Strategy  

 Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer  
 Rhian Kyte, Team Leader, Strategic Planning 
 Mark Jennings, Housing Officer 

Rob Hartshorn, Head of Policy and Public Protection  
Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Equalities Officer, Equalities 
Paul Cooke, Senior Policy Officer   
Shaun Watkins, Principal Personnel Officer, Social Services 
Dave Roberts, Principal Finance Officer  
Lisa Lane Corporate Solicitor 
 

Appendix 1: Corporate Plan and Well-being Objectives 2018-2023  
 
Background papers: Report to Council 7th June 2016 ‘Caerphilly County Borough Council, draft 
2017/17 Corporate Plan (Well-being Objectives)’; 
Report to Council 7th March 2017 ‘Well-being Objectives’. 

Page 16

mailto:roberr@caerphilly.gov.uk


 

 

 

Version 9 

Draft - to be approved by Cabinet 11 April 2018 and endorsed by Council 17th April 2018 

 

 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Corporate Plan          
2018-2023 

Including Well-being Objectives 

Page 17



1 
 

 

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 

Sections  Content  Page 
Number  

Intro Introduction from the Leader   
 

2 

1 Our Cabinet Commitments  
 

3 

2 Medium Term Financial Principles 2018   
 

4 

3 How our plans fit together – the ‘Framework’ 
 

5 

4 Details of the Framework  
 

6-8 

5 Summary of Well-being Objectives 2018-2023 
 

9 

5.1 Well-being Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 
 

10-22 

5.2 Well-being Objective 2 – Enabling employment  
 

23-33 

5.3 Well-being Objective 3 – Address the supply, condition and 
sustainability of homes throughout the county borough and 
provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s 
health and well-being 
 

34-46 

5.4 Well-being Objective 4 – Promote a modern, integrated and 
sustainable transport system that increases opportunity, 
promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the 
environment  
 

47-54 

5.5 Well-being Objective 5 – Create a county borough that supports 
a healthy lifestyle 
 

55-67 

5.6 Well-being Objective 6 – Support citizens to remain independent 
and improve their well-being  
 

68-74 

6 Reviewing our Objectives  
 

75 

7 The seven Well-being goals for Wales 
 

76 

8 Contact us  
 

77 

 

 

Page 18



2 
 

 
Foreword from the Leader of Council - Cllr David Poole 

 
Caerphilly County Borough Council has embarked upon an exciting but challenging journey of 

improvement and change.  

As Leader of the Council it is my responsibility to ensure the organisation is capable of rising 

to these challenges and is prepared to respond effectively and efficiently. In order to achieve 

this it is clear that we will need to do things differently and we must be willing to adapt and 

respond to change.  

This Council wants to ensure our communities remain sustainable during these challenging 

times. We need to ensure we are equipped to deliver effective and purposeful services to our 

communities and where we are not best placed to deliver them directly; we enable others to 

do so on our behalf. We are acutely aware of the declining line on our budget sheet over the 

next few years and this, balanced against increasing pressures in areas such as social care, 

can; if not approached with a methodical and innovative mind-set, create the “perfect storm”.  

Working closely with my Cabinet colleagues we are collectively focussed upon bringing a new 

sense of purpose and direction to the organisation.  

Within this Corporate Plan, we have defined an over-arching vision, supported with clear 

objectives and priorities, so that everyone is clear about the direction of travel and what we 

are aiming to achieve and most importantly, the role that each and everyone of us has to play 

in shaping it 

The Well-being Objectives are a critical part of this process as they will help us shape services, 

target our resources and prioritise our efforts over the next 5 years. 

All this is set against the wider regional context of change which is rapidly moving ahead – 

particularly in terms of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal. This £1.2billion programme will 

bring new jobs, opportunities and economic growth to South East Wales and we are one of 10 

councils in the region which lead this exciting new partnership. 

It goes without saying that I am determined to make sure that all our communities across  the  

county borough reap the full benefits from this deal, thereby ensuring that the county 

borough remains a place of choice, to live, work and enjoy.        

I hope you find this document useful and it provides you with an insight into the journey that 

lies ahead and our ambition to shape it, as we aim to not only survive these challenging times, 

but thrive within them! 

 

Cllr Dave Poole 

Page 19



3 
 

 

1. Our Cabinet   

 

Introducing our Cabinet from left to right: Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cllr Nigel George, Cllr Barbara 
Jones, Cllr Carl Cuss, Leader Cllr David Poole, Cllr Colin Gordon, Cllr Sean Morgan, Cllr Lisa 
Phipps, Cllr Philippa Marsden. 

 

Our Cabinet Commitments  

The Leader of Council and his Cabinet have agreed seven Key Commitments which underpin 

the overarching vision and priorities of Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC): They are: 

1. We will always do our best to protect jobs and services within the current challenging 

financial climate. 

2. We will build on CCBC’s reputation as an innovative, high performing local authority. 

3. We will ensure we have an engaged and motivated workforce. 

4. We will always strive to ensure CCBC delivers value for money in everything it does. 

5. We will help protect the most vulnerable people in our society and make safeguarding a 

key priority. 

6. We will always welcome feedback and consider the views of residents, staff and other key 

stakeholders. 

7. We will be open, honest & transparent in everything we do. 

These will be our guiding principles in all that we do. 

 

Page 20



4 
 

 

2. Our Medium Term Financial Plan Principles 2018 

Over the course of the last four years we set principles that would guide our financial decision 

making. As part of the challenging environment we still find ourselves in we thought it was a 

good time to review our financial principles in line with our new Cabinet commitments and 

the Councils values and vision. 

Following that review we have revised our Medium Term Financial Principles and they are set 

out below:  

 We will seek to protect services for the most vulnerable whilst continuing to evaluate 

all other services. 

 We will limit the impact of cuts on front-line services where we can whilst continuing 

to reduce expenditure and explore opportunities to generate new sources of income. 

 

 We will adopt a longer-term approach to financial planning that considers the impact 
on future generations. 

 

 We will need to accept that we will not be able to maintain existing levels of service 
but will introduce more innovative ways of working through the use of emerging 
technologies. 

 

 We will engage with our communities to understand their needs and explore options 
to deliver some services through collaboration, partnerships, community trusts etc. to 
ensure that communities remain resilient and sustainable in the longer-term. 

 

These principles will help to steer our financial decision making during the next few years and 

will be routinely reviewed to ensure they stay relevant for the coming years. 

Although this is a five year Plan, the Resources Section within each objective may be subject 

to changes beyond our control.  We will keep these under review and update the public as 

part of our public performance reporting.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



5 
 

 

3. How our Plans fit together   

As a large organisation different aspects of our planning and frameworks can seem complex 

and it can be difficult to see how different activities come together or contribute to one 

another. The diagram below shows how our activities such as our planning – what we want to 

do, and our values – how we want to do something; all contribute towards the end goal and 

to the delivery of the Well-being Objectives. There is no one section more important than the 

other, the values and behaviours wrap around all we do. There is further detail on the next 

page to explain the various elements:  

 

Planning and Improvement Framework 2018-2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Our Vision                    

and                              

Values 

Public Services 

Board          

Well-being               

Plan 

Our BIP 

Programmes 

Leadership, 

Engagement & 

Service 

Improvement 

Our People            

Personal           

Development       

Reviews 

Our Cabinet 

Commitments 

Our Priorities 

Corporate Plan 

with Well-being 

Objectives 

Our Planning 

Service Evaluation 

and Planning for 

Delivery 

Our Resources 

Medium Term 

Financial Principles 

and Plan 

Page 22



6 
 

 
Describing the Framework 

 
1. Our Cabinet Commitments  
 
The political leadership of the Council are called the Cabinet and they have carried out work to 
decide on a set of commitments they want to make to the public and to staff.  These are the 
standards you can expect from our leaders and how they want to be held to account.  These are 
shown in the diagram as wrapping around all that we do and the way in which we will conduct 
business. 

2. Vision and Values  

This is the vision for the Council that we as an organisation want to aspire too and the values 
that we want to jointly share and build upon. In brief the vision is what we want to achieve 
and the values are how we would go about doing it.  It is important to have both as there are 
many ways to realise a vision but it must be done in the right way. Our vision and values are 
being formed and will be consulted on with staff as it is critical that values belong to all and 
are not led from the top down.  The only way to ensure this is in full consultation with our 
staff. When they are set we will publish them in our annual performance report. 

3. Medium Term Financial Principles  

These are the principles we will use to help make decisions with financial implications.  As the 
financial situation becomes more difficult, the principles will guide us (page 5) and we will use 
them in making decisions. For example one of our principles is to “limit the impact of cuts on 
front-line services where we can whilst continuing to reduce expenditure and explore 
opportunities to generate new sources of income”.  Any decisions will look at this in the first 
instance and not ‘simply cut’ but to take a more considered approach in finding other ways to 
do something.  This will go hand in hand with the sustainable development principles of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

4. Business Improvement Portfolio Board  

We (Local Government) are at a crossroads. The reduction in funding during the austerity 
programme over the next five years is widely felt to be more than just a reduction in budgets: 
it is a ‘tipping point’ where we have to fundamentally redefine what we do; what services we 
provide and how we provide them. It will require a new relationship and understanding with 
our communities as to why we exist and what our residents can expect. To cope with this 
challenge we need to have a clear picture of where we are going and how we are going to get 
there - not one that is simply swept along by events.  Therefore we created a ‘Business 
Improvement Portfolio’ (BIP) Board to lead a portfolio of change across the organisation to 
transform a range of areas.   The Authority has already made considerable savings totalling 

Page 23



7 
 

£82.17m, however it has been estimated in a recent Cabinet report that further savings 
requirements of circa £34m will be needed over the next 3 years (19/20, 20/21 and 21/22) in 
order to deliver a balanced budget.  As such, the BIP programme will help with the process of 
delivering a balanced budget by ensuring that services are delivered as efficiently and 
effectively as possible and also to ensure that services are redesigned, where necessary, and 
‘future proofed’ to meet the demands and expectations of our communities.  There are three 
specific programmes that form the BIP noted below: 

Improving Leadership - The local government landscape is changing and managers are going 
to have to manage in a different context than they have been used to. This will involve 
working more closely with partners and with communities and this will require us to consider 
new options as to how we provide services. This programme will identify the core 
management competencies required by our managers, at all levels, and ensure that we have 
an adequate range of support for managers to help them develop their skills in these areas.  
We will have fewer staff so we will need more flexibility in roles and responsibilities.  

Improving engagement – We value the workforce and know the importance of effective 
engagement and internal communications. In the wider context, Local Government is 
changing so in order to secure its ongoing success, it is important that we work to improve 
current workforce practices, and where necessary, develop new ways of working. To be 
successful, requires the commitment and engagement of our entire workforce because 
engaged employees perform better.  They know better than anyone where we can eradicate 
unnecessary waste and become more efficient.  This will require improved communication 
and engagement across the whole organisation to ensure that appropriate communication 
channels are in place for feedback and suggestions to reach the right people at the right time.   

Improving Services – if the other two programmes are about getting the foundations right 
these programmes are about making a difference with challenges in some areas that are quite 
significant.  Initially this began with the identification and introduction of a series of projects.  
The intention of the programme was to bring structure to the work already underway in a 
number of areas. Following a review we themed the projects into the following areas   

 Digital Theme – Digital Strategy; Customer Service Review, and Agile Working. 
 Collaboration Theme – I.T. Collaboration. 
 Alternative Service Delivery Theme – Tourism Facilities. 
 Major Projects Theme – Band A 21st Century Schools; Band B 21st Century Schools; 

WHQS Delivery; Post 16 Education; Library Review; Youth Service Review; Children’s 
Centre; Leisure Review; Waste Review, Community Centres Review, Street Lighting, and 
Civil Parking Enforcement. 

 Income Generation – projects to be finalised.  
 Green Energy/Carbon Reduction – projects to be finalised. 

The BIP is a long term strategic programme that will run over a number of years and we will 
tell you about our successes and areas for improvement with these projects through our 
annual performance reports.  

 

 

 

Page 24



8 
 

 

5. Service Planning and Staff Development  

We have a process of evaluating our services to learn what is working well and what needs to 

improve.  This process of ‘learning’ means we can take a position on what needs to improve 

and build the outcomes into our service planning.   

We have changed our planning cycles to align with each other from 2018-2023 however they 

will be periodically reviewed to allow for emerging issues and activities.  We will continue to 

look at the best way to carry out corporate planning.  Processes may change over time but the 

principle of planning to improve will remain part of our performance arrangements. Our 

annual Personal Development Review process is being reviewed to ensure it is fit for purpose 

linked into the core competencies and behaviours of the organisation.  Delivery is carried out 

by ‘people’ so there must be a clear line of sight between people development, planning and 

delivery of effective actions.   

6. Corporate Plan and Well- being Objectives  

This document is our ‘Corporate Plan’ and includes our six Well-being Objectives.  We have a 

statutory duty to set Well-being Objectives using the five sustainable development principles 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  Setting objectives is not new, 

we have set priorities in a range of ways for a long time; however this is the first time we have 

set objectives over a five year planning period.  We will review the objectives routinely as 

circumstances can change and will consult with the public to make sure they remain relevant.  

It is important to note that this is not all that we do, there are many more activities that are 

carried out, however these objectives are what you told us (or that the data showed) where 

we could make a real difference to the well-being of the county borough.  Section 4 details 

what our Well-being Objectives are. 

7. Public Services Board Well-being Plan  

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 required the setting up of a statutory 

board called a Public Services Board (PSB) made up of the Local Authority, the Fire Service, 

Natural Resources Wales and the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board with other invited 

members, including Gwent Police and Public Health Wales. The purpose of PSB is to improve 

the economic, social, environmental and cultural Well-being in its area by strengthening joint 

working across all public services in Wales. To do this the PSB carried out a well-being 

assessment of the area and in response to the findings set objectives in a Well-being Plan.   

The PSB Plan is due to be published in May 2018 and will be delivered through a Well-being 

delivery plan, which has five action areas and four enablers (these are things that need to 

happen to make the other things possible such as sharing of public sector assets).  The 

Councils own Well-being Objectives are designed to contribute towards the high level         

Well-being Plan rather than replicate its delivery.   

Page 25



9 
 

 

4. Well-being Objectives 2018-2023 

Introduction  
 
We set our Well-being Objectives by using intelligence and data from the Well-being 
Assessment that was carried out to inform the PSB Well-being Plan. This told us about the 
concerns people had and the areas they would like to see improve. 
The objectives were also informed by our duty to deliver sustainability which is described 
within the five ways of working in each objective.  We also looked at how we could build on 
strengths that support improvement in our action planning (and not just areas to improve). 
 
We also show how our objectives contribute towards the seven national Well-being Goals and 
a description of those goals can be found on page 76.  The areas below are not all that we do, 
indeed it is not possible to cover everything the Council does but we have set these six 
objectives as they are critical to improving citizens’ well-being both in the long and short 
term.  These objectives will be reviewed periodically and we will consult on any changes with 
our citizens. 
 
 

Number  Description  
 

 

Objective 1  Improve education opportunities for all 
 

Page 10-22 

Objective 2 
 

Enabling employment Page 23-33 

Objective 3  Address the availability, condition and sustainability of 
homes throughout the county borough and provide 
advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s 
well-being 
 

Page 34-46 

Objective 4  Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport 
system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity 
and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment 
 

Page 47-54 

Objective 5 Create a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle 
 

Page 55-56 

Objective 6 Support citizens to remain independent and improve 
their well-being 
 

Page 68-74 

 

 

 

Page 26



10 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
1. Improve education opportunities for all  
 

Outcomes 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
 1. Aim to reduce the impact of poverty within early years.  

 
2. Raise standards of attainment.  

 
3. Reduce the impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and 

non-vocational qualifications to provide equality of opportunity. 
 

4. Help those who are not able to follow a traditional attainment path. 
 

5. Support learning that enables young and adult employment 
opportunities including a focus on ‘future skills’ 

 
6. Improve ‘Digital Skills’ for all ages.  

 
7. Improve the learning environment. 

 
8. Safeguard all children and young people in order to create a climate 

for learning, particularly for those most vulnerable. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Education is not preparation for life; 

education is life itself.” 

~ John Dewey~ 

Page 27



11 
 

 

1. Improve education opportunities for all  
 
Well-being Statement  
 
Over the last few years we have focused on improving young people’s outcomes and         
non- vocational qualifications to provide more opportunities for further education or 
employment.  This is still a priority outcome; however we have decided there is a greater 
need to take a more holistic view of education such as understanding issues in children’s early 
years and aspects like poverty and how they can affect attainment.  Much has been done to 
develop a multi-agency approach and learn from relevant research, such as work on ‘Adverse 
Childhood Experiences’ (ACES).  
 
We also want to look at how we can help those who are more vulnerable and unable to 
access a traditional pathway, as well as provide learning for young people and support for 
adults, whether that is to provide more skills or opportunities into employment.  This 
objective is about preventing longer term problems for future generations that are associated 
with low skills and lack of learning opportunities.      
 
Early Years 
 
Attendance is a critical factor to attaining good academic results.  Research has shown how 
important early years are in a child’s life, particularly the first 1000 days.  Whilst emphasis is 
often upon secondary attendance and truancy, the Charlie Taylor Report (2012) highlights 
that ‘truancy’ is only one dimension. This distracts attention from the cause of these 
problems, which is non-attendance in the early years when approved by parents. This soon 
becomes a pattern and establishes poor attitudes towards school.  
 
The research explains a clear link between children from disadvantaged backgrounds, 
attendance and school attainment at the Level 2+ indicator at GCSE.  Only 3% of pupils who 
miss more than 50% of school achieve 5A*-C as opposed to 73% achieving 5A*-C who have 
95% attendance. 

Children with low attendance in early years are more likely to come from poorer backgrounds 
and are likely to start school already behind their peers, especially in language acquisition and 
social development.  Poor attendance can be a sign that there are more serious issues going 
on in the child’s life.  Without the opportunity to receive good quality learning every day from 
the start of their education, the most disadvantaged pupils are unlikely to narrow the gap 
 
The evidence shows that children with poor attendance are unlikely to succeed academically 
and are more likely not to be in education, employment or training (NEET) when they leave 
school.  

Our Welsh Government funded Flying Start programme provides support for early years (0-4 
years of age) and aims to establish positive behaviours in children and families, through healthy 
lifestyles, positive parenting, attendance and raising aspirations.  The Flying Start programme 
offers a range of support at each age and is critical in establishing positive parent and child 
behaviours, in readiness for the child’s education, to give them the best opportunity for later 
life chances.  Research shows that parents’ qualifications and work experience are likely to lead 

Page 28



12 
 

to improved attendance for their children.  This is why some of the Flying Start programme 
helps to build confidence in parents and promote aspiration.  
 
Families First is a Welsh Government programme designed to improve outcomes for children, 
young people and families. It has an emphasis on prevention and helping families as early as 
possible to prevent any issues getting worse.  There are a range of programmes that mirror 
‘Flying Start’ particularly for those living in poverty outside of Flying Start areas; also Families 
First is available to all ages and areas.  Some of the programmes that support this objective 
range from ‘Families Learning Together’ to help parents learn how to best support their 
child’s learning with literacy and numeracy to ‘Little Voices / Tiny Talkers’ which is a 
collaborative contract to target children with speech and language delays.   
 
Attainment  
 
Attainment is still the aspect we are judged on nationally and we recognise that education 
attainment contributes towards this overall ‘readiness’ and capacity for opportunities. Each 
year we rank around 19th to 20th in our educational attainment results at Key Stage 4 (15-16 
years of age), and whilst we improve year on year we stay low down in this rating compared 
to other authorities’ improvement journeys. Standards in Caerphilly are improving but not at 
a sufficient rate compared to similar authorities across Wales.  However our ranking in 
primary settings (by teacher assessment) is ranked 6th and 7th, so there is work to do in 
preventing declining results in later years.   
 
There are many factors which increase levels of vulnerability in learners, one of which is 
poverty and deprivation. The measure that is commonly used to measure deprivation is a 
pupil’s eligibility to receive Free School Meals (FSM).  Sixteen of the 110 areas in Caerphilly 
are in the 10% most deprived areas in Wales, although our eligible pupils perform well against 
those who are not eligible in exam results.  Reducing the gap in performance between eFSM 
and non-eFSM pupils at Key Stage 4, Level 2+ as well as raising standards for all is very 
important as this measure can affect the life chances of learners.  Achieving this indicator at 
the age of 16, opens up further education, employment and training opportunities. The use of 
the Pupil Development Grant (PDG) enables schools to create a deeper level of support for 
those eFSM learners.  The Local Authority is part of a regional school improvement 
consortium called the Education Achievement Service (EAS).  The EAS deliver school 
improvement services on our behalf and monitor the PDG robustly to ensure the resources go 
to the right place.  
 
At a discussion held with Caerphilly Business Forum and the Welsh Innovation Centre for 
Enterprise (ICE), the following issues emerged as important around educational matters 
where gaining a good level education was seen as key in getting young people work ready. 
 
Helping those who do not follow a traditional path 
 
Not all pupils can stay in a mainstream school environment until the age of 16.  Some young 
people are fragile or vulnerable and require specialist provision.  Other young people require 
a flexible, blended, approach and two of our services support pupils specifically in this way, 
Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) and the Youth Service. 
 
 

Page 29



13 
 

 
The EOTAS service provides alternative educational pathways for those pupils who may be 
unable to continue in full time mainstream education for a variety of reasons.  The focus of 
the educational opportunities available to pupils who are within this aspect of the education 
system is to maintain standards of attainment and to develop strategies which will support an 
individual managing their own behaviours more effectively into adulthood through 
developing resilience and coping strategies.  
 
We work with a range of stakeholders to deliver an appropriate educational pathway 
including the Youth Service, so that learners have opportunities to succeed in formal,         
non-formal and informal learning experiences.  Whilst providing informal educational support 
for all young people 11-25, the Youth Service is proactive in supporting those who may not 
always achieve via formal educational pathways, such as GCSEs.  Young people of school age 
are supported both in school time, for example, by providing an alternative curriculum, and 
outside of school hours, so as to provide holistic, integrated and wrap around support for 
those most in need of it.  In this way educational targets for attainment, attendance and 
behaviour are significantly supported.   
 
Welsh Government guidance, together with current policy direction, consistently recognises 
the role of youth work in all its forms with regard to ensuring the engagement by young 
people in society, including the positive influence on their education, health, behaviours and 
their work prospects – in these ways, Youth Service activity mirrors the intent across all    
well-being themes.  Frequently, the Youth Service can engage positively with young people, 
particularly in areas of poverty, where others cannot, ensuring that all young people have 
contact with adults that can enable them to live positive and fulfilling lives and contribute to 
their communities.  The unique relationship that youth workers have with young people helps 
to accomplish this, combined with the reach of the Youth Service, which goes far beyond that 
of schools, social services and many others, many of whom rely on the Youth Service to 
deliver key messages to young people.  Our participation commitments are largely fulfilled by 
the Youth Service, for whom the involvement of and collaboration with young people to 
influence their lives and their communities is central to the provision of youth work.  The long 
term support provided to young people, supports the transition from childhood to adulthood, 
enabling significant prevention work to be undertaken and is a unique feature of services in 
Education and beyond.  Other types of support include a Families First run project called 
Targeted Youth and Family Engagement which aims to develop personal and social skills 
particularly around behaviours and boundaries, raise confidence and build self-esteem. The 
project also provides one to one and group support for young parents. 
 
At the age of 16 schools work successfully with colleges to ensure that, where pupils choose a 
vocational route as a next step, transition processes are effective. 
 
Enabling Employability  
 
When we carried out the local assessment of well-being, the assessment made the 
connection between a lack of opportunity and the role of education and training in helping to 
provide opportunities for jobs.  One of the significant areas to emerge from our assessment 
exercise was the need to ‘provide training, apprenticeships, employment and opportunities 
that are appropriate for all sectors of the community’.   

Page 30



14 
 

The overall picture is that 31.4% of the county borough residents have no qualifications 
compared with a figure of 26% for Wales as a whole.  This came through as a concern from 
the communities we spoke with.  A strong local economy was identified as essential for lifting 
local people out of poverty and attainment for young people was linked to longer term quality 
of life.   
 
The Public Services Board want to address this as part of their new Well-being Plan.  Our 
contribution towards improving this picture is three employability programmes we run within a 
regional partnership and we are considering a fourth which has the potential to begin in early 
2018. 
 
The programmes are Inspire 2 Work is a six county regional operation led by Blaenau Gwent.  
This provides support for young people aged 16-24 who are not in education, employment or 
training and have no means of engaging with formal or informal education, training or 
employment.  Participants, who must live in a non-Community First area, are offered a 
tailored package of one to one support to help them return to education, enter work or gain a 
qualification required to access voluntary opportunities.   
 
Bridges into Work 2 is a five county regional operation led by Torfaen Council. This provides 
tailored support for participants who are 25+ who are economically inactive (figures are quite 
high in the county borough) or long term unemployed (living in non-Communities First areas). 
 
Working skills for Adults 2 provides support for employed or self employed aged 16+ with a 
view to gain further qualifications to upskill into better opportunities. The potential new 
programme is called Nurture, Equip and Thrive (NET).  This would provide advice and 
guidance to those people in employment who are suffering in work poverty due to under 
employment in order to get additional hours or a second income.  It could provide support to 
get those with long term sickness back into employment.  This is under consideration as we 
would have to match the available European funding.  All the programmes are due to run to 
at least 2022 and have measurable targets for getting people engaged, qualified or entering 
into employment.  
 
We recognise Communities First funding contributes towards employment but this pot of 
funding is being changed as Welsh Government have reviewed the programme and now want 
to target the money in a different way and more information on this is on page 24 under our 
Enabling employability Objective. 
 
The Council follows the national Engagement and Progression Framework. This has involved 
the recruitment of a co-ordinator within the Youth Service, whose role is to work closely with 
children and young people who have been identified by schools and others as being at risk of 
not going into employment, education or training (NEET).  Following the identification, the  
co-ordinator will provide a wide and varied programme of support such as regular mentoring 
meetings with youth workers, accompanied visits to colleges and other establishments, visits 
to and from employers to develop their knowledge, understanding, motivation and access to 
events which give young people the chance to view and apply for a variety of opportunities 
linked to education, employment and training.   
 
Our Emphasis project offers support to young people aged 13-19 who are likely or at risk of 
becoming homeless. Often these young people are NEET.  The Emphasis worker will work 

Page 31



15 
 

with the young person to improve their well-being and help them better engage with school. 
Supporting People workers often attend well-being events at colleges to promote services like 
housing related support that help keep young people in education and access training 
opportunities. 
 
At a regional level the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) is looking at allocating a 
development fund for a pilot to develop a business case of the feasibility of a ‘Skills for the 
Future’ project.  This will provide region wide school engagement support for business and a 
skills investment fund to deliver over 10,000 apprenticeships, graduate internships and 
upskilling employees in the private sector.  More on this can be found in our Enabling 
employment Objective however it is worth recognising the connection here between skills, 
education and employment.  
 
The lack of consistent advice and guidance for young people combined with the under supply 
of young people interested in doing apprenticeships in the areas that priority sectors need, 
has the potential to make the mismatch of skills available, to skills needed even greater. 
Uncertainty around what skills are needed following Brexit, the growth in automation and the 
increasing importance of digital skills means it is important we support a joint regional 
approach to deliver an ‘employer led skill system’ in the Cardiff Capital Region.  In other 
words we need to better match the skills being taught to the skills employers need.  Fewer 
children and students are studying Science, Technology, Engineering, Maths (known as STEM) 
and digital skills at a regional level.  Part of addressing this under the ‘Skills For The Future’ 
project is the CCRCD aim to invest in good quality careers advice in schools from year 8 
onwards (as part of a much wider programme) to work with schools in delivering a more 
informed leaner employment choice and ensure young people are better equipped to pursue 
more lucrative career options and earning potential.   
 
Automation and Artificial Intelligence (AI) has implications for business in the near future 
and this means implications for the types of knowledge and skills that our children need, to 
make sure they can benefit from the opportunities that AI can bring. There are also concerns.   
It has been widely reported that by 2030 one in four jobs could be lost in Wales (estimated at 
112,000 jobs) to automation and AI unless skills change.  We need to ensure our young people 
are trained today for tomorrow’s skills.   
 
Digital Strategy and Competency  
 
Digital Competency - We recognise in the new digital era that having access to technology 
and facilities to study, for example, online study, is one way that can help people with the 
quality of their life.  This is why we will have a strong focus on ways to roll out more high 
speed and quality broadband and look to provide digital opportunities. We are taking part in 
The Learning in a Digital Wales programme to provide high speed broadband for schools 
(funded by Welsh Government).  Welsh Government officials are working with local 
authorities and British Telecom (BT) to start ordering and implementing more services this 
year.  In schools, as part of the new curriculum a new Digital Competence Framework is being 
introduced.    
“*Digital competence is the set of skills, knowledge and attitudes that enable the confident, 
creative and critical use of technologies and systems. It is essential for learners if they are to 
be informed, capable and have the potential to be successful in today’s society”  
 
*http://learning.gov.wales/docs/learningwales/publications/160831-dcf-guidance-en-v2.pdf 

Page 32



16 
 

Several of our schools are leading on this with some becoming centres of excellence to share 
good practice.  The Digital Competency Framework has been developed to be inclusive of all 
learners aged 3 to 16-plus. It covers the development of skills from the earliest stages that 
very young children need to learn.  
 
Another part of our digital agenda is the work that is being done within our libraries.  
The library service are working with families and toddlers to develop basic coding skills and 
encourage literacy, counting, socialising, problem solving and teamwork through use of the 
Fisher Price Code-a-Pillar toy where parts of the body control different aspects, such as 
movement, sound and lights. These parts can be rearranged to make the caterpillar move in 
different directions.  The project takes place in the main 4 libraries, Caerphilly, Blackwood 
(where the project was piloted), Bargoed and Risca and is badged as a school readiness 
programme to support the digital curriculum.  Our Families First programme brings families 
into library’s to take part in their ‘Families Learning Together’ project improving literacy and 
numeracy,  
 
For our 7-12 year olds, this age group focuses on online coding and using Raspberry Pi and 
BBC Microbit Kits. They are taught a basic coding language called Scratch. More advanced 
children are able to learn coding using advanced coding languages such as HTML and Python. 
This project takes groups of children over several weeks to give them time to develop their 
skills.   
 
A third strand will focus on older children and adults and libraries are currently working with 
older pupils from Coleg Gwent to gather evidence and work out how this project can work to 
give the pupils technological employability skills they need post education.  Libraries are 
currently having a conversation with Adult Education Services around employability skills and 
this may be a future development.  
 
Each library has its own improvement plan (LIP) in which they show their contribution to 4 
skills areas; School Readiness, Health, Life and Employability.  
 
Other library workshops available include ‘Information Skills’ focusing on age 11, (year 6) to 
engage with children before comprehensive school. Our Community Librarians  show groups 
of pupils how libraries work and support them in developing critical thinking skills, using 
search engines to get the best results, and learning how to use text based resources 
effectively including use of contents and index pages. They also engage with the children on 
E- safety with topics such as cyber bullying, sexting and talk about the effects these can have 
on the children and their friends.  Adult Education also deliver a range of digital learning 
courses across the county borough as does the Supporting People programmes in assisting 
with basic computer skills and activities such as ‘digital Fridays’.  
 

We want to take an innovative approach to digital connectivity and be alive to the 
opportunities in the region that can benefit our community, which is why we are committed 
to the development of a Digital Strategy as part of the Cardiff City Region City Deal.  This 
comprises a range of proposals which depend upon a well developed infrastructure using a 
‘dark fibre’ network. This means instead of using traditional cabling, data is transported over 
unused optical fibre.  A dark fibre network is optical fibre infrastructure that is not in use.  
Exploration of the use of ‘dark fibre’ would result in faster and wider connection at a global, 
regional and community level.  This would also support the next generation of digital mobile 

Page 33



17 
 

access of 5G which has greater down load speeds and capacity for a larger numbers of 
devices. For example, the difference between the speed of 4G and 5G would be the ability to 
down load a film in less than 10 seconds on a 5G network, compared to 10 minutes on a 4G 
network.  This kind of access and speed will provide extensive support to schools and colleges 
on their digital journeys.  There are a wide range of proposals within the strategy and being 
aware of how the digital future will impact our young people will be critical to the skills that 
are needed, for example in jobs that may be automated in the future.             
 

21st Century Schools Programme 
 
The Welsh Government (WG) 21st Century Schools programme 2014-2019 has resulted in an 
investment of £56.5m in education within the county borough.  This has been funded 50% by 
WG and 50% by the Authority.  There were 5 projects identified as part of the programme. 
Two are now complete, Islwyn High School which opened in July 2017, and Y Gwindy Welsh 
Medium Secondary School which is an expansion of Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni in the 
Caerphilly Basin and also incorporated a new primary school Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Caerffili.  
The Abertysswg/Pontlottyn Primary School Building, which is part of the Rhymney age 3 to 18 
school which opened January 2018 and was named the ‘Idris Davies’ primary school.  These 
are state of the art 21st Century School developments.  The extension of Newbridge School 
has recently started with completion scheduled for September 2018 and the final scheme 
invested £2M into a refurbishment project at Blackwood Comprehensive. 
 
The Authority has recently submitted to WG their bid in relation to the 21st Century schools 
Band B programme which will run from 2019 for a 5 year period and will focus on the 
improvement of the condition of school buildings and maximising community usage. 
 

How we used the ‘5 ways of working’ to set this Well-being objective?   
 
Involvement – There are many people involved in achieving this objective, from schools, 
parents, health services, libraries, builders (for school improvements), colleges and 
employment organisations.  One of our biggest partners in helping young people and schools 
to better levels of achievement and attainment is the Education Achievement Service (EAS) 
who deliver school improvement on our behalf. There are too many partners to list but we 
will continue to promote partnership working and sharing resource with the old saying in the 
forefront of our minds that “it takes a village to raise a child”.   
 
Long term - The objective is over 4-5 years but the benefits for children and young people will 
be over a 25 year period from birth to adulthood. The objective covers actions and the 
importance of early years on learning through to support for young adults into employment 
programmes and the recognition that digital learning plays an important skill in the present 
and the future.    
 
Collaborate – The EAS and our schools are our main partners for academic improvements and 
we work closely with them to improve attainment.  We have a range of different 
collaborations which will form part of our detailed action plans. Many of the projects 
delivering to this Well-being Objective are delivered through collaborative partnerships 
between health, local authority, statutory and voluntary sector partners.    
 

Page 34



18 
 

Integration –We are aware that aspirations are linked with the family and therefore Flying 
Start, Families First, Supporting People and other key agencies, working with families will also 
be key partners. In addition, studies have shown that raising aspirations and improving 
attitudes to learning is wider than just educational barriers. Therefore, we may require the 
support of services such as leisure, parks and countryside, the voluntary sector and health 
services as a way of engaging with children and young people and their families.   
 
Prevention – We are taking a long term approach by understanding the effect of children’s 
early years on their readiness and experience of school, connected to attendance through to 
the skills and exam levels they achieve at school.  We are taking a preventative approach for 
those who cannot follow a traditional path through a range of support and one to one work. 
We recognise the importance of growth in digital skills needed for work of the future but also 
promoting vocational work and making sure those young people that don’t have a traditional 
path in education are valued and supported.  The success of this objective has a big impact on 
quality of life, as it is recognised that skills that enable employment are one of the main paths 
out of poverty.   
 
What steps will we take to achieve this goal?  
 
There will be a detailed action plan to aid the delivery of this objective over the next 4-5 
years. In the meantime below we highlight some of the main actions that we will take over 
this time:  

 

Outcomes  Timeframe 

1. Aim to reduce the impact of poverty within early years 

Continued delivery of the Flying Start programme to help improve access, take up 
and attendance. 

2017-2021 

Continued delivery of the Families First programme to help improve access, take up 
and attendance. 

2017-2021 

Increase the number of eligible working families accessing the free Childcare Offer. 
 

Sept 2017-
2021 

2. Raise standards of attainment 
 

Reduce variation between schools so that all schools make improvements by 
working closely with the Education Achievement Service to continue to sharpen 
processes and intervene effectively. 

2017 
ongoing 

Reduce the rate of fixed term exclusions particularly at targeted primary and 
secondary schools by revising the behaviour strategy and developing specialist fit for 
purpose provision. 

November 
2017 – June 
2018 

Further develop the STRIVE (System, Tracking, Reporting, Identifying, Vulnerability 
Education) to include data on young people who are currently Not in Education 
Training and Employment (NEET) in order to identify destinations and support young 
people into further training or employment.  

 
December 
2017 - 2018 

3: Reduce impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and non vocational qualifications 
to provide equality of opportunity 
 

More effectively track progress of vulnerable groups and monitor impact of 
interventions on outcomes.   

July 2017 
onwards 

Develop the role of person centred practice (PCP) champion and embed person Sept 2016 – 

Page 35



19 
 

Outcomes  Timeframe 

centred practice in targeted schools. Aug 2018 

Increase engagement and support for young people who are at risk of or are 
currently NEET to secure destinations and realise their potential.  

 
2016 - 2019 

Reconfigure the core Youth Service to ensure that young people with the most need 
are supported to achieve, whether by formal or non-formal means.   

Apr 2018-
Sept 2019 

4: Support those who are not able to follow a traditional attainment path 
 

Improve the consistency of what is delivered for all (Education other than at school) 
learners with providers currently on the EOTAS Framework. 

Jan 2018 

Develop the transition plan in relation to Team Teach with schools arranging their 
own training.  

July 2017 

Work with Local Authorities involved in the Flexibilities Funding pilots in preparation 
for implementation from April 2019 to maximise the reach of grant funded 
programmes for vulnerable families.  

Apr 2018- 
2021 
 

Review Additional Learning Needs (ALN) in mainstream Schools including Additional 
Support and Community Tuition, and Education Other than at School settings.  
The purpose is to: 

 ensure that all schools are aware of and compliant with responsibilities in line 
with the existing Special Education Needs Code and developments in relation 
to the ‘Additional Learning Needs’ reform  

 ensure effective targeting of resources to meet needs 

 ensure a consistent approach for EOTAS learners 

 ensure appropriate pathways are established for EOTAS learners 
 

Jan 2017 – 
Sept 2019 

5: Support learning that enables young and adult employment opportunities 

 
Deliver Adult Community Learning and European Social Fund operations to improve 
the level of skills and provide opportunities to gain qualifications (formal and non-
formal) and move people towards employment.   

 
2017-2023 

Continue the ‘Inspire to Work’ programmes, support for those aged 16-24 who are 
not in education, employment or training and have no means of engaging with 
education, employment or training.  The Project is currently approved. 
 

Delivery 
started 
June 2017 – 
June 2019. 

Continue to expand the Progress Traineeship Scheme which targets care leavers age 
16 to 18. The scheme will focus on the local authority providing the young person 
with an excellent programme of work experience to enable them to develop and 
gain a meaningful qualification in collaboration with Social Services. 

 
2017 - 2018 

The CCRCD will support the allocation of development funding to pilot a ‘Skills For 
The Future’ project to test out the concept and develop a business case.  

2018/19 
 

6: Improve digital skills for all ages 
 

Introduction of literacy, numeracy and digital competence expected of all teachers 
and pupils.  Caerphilly schools are working with Welsh Government to become 
centres of excellence in sharing good practice in digital competency.  

Sept 2017 - 
ongoing   

Develop support for Adult Education to deliver digital literacy skills, supporting the 
three employability programs.     

2017-2022 

Page 36



20 
 

Outcomes  Timeframe 

Support the development of Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Digital Strategy  
 

2018-2023 

7. Improve the learning environment 
 

Agree the 21st Century schools Band B programme which is planned to run from 
2019. 

2018 

Ensure robust procedures are in place to ensure timely submission of Business Cases 
to Welsh Government. 

2018 

Ensure all requirements of the School Organisations Code are met when 
implementing the programme. 

2018-2023 

Effectively manage the procurement and planning of projects to ensure value for 
money and best use of resources 

2018-2023 

Effectively manage our Capital resources to ensure it is targeted at areas of most 
need. 

2018-2023 

Ensure the right schools are in the right places to meet current and future demand. 
 

2018-2023 

8: Safeguard all children and young people in order to create a climate for learning, particularly 
for those most vulnerable 
 

Develop a Well-being Strategy and a model policy for schools 
 

2018 

Develop a sustainable delivery system of sufficient safeguarding training for all staff 
to create safety for all learners 

2018-2022 

 

Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 
 

A Prosperous Wales develops a skilled and well educated population; we need our young 
people to have greater vocational or non-vocational skills in order to have better paid jobs 
and job satisfaction that contribute to the community and a better quality of life.  
Achieving our Well-being Objective is essential to contribute to this national goal. 
This work is about helping all young people (and adults) reach their potential and so 
underpins a more Equal Wales.  Literacy, play, speech and all the programmes designed to 
help improve reading and writing through the life course maximise contribution to A 
Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language  
Recognition of the way health and well-being contributes to Education attainment means 
that healthier young people would enable a Healthier Wales 
Digital competence and the networks behind them contributes to a Globally Responsible 
Wales 

 
Success of this objective would also contribute to:  

 Welsh Government Goal 2  - Improve education outcomes for all and reduce the gap in 
outcomes for different groups 

 Arts Council of Wales - REACH – Developing the creativity of children and young 
people 

 Public Health Wales – Give our children the best start in life including opportunities to 
grow, play and learn in a healthy and safe environment 

Page 37



21 
 

 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board - Support every parent expecting a child and 
give every child in Gwent support to ensure the best start in life. 

 

How we will resource this Well-being Objective 
 

 Digital programmes are funded by Welsh Government, although we contribute 
towards aspects like line rental. 

 The Flying Start Programme is funded by Welsh Government grant £5,214,300, 
however funding for this programme is due to reduce by 1.8% in 2018/19.* 

 Families First Project is funded by Welsh Government grant £2,747,197 but from 
2018/19 there will be a 1.8% reduction for 2018/2019.* 

 Supporting People Programme is funded by Welsh Government grant £6,232,790.* 
 There is no specific funding for our libraries coding work however, as it is being 

embedded into everyday to make it sustainable, there will only be a cost to maintain 
and purchase any further equipment in the future. 

 Band B 21st Century Schools Programme will be 50% funded by Welsh Government 
and 50% funded by the Local Authority. 

 Inspire 2 Work – provides up to £755k of European Grant Funding, with a match 
funding commitment from the Local Authority.  The project runs up to June 2019. 

 Bridges into Work 2 provides up to £1.6m European Grant Funding, with a match 
funding commitment from the Local Authority.  Current project end date is April 2020. 

 Working Skills for Adults 2 – provides up to £542k European Grant Funding, with a match 
funding commitment from the Local Authority up to the project end date of April 2020. 

 Working with the EAS to ensure Pupil Development Grant and Education Improvement 
Grant is appropriately targeted and monitored, currently at £13,406,723. 

 Youth Strategy grant is funded by Welsh Government, currently £159,630. 
 Adult Community Learning grant is funded by Welsh Government, currently £304,785. 
 The Cardiff City Region City Deal to agree allocation of £120k for scoping of a digital 

strategy. 
 *The funding for the various programmes of Families First, Supporting People and Flying 

start will be changed as it is Welsh Government (WG) intention to put these and 7 other 
grants into one funding stream, called ‘Flexible Funding’ pulling together 10 different 
grants.  The implications of this are not fully known yet however WG guidance will be 
produced about the grants in June 2018.    

 
When will the objective be completed? 
 
This journey will be ongoing as we will always consider that improving children and young 
people’s life chances, and enabling employment opportunities are important.  However, as 
this objective is set for the next 5 years we will consider that we have made significant 
improvement when we rise above the Welsh average in the indicators below 
 

Outcome Measure 

1 Cumulative number of children accessing the Flying Start programme annually is 
above the cap number of 2483 

1 Increased number of eligible working parents accessing the Childcare Offer funded 
places 

1 Number of individual families benefitting from the Families First Programme 

Page 38



22 
 

1 Number and % of participants who report improved emotional/mental Well-being 
(following the programme they participated in).  

2 % of year 11 pupils achieving Level 2 including Maths and English 

2 % of year 11 pupils achieving Level 1 threshold 

2 % of Primary School Attendance 

2 % of Secondary School Attendance 

2 % of Fixed Term Exclusions per 1000 pupils at Primary and Secondary Schools   

7 % of Primary and Secondary school surplus places 

4 % of Year 11 leavers from schools known to be not in education, employment or 
training (NEET) 

2 % of pupils achieving the expected outcomes at the end of key stage 2 

2 % of pupils achieving the expected outcomes at the end of key stage 3 

 % of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the end of the Foundation Phase 

4,5&8 Number of care leavers (16-18) engaged in the Progress Traineeship Scheme 
increases 

5 Number of young people engaged in the Live Vacancy Events (2 per year) 

5 Meet or exceed employability targets (as given for the BIW and Inspire 
programme) 

6 The roll out of digital competency framework within our schools 

 
 
For context we will also review the National indicators for Wales below as part of this overall 
objective:  
 
 

   

General Well-being Indicators-    Source of Data 

Measurement of development of young children  Foundation phase 
profile 

 
Other relevant information 
 
We recognise there are many other factors that help young people with education and wider 
life skills such as the ability to cook meals or to have good self-esteem. For example recent 
research (University of Strathclyde and Dundee) found intensive exercise improves the 
academic performance of teenagers.  Whilst we cannot prioritise all these aspects 
programmes like our healthy schools and exercise programmes recognise these other aspects 
and are included in objective 3 and 5. 
 
Information on schools and their performance within the county borough can be found at 
www.mylocalschool.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

http://www.mylocalschool.com/


23 
 

 
 

 2. Enabling employment 
 

Outcomes 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Aim to reduce the impact of poverty by supporting people into better 
employment prospects.  

 
2. Meet the targets of the European Social Fund programmes of getting people 

skilled and into work. 
 
3. The Council will use the value of its third party spend to bring greater social and 

economic regeneration to the communities we serve. 
 
4. Use investment in the housing stock to increase the number of skilled, qualified 

workers and tackle worklessness by providing apprenticeship, training and 
work placements with our in-house workforce and building contractors. 

 
5. Ensuring local delivery of work programmes aligns and maximises opportunities 

from the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



24 
 

 

2. Enabling employment   
 
Well-being Statement  
 
This objective is about enabling people to be ready for jobs and to help prevent longer term 
problems that are associated with low skills and lack of employability. We want to contribute 
towards overall issues that affect employment within the local economy. 
 
Before employment there are many related support programmes that help to get people in a 
position in order to be work ready, low level mental health needs, low motivation, lack of 
confidence and several other factors play a part in getting a person to a position where they are 
ready to train or write a CV or attend an interview.  Several of our Families First, Flying Start and 
Supporting People projects (whilst not specific to employment) help to grow people’s confidence 
and to give them a voice that puts them in a better state of mind to start looking at employment 
needs and opportunities.    
 
It must be recognised that we cannot, as a Local Authority, solve unemployment issues as 
national economic growth is one of the key determinants in the availability of jobs.  What we can 
do is help equip people with the skills and experience to provide the best chances for work. 
We can ensure our planning factors in support for business growth and that we understand and 
act on wider determinants of employment such as travel and accessibility to jobs. 
 
Employment is still seen as one of the main routes out of poverty so it is important that we look 
at ways we can equip people for ‘sustainable’ and ‘well paid’ employment. Education is a key 
factor in this and we have outcomes to improve our standards of attainment within our 
Education objective.   
 
During the course of our conversations with the public we met many citizens who told us a key 
area of concern was being able to have skills and access to employment.  The local assessment of 
well-being told us that within the county borough we have 70% of males aged 16-74 years who 
are economically active and nearly 60% of females 16-74 who are economically active.  This 
means we have 30% of males aged 16-74 who are economically inactive and approximately 40% 
of women 16-74 years of age who are classed as economically inactive. 
(The economically inactive are defined as people who are not in employment or unemployed. 
There are many reasons why an individual may be inactive, for example, they might be studying, 
looking after family or long-term sick) 
 
The proportion of males aged 16-74 years who were long-term sick or disabled was 8.6% in the 
county borough against the Wales average of 6.5%.  The proportion of females aged 16-74 years 
who were long-term sick or disabled was slightly less at 7.8% against a Wales average of 6.0%. 
 
Unemployment across many parts of the county borough is characterised by long term 
generational ‘worklessness’, most notably in those communities which may have been affected 
by widespread redundancy following past industrial closures.  There also exists a growing issue 
of workless households, whereby cycles of negative attitudes towards employment are 
perpetuated throughout families, with significant impact upon the attitudes and prospects of 
future generations.  For example the Upper Rhymney Valley community area contains a large 
proportion of the more deprived areas within the county borough, where unemployment is a 

Page 41



25 
 

major issue, with generations of families where no-one has ever worked.  Data shows that rates 
of unemployment by ward for males aged 16-74 years in Rhymney were significantly higher than 
the county borough average (6.6%) and the Wales average (5.5%) in most of the wards.  People 
living within these communities will often experience numerous complex barriers to 
employment, including transport (the geography of the county borough makes this a particular 
problem for some areas), childcare, poor physical and mental health, low confidence, low skills, 
lack of education/qualifications, essential skills, poor motivation, domestic abuse and substance 
misuse.  There is more detail on the data within our ‘Caerphilly County Borough Area Assessment 
of Local Well-being’ March 2017 which can be accessed online at 
https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/.   
 
The Office for National Statistics data (Jul 2016 – Jun 2017) shows that the number of people 
unemployed in the county borough (5.3%) is higher than the Wales (4.7%) and UK (4.6%) 
averages.  The percentage of workless households is also higher.  Being unemployed is known to 
have a detrimental effect on health and well-being, and is also linked to deprivation and poverty.  
Helping people into work will enable them to live independently, lift them out of poverty and 
help to promote good health and well-being. 

 
Developing skills and achieving qualifications to take young people into employment is covered 
in our Education Objective and is critical to the achievement of this objective as 31.4% of our 
adult residents do not hold any qualifications.  Access to jobs by sustainable transport is 
addressed in our objective on transport.  
 
Enabling Employability  
 
The Well-being Assessment involved talking with many citizens who made the connection 
between lack of opportunity, in particular job prospects and the link between education and 
training in helping to provide opportunities for jobs.   
 
Within Caerphilly, a range of employability programmes are run, funded by both the European 
Social Fund (ESF) and Welsh Government, which are designed to improve employability across a 
variety of customer groups.  Our Education Objective specifically provides actions for the 
programmes below which contribute to this objective and is summarised below:       

 Inspire 2 Work – links directly to our work with young people aged 16-24 who are not 
in education, employment or training and have no means of engaging with formal or 
informal education, training or employment.   

 Bridges 2 Work - tailored support for participants who are 25 + who are economically 
inactive, working in non-priority areas (this is not part of the programmes known as 
Communities for Work which operates in areas classed as deprived). 

 Working skills for Adults 2 provides support for employed or self-employed aged 16+ 
with a view to gain further qualifications to upskill into better opportunities.  

 
Central to the successful co-ordination of these programmes is a ‘triage’ process, which forms 
part of the Communities for Work programme and provides a central point of referral, whereby 
customers seeking employment or skills can be referred in to designated triage staff who will 
then determine their eligibility for any one of the available employability programmes and refer 
them as appropriate.  This approach ensures effective partnership working and a lack of 
duplication across the different employability programmes enabling the provision of a holistic 
employment service across the whole county borough, which is able to support all customers 
regardless of their individual eligibility criteria.  

Page 42

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/


26 
 

 
Communities for Work provide intensive mentoring support for unemployed customers within 
the most deprived areas (known as Communities First areas) of the county borough.  The 
programme is funded by ESF and comprises a partnership between ourselves and the 
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), whereby Employment Mentors based within the 
Council and Employment Advisers, based within DWP work together in cluster teams to provide 
intensive employability support to address the many complex barriers to employment which 
customers may experience. 

 
The Communities First funding programme is changing and moving in a greater way towards 
employment.  Following a review by Welsh Government, a decision was taken to phase out the 
Communities First programme; however the employability support which was previously 
provided as part of the programme will now be provided by the new Welsh Government funded 
Communities for Work Plus programme, which is due to commence formally in April 2018.  This 
new programme will “fill the gaps” by providing mentoring-based employability support for 
customers who do not meet the formal eligibility criteria of the existing ESF funded programmes.  
We will report more on this scheme and its successes over the course of the objective 
 
Childcare Offer for Wales   
 
The New Welsh Government Childcare Offer is now available across the county borough and 
could bring huge financial savings for eligible parents earning the equivalent of 16 hours or more 
per week. From the term following their 3rd birthday, children could be entitled to 20 hours of 
government funded childcare.  This is in addition to the 10 hours already provided by the       
part-time Foundation Phase and up to 30 hours of childcare during the school holidays. The 
Welsh Government funded childcare within the county borough at the moment could be 
instrumental in helping parents back into employment knowing their child care needs may be 
met.  

 
Welsh Housing Quality Scheme (WHQS) Investment Programme 
 
We are committed to delivering the WHQS across all our 10,805 homes by 2020. We are also 
committed to delivering an ambitious transformation programme which will see a £200 million 
WHQS investment act as a catalyst to transform not only homes but also lives and communities 
throughout the area. We recognise that investment on this scale presents a unique opportunity 
to deliver added social, economic and environmental benefits to the people that live in homes 
and within our communities. 
 
The investment programme provides an opportunity to link housing and regeneration outcomes 
through ensuring greater alignment between key strategic and operational programmes; 
through securing external funding to add to the existing investment programme; through 
engaging people and communities that may have previously been deemed ‘hard to reach’ and; 
through doing different things and doing them in a different way. 
 
The procurement strategy and contract structure adopted has been designed specifically to drive 
the achievement of greater added value through community benefits. The structure seeks to 
maximise the Welsh pound, deliver greater social, economic and environmental benefits and 
impact, and provide the market with greater assurance and confidence by moving away from 
‘might be’ framework contracts to ‘will be’ long term commitment contracts. 

Page 43



27 
 

In order to achieve this ambition, we have included targeted recruitment and training 
requirements into WHQS internal works and supply partner contracts (this means we ask that 
our contractors to recruit and train people who are unemployed as part of the contract) we ask 
them to take a flexible approach to a suite of community benefits which includes a request to 
consider implementing the living wage, the creation of a fund to support local community 
groups, and activities to help facilitate the transfer of knowledge and experience within, and 
between, the private sector and local schools and colleges.  
 
To date, 106 new full time job opportunities have been created across Caerphilly Homes         
(The Council’s housing department) and a further 71 as a result of the work awarded to our 
WHQS internal works contractors and supply partner. The opportunities created, particularly by 
the Council, have directly benefited the local economy as approximately 80% of the workforce 
employed reside within the county borough and therefore spend their salary locally.  

 
A total of 43 apprenticeship opportunities have also been created within the Caerphilly Homes 
team to support the delivery of the WHQS programme. An additional 15 have been created by 
the Council’s internal works contractors and the supply partner.   
 
In an attempt to ensure that the most disadvantaged people within the county borough are able 
to take advantage of the opportunities presented by the programme, we and our delivery 
partners have made available a number of work placement opportunities for people aged 16+ 
and who have been engaged via the Welsh Government’s tackling poverty programme called 
Lift.  17 individuals from workless households have benefited from the integration of the WHQS 
programme with the delivery of ‘Lift’.      
 
Work placement opportunities have been created by our internal works contractors and sub 
contractors, together with Robert Price, the Council’s WHQS supply partner, and E-On who are 
undertaking an extensive external wall insulation and energy efficiency programme on behalf of 
Caerphilly Homes, funded by Welsh Government and ourselves in Lansbury Park.  
 
A commitment of £50,000 per annum for a period of 5 years was made at the outset of the 
programme to assist those deemed furthest from the labour market to overcome barriers to 
employment. To date the funding has been used to add value to the employment support work 
undertaken by the Community Regeneration Team and the delivery of ‘Lift’. Moving forward, the 
funding will complement the delivery of the new employment support programmes recently 
announced by Welsh Government (Legacy, Communities 4 Work and Communities 4 Work Plus) 
and support the most vulnerable tenants on their journey towards employment. 

 
Procurement  
 
We spend around £170m per annum on third party expenditure which provides opportunities 
for making better links with what we can do to support the local economy.  We are committed to 
ensuring we achieve value for money from our third party procurement expenditure.  So we 
recognise the value of using purchasing to support wider cultural, social, economic and 
environmental objectives, in ways that offer real long-term benefits to the community. Our 
‘Programme for Procurement’ will be a living strategy, flexible, adaptable and alive to the 
changing environment will detail specific actions to bring this about.     
Our Objective has a mixture of practical and short to mid term actions such as providing skills 
that help people to get ready for employment, however there are also wider determinants and 

Page 44



28 
 

longer term actions that need to take place, in the shape of our draft Regeneration Strategy – ‘A 
Foundation for Success’ 2018-2023.  Caerphilly County Borough and the wider Cardiff Capital 
Region is entering a period of transformative change, the need for a strategy to coordinate a 
wide range of initiatives and make best use of funding streams is urgent in order to maximise the 
potential benefits to the county borough. 
  
Whilst there are different routes to transformation the strategy recognises how important our 
Foundational Economy is.  The ‘Foundational Economy’ is an official name for business activities 
that we use every day and see all around us, such as shops, social and child care and food 
industries, energy and housing.  It is important this is not overlooked in partnership plans to 
regenerate the area because these sectors generally represent 40% of the labour market across 
the UK and make a substantial contribution to South Wales and Caerphilly county borough.   
The ‘Foundational Economy’ provides essential services whose loss would be felt and affect the 
well-being of our citizens whether it’s the loss of a village shop or the closure of a care home.  
The other benefits of this type of business is that it is relatively stable, so offers some protection 
against external economic shocks and is relatively evenly spread across Wales.    

 
The Strategy has a wide range of priorities from creating employment, promoting digital 
connectivity, increasing entrepreneurship and improving access to employment.  ‘A Foundation 
for Success’ identifies a series of actions that are required to deliver improvement and growth 
and this will form the basis of the Delivery Plan. The Strategy will be supported by a set of plans, 
one of which is the ‘Caerphilly Basin Master Plan’.  Along with aspects such as tourism and 
transport Caerphilly has the potential to be a key metro hub due to its central location in the 
region and the Master Plan sets out how this opportunity can be carried out.   The area of 
Caerphilly and Ystrad Mynach has been identified as a Strategic Hub by the Welsh Government 
Valleys Task Force as an area where public money can be focused to provide opportunities for 
the private sector to invest and create new jobs.  The Strategy provides the opportunity for the 
Council to coordinate its own activities but equally important is that it involves a multi agency 
approach and a commitment from partners to coordinate activity in order to achieve cost 
effectiveness, reduce duplication and maximise the benefits to the county borough. 

 
Regional ‘Skills for the Future’ CCRCD project   
 
A significant growth in skills shortage vacancies is forecast in key sectors (for example 
manufacturing, financial and construction) and in digital skills in almost all sectors. Furthermore 
employer surveys have cited untapped recruitment potential in the private sector, particularly 
amongst small and medium term enterprises, (SME’s) and reasons are wide ranging. SME’s are 
particularly significant to the regional economy as they make up about 95% of companies and are 
the biggest creator of jobs but at this time many face skills gaps and are experiencing recruitment 
issues. Increasing the number of apprenticeships and graduates is perceived as a challenge. There 
is also a lack of awareness of what is on offer and as we noted in our Education Objective, there 
are less students studying in areas such as engineering and digital skills.  Surveys of SME’s 
showed 71% would be interested in hiring apprentices with some additional support.  
 
Evaluations from other parts of the country that carried out school engagement and support for 
SME apprenticeships (Leeds City Region) estimated the long –term economic value of each 
apprenticeship was 22 times the initial cost of implementing apprenticeships.  
Graduate migration patterns routinely show low pay as a factor that causes graduates to leave 
Wales and cite the lack of opportunity to get well paid jobs in the private sector, which is causing 

Page 45



29 
 

an over reliance on the public sector.  The ‘Skills for the Future’ project looks to pilot a range of 
activities (building on existing practice) to include: a business and skills brokerage service, school 
engagement, access to apprenticeship and graduate internships, plus additional support and 
incentives for SME’s, to increase the number and range of employment opportunities and greater 
alignment between the skills of the labour market and the skills needed by industry.   
 
The Growth and Competitiveness Commission made recommendations that the Learning Skills 
and Innovation Partnership known as LSkIP (of which we are a member) under the umbrella of 
the proposed Employment and Skills Board could look to co-ordinate the current funding streams 
to invest in skills that support people from all ages into work.  This is important because existing 
workforces need upskilling so workers of today are included in future proofing the economy.  The 
Bevan Foundation, Joseph Rowntree Foundation and Growth and Competitiveness Commission 
all note that a targeted approach to careers advice could also help reduce poverty – which costs 
the Cardiff Capital Region an estimated £2.2bn a year.  This presents an exciting opportunity to 
make wide sweeping changes for the quality of life for people living, studying and working in the 
region. 

 

How we used the ‘5 ways of working’ to set this Well-being Objective?  
 
Involvement – Those that are involved in the achievement of this objective are many and 
diverse, from our WHQS contractors, to the Job Centre and the Department of Work and 
Pensions who refer people to us for our ‘triage service’ so we can find the best programme of 
help. We have an Education and Training Forum and a European Social Funding steering group 
that meets regularly to bring all the key partners together.  An area for development in achieving 
our objectives would be to enable greater involvement within the private sector to meet their 
needs in order to help people into sustainable jobs.   
 

Long Term - The objective is over 4-5 years but the benefits for upskilling and enabling people 
into sustainable and well paid jobs has a clear link to improving quality of life and lifting people 
out of poverty.  This begins with education such as literacy and numeracy and moves on through 
a range of experiences and skills to become work ready.  An area that presents a barrier to the 
long term planning is the life cycle of grant funding which is funded on a yearly basis. This means 
it can be unclear if the funding will be available after that time and often learning and training 
needs to take place over a longer period (2-3 years).  Changes to the period of government 
funding would enable better planning to take place to support this way of working.   
 

Collaborate – This objective cannot be achieved in isolation as it deals with the complexity of 
human nature, quality of life and wider economic determinants from a national and local level.  
The City Deal is a multi partnership programme which has a learning and skills sub group that  
aims to make sure the local current employment programmes connect to the wider needs which 
are recognised as ‘growth areas’ in business. In other words if there is growth in the economy, 
example in financial services, then the skills and training need to recognise and reflect this so 
they align.  Regeneration actions cannot be carried out in isolation, this objective is built on the 
principle of collaborating. 
 
Integration – In identifying this objective we have considered how this would support other 
organisations objectives and we found there is a significant benefit to other organisations 
objectives, such as the Job Centre and DWP whose purpose is to enable people into 
employment.  At a local level if there is more money going into the economy this supports local 

Page 46



30 
 

business. From a health perspective a satisfactory job and contribution to society have been 
shown to provide positive benefits in improving and sustaining good mental health which can 
reduce the need for mental health services.     
 
Prevention – The complexity of the problem we are trying to solve requires a long term and 
multi partnership approach, from helping young people in early years to education attainment 
and skills for adults such as digital skills, using our purchasing power and business contracts to 
promote apprenticeships, understanding the issues of planning at a town and county borough 
level to stimulate business growth, and to make sure we are joining up with relevant 
programmes like the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal.   
 
The potential Housing Investment Fund under the City Deal for example, looks at stimulating the 
SME sector by providing loan development funding and a Custom Build scheme to release 
smaller pots of public sector land.  This can safeguard and create new jobs by increasing the level 
of spend across the construction sector, it also makes connections by supporting SME’s through 
good quality housing and the ability to attract skilled workers so we connect what we do with 
what is needed to make the most of these transformative agendas.     

  

What steps will we take to achieve this Well-being Objective?  
 
There will be a detailed action plan to aid the delivery of this objective over the next 4-5 years.  
In the meantime below we highlight some of the main actions that we will take over this time:  

 

Outcomes    By When  
(2018-2023) 

1: Aim to reduce the impact of poverty by supporting people into better employment prospects 
2. Meet the targets of the European Social Fund programmes of getting people skilled and into 
work 

Develop the Communities First and Communities First Plus programme to meet the 
targets of sustainable employment.  
 

2018-2019 

Develop the Delivery Plan for the Foundation for Success Strategy which will identify 
actions from small scale projects through to major complex programmes. 

2018-2023 

Develop (following consultation) the Caerphilly Basin Master Plan. 
 

2018-2023 

3: The Council will use the value of its third party spend to bring greater social and economic 
regeneration to the communities we serve 

Develop the Councils Programme for Procurement. 
 

2018 

Develop appropriate guidance to assist suppliers on how to identify social and 
economic benefits. 

2018/19 
 

Develop an effective mechanism to record social and economic regeneration. 
 

2019 

4.Use investment in the housing stock to increase the number of skilled, qualified workers and 
tackle worklessness by providing apprenticeship, training and work placements with our            
in-house workforce and building contractors 

o Create apprenticeships and work placements in the Housing Repair Operations 
team linked to succession planning  and skill gap practices 

 
Annually 

Page 47



31 
 

Outcomes    By When  
(2018-2023) 

o Create apprenticeships, employment opportunities and work placements as 
part of the WHQS investment programme 

 

recurring 
from 2017 
onwards 

5. Ensuring local delivery of work programmes aligns and maximises opportunities from the ‘City 
Deal’. 

To agree to the principle of  
a) Creation of regional Housing Investment Fund that will help to support work for 
the small and medium size building sector.  
b) Agree the principle of a Custom Build scheme, Plot Shop. 
Once principles are agreed full business cases and governance arrangements would 
then be implemented.  
 

2018-19 

To agree as part of the CCRCD partnership the allocation of development funding to 
pilot a range of proposals for the ‘Skills for Future’ fund.  
 

2018 

 
Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 

 
A Prosperous Wales develops a skilled and well educated population. We need our young people 
and adults to have greater vocational or non vocational skills in order to have better paid jobs 
and job satisfaction that contribute to the community leading to a better quality of life.  This 
connects to our objective on transport and accessibility. An important part of employment is 
good transport infrastructure and links to provide easier access to well paid and sustainable jobs. 
This work is about helping all young people (and adults) reach their potential and so underpins a 
more Equal and Healthier Wales. Employment both locally and as part of the regional plans 
through a wide range of support maximises contribution towards a Globally Responsible Wales 

 
Success in this goal is fundamental to supporting a range of other public bodies, for example the 
Department of Work and Pensions has five objectives, two of which are to:  
1. Support economic growth and improved productivity by ensuring work always pays and 
people are supported to find and progress in work 
2. Help reduce the disadvantages faced by disabled people and people with health conditions 
through the welfare system and labour market.   
This is aligned with our own Regeneration Strategy and the goals of the City Deal.    

 
How we will resource this Well-being Objective 

 
 The Adult Education European Social Fund grant is currently £755,058 to April 2019 and 

match funded with Welsh Government direct grant to improve NEETS. 
 European Social Fund grant, currently £344,216 to April 2020. Match funded with Welsh 

Government direct grant to upskill low skilled and paid workforce throughout Caerphilly. 
 Communities for Work (ESF), £1,298.672, currently to December 2020. 
 Communities for Work Plus, currently £856,754 to April 2018-2019. (WG commitment 

to April 2020). 

Page 48



32 
 

 The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal is a £1.2 billion programme which has a range of 
allocations towards the various potential projects.  The Skills for the Future project has a 
provisional development allocation of £2,247, 882 if agreed in principle.  

 

 
When will the objective be completed? 
 
This objective will be ongoing as part of a whole county borough partnership approach. Many of 
the wider regeneration actions are based on projects that are judged at this time by completion 
of milestones and the effectiveness of them will need to be evaluated. However we will consider 
success when:  
 

 We have virtually all pupils in education, employment or training.  

 Employability targets (as given for the Bridges2 work and Inspire programme in the 
Education Objective are met or exceeded).  

 Employability targets for the Communities for Work programme are met or exceeded 
    

Outcome Measure 

1&2 Priority 1 (Adults aged 25+) 
Target 2018/19 Engagements 240, Job Entries 24   

1&2  Priority 1 (Adults aged 25+) 
Target for 2019/2020 Engagements 240, Job Entries 48  
 

1&2 Priority 3 (Young People/NEETS aged 16-24) 
Target 2018/2019 Engagements 96, Job Entries 96 
 

 Priority 3 (Young People/NEETS aged 16-24) 
Target 2019/2020 Engagements 48, Job Entries 48  
 

1&2 Employability aims for the new Communities for Work Plus programme are met or 
exceeded (actual targets are not yet confirmed) 
 

3 We will develop new Performance Measures as part of our developing ‘Programme 
for Procurement’  
 

4 The number of apprenticeships, work placements and employment opportunities 
provided 
 

4 WHQS - The number of apprenticeships, work placements and employment 
opportunities provided 
 

5 The Supporting People programme has 11 outcome measures one of which relates to 
people being engaged in employment or voluntary work – these are reported twice a 
year to Welsh Government 

 
 
 
 

Page 49



33 
 

For context we will also review the National indicators for Wales below as part of this overall 
objective 
 

   

General Well-being Indicators-  
  

 Source of Data 

Percentage of people in employment. Annual Population 
Survey 

Percentage of people in education, employment or training, measured for 
different age groups  

Welsh Government 
Measures of 
Participation 

Percentage of people living in households in material deprivation. National Survey of 
Wales  

Percentage of people living in households in income poverty relative to the 
UK median, measured for children, working age and those of pension age. 
 

DWP 

  
 

Other relevant information 
 
A ‘Valleys Taskforce’ was set up by the Welsh Government to look at how investment in the 
Valleys will be delivered over the next five years.  In particular the Taskforce will address 
uncertainties around investment funding, such as that previously received from the EU. The 
Taskforce will work closely with the Cardiff Capital Region to harness the potential of new 
initiatives such as the Metro, and to enhance the valleys’ unique and diverse landscape as a 
tourism destination.  
 
The main priorities for the Valleys Taskforce will be: eradicating poverty and, creating work and 
improving quality of life. Looking to the future the Taskforce will seek to create a sense of 
aspiration, vibrancy, and confidence in the future. 

 
As such a high level plan has been set up ‘Our Valleys, Our Future’, which is supported by £100 
million of Welsh Government investment over 10 years.  The Valleys Task Force Vision is to close 
the employment gap between the South Wales Valleys and the rest of Wales by helping an 
additional 7,000 people into work.     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



34 
 

 

 

  3. Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes 
throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help 
improve people’s well-being. 
 

Outcomes  

 1. All council housing is improved to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard by 
2020. 
 
2. Provide support to improve housing conditions in the owner-occupied sector.  
 
3.  Increase the provision of new, affordable, social housing that meet the ‘Lifetime 
Homes’ principles and identified needs, whilst supporting the governments’ 
innovative housing programme. 
 
4.  Deliver adaptations to support the health and well-being of people in their homes 
and maximise the delivery and appropriate use of accessible homes. 
 
5. Increase the supply of housing by supporting opportunities to bring long-term, 
empty homes back into use.  
 
6. Promote the development of a healthy and vibrant private rented sector as a viable 
housing option. 
 
7. Prevent homelessness and tackle rough sleeping. 
 
8.  Prevent tenancies from failing by providing a range of housing related support 
(including those affected by financial hardship, mental health issues or physical 
disabilities). 
 
9. Help reduce fuel poverty by making homes more energy efficient and providing 
people with advice on how best to heat their homes. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



35 
 

 
3. Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the 

county borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s 
Well-being 
 

Well-being Statement  
 
All statistical information in this paragraph has been accessed from Info Base Cymru and relates 
to Caerphilly county borough, unless specified otherwise.  There are 78,714 dwellings in the 
county borough (Mar 2016) –  13.8% local authority, 4.9% housing association 71.1% owner-
occupied and 10.3% privately rented.  36% of housing is terraced, which is above the all Wales 
average.  Average house prices have increased by £9,506 since September 2016 to £130,651 in 
September 2017.  The average weekly gross pay for full time workers is £488.80, below the all 
Wales average of £505.90. The percentage of working age people who are benefit claimants is 
17.3%, higher than the all Wales average of 14.4%.  Life expectancy for males (77.8) and females 
(81.2) is below the all Wales average (males 78.4 and females 82.3).  In 2016, there were 10.0 
deaths per 1,000 residents, compared with 10.6 for Wales.  The percentage of adults reported in 
the Welsh Health Survey as being currently treated for a mental illness was 16%, compared to 
13% for Wales. 
The issues we are trying to address through this objective are complex and multifaceted and 
cannot be addressed through one single action.  In this next section we outline, in turn, why we 
have chosen each outcome to realise the objective: 
 
1. All council housing is improved to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) by 
2020 
 

Research has consistently demonstrated a strong link between housing, health and well-being.  
Investment in the housing stock will allow the council to contribute to the health and well-being 
of the tenants, whilst fulfilling its statutory requirements.  The council has a housing stock of 
10,805 properties comprising approximately 13,000 tenants and is investing approximately 
£220m in bringing all homes up to the Welsh Housing Quality Standard by 2020.  The investment 
in the stock will contribute to our aim of improving homes, lives and communities. 
 
2. Provide support to improve housing conditions in the owner-occupied sector 
 
Nearly 70% of all housing in the county borough is owner-occupied.  The type and quality of the 
housing in the sector varies from traditional terraced housing to new private developments.  
Many households do not have sufficient income to maintain their home when it falls into 
disrepair and could be living in conditions, which are detrimental to their safety, health and well-
being.  Housing in disrepair can also have a negative visual and anti-social impact on 
communities in which they are situated. Various support measures are required to provide 
owners with affordable options for improving their properties.  
 
3. Increase the provision of new, affordable, social housing to meet identified needs whilst 
also supporting the government’s innovative housing programme 
 
Our most recent assessment of the housing market (2015) showed a requirement for affordable 
housing in the county borough by property type and size and area.  It showed that by far the 
largest requirement was for general needs, single person accommodation.  Over 5,000 

Page 52



36 
 

households are currently on the common housing register waiting to be rehoused.  The overall 
demand for affordable housing currently outstrips supply.  Funding from Welsh Government 
allows us to partially address identified needs, in partnership with the housing associations, 
through the housing development programme. Welsh Government has acknowledged the need 
to increase the number of affordable homes built in Wales to meet housing needs and has a 
target of 20,000 over its term of office.  It has ring-fenced funding under the innovative housing 
programme to develop homes for the future that are cheaper to heat, more environmentally 
friendly and capable of responding to demographic change.   
 
The funding allows house builders, housing associations and local authorities to explore new 
ways of working to build homes more quickly and more sustainable.  To date, two housing 
associations have received innovative housing funding to develop one scheme each in the county 
borough. Welsh Government have also made funding available under the Shared Ownership / 
Rent to Own model as well as Health and Housing model, designed to address the needs of older 
persons, children with complex needs, carers, persons with learning difficulties and dementia. 
 
Lifetime Homes is a set of standards that are required by Welsh Government when homes are 
built.  They are designed within the principles of inclusivity, accessibility, adaptability, 
sustainability and good value. This means for example wider doorways, sockets at wheel chair 
height and particular attention to the way movement would circulate in hallways and stairs.  It is 
based on a principle of ‘cradle to grave’ so homes can adapt to accommodate changing needs 
which means people do not have to be moved when life changes occur.  

 
In the longer term the Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet (CCRJC) are looking at agreeing a set 
of principles for a potential ‘Regional Housing Investment Fund’.  The CCRJC recognise that 
across the region we need more homes to be built and that finance can be a barrier particularly 
for small and medium term builders.  A flexible fund could support builders ranging from housing 
sites that may have stalled, to funding development of brownfield sites as this could help make 
builds more viable.   
 
If the principles of a ‘flexible fund are agreed, the CCRJC would explore working with Welsh 
Government and the Development Bank for Wales for ways to progress a ‘Housing Investment 
Fund’.  As a new idea and a long term aspiration this could come to fruition out of the time 
frames of this plan, however in adopting a greater forward thinking approach we recognise the 
power of this regional approach in supporting achievement of this outcome.  

       
4. Deliver adaptations to support the health and well-being of people in their homes and 
maximise the delivery and appropriate use of accessible homes 
 
Adaptations are provided to enable a disabled person to live safely and independently in their 
own home.  A suitable home also promotes good health and well-being.  Providing adaptations 
can reduce costs associated with social and health care.  Meeting the needs of disabled people 
complies with the council’s duties under the Equality Act 2010.  Welsh Government estimates 
show that for every £1 spent on housing adaptations a £7.50 saving is created for health and 
social services.  There is a lack of suitable housing in the county borough to meet the needs of 
disabled people and, as a result, disabled people may live in unsuitable accommodation.   
 
Accessible housing contributes to the health and well-being of the disabled person and their 
carers and promotes independence.  It also can reduce costs associated with social care for 

Page 53



37 
 

example through timely housing adaptation which can reduce admissions to residential care.   
Accessible housing is not only being created within new housing developments, but also as a 
result of significant investment in adaptations to existing properties  across all tenures to ensure 
that these properties are best used for those in need. 

 
5. Increase the supply of housing by supporting opportunities to bring long-term, empty homes 
back into use 
 
There are over 900 privately owned properties in the county borough that, for a variety of 
reasons, have been empty for longer than 6 months.  Whilst a healthy functioning housing 
market will include a proportion of vacant dwellings, empty properties are a wasted resource for 
both the owner and households seeking housing.  If left vacant and unmaintained the physical 
condition can deteriorate and the property may become a nuisance for people living in the 
locality.  Returning long-term empty properties into use can increase the supply of housing and 
lift the visual appearance of an area. Welsh Government has a target of returning 5,000 long-
term empty properties in the private sector back into beneficial use during its current term in 
office. 

 
6. Promote the development of a healthy and vibrant private rented sector as a viable housing 
option 
 
The size of the private rented sector in the county borough has doubled between the last two 
Censuses (from 4.3% to 10.7%).  The sector provides homes for many people and is predicted to 
grow larger than the social rented sector by 2020.  The condition of housing and the quality of 
management in the sector varies considerably, something which is being addressed by the 
introduction of new legislation, Rent Smart Wales and the council’s statutory enforcement 
function.  The development of a vibrant private rented sector provides options to meet people’s 
housing needs and contributes towards the successful delivery of council’s homelessness 
prevention function.  Good quality housing also contributes to good health and Well-being. 
 
7. Prevent homelessness and tackle rough sleeping 
 
Homelessness is detrimental to both physical and mental health.  Being homeless can increase a 
person’s chances of taking drugs or experiencing physical or mental health problems.  The law on 
homelessness changed in April 2015 requiring local authorities to adopt a more preventative 
approach.   Since this change the number of people in the county borough requiring assistance 
with their homelessness situation or known to be sleeping rough has increased, despite the 
additional services we have put in place.  Relieving homelessness and the need to sleep rough 
will reduce costs to the council, the criminal justice system and the health service.  
 
8. Prevent tenancies from failing by providing a range of housing related support (including 
those affected by financial hardship, mental health issues or physical disabilities) 
 
Research has shown that the incidence of poor mental health is higher for social housing tenants 
than homeowners.  Social landlords in the county borough have noted an increasing number of 
new tenants with a mental health condition requiring support to maintain their tenancy.  
Providing housing related support can help promote health and well-being, and prevent the 
tenancy from failing, which could result in homelessness or admission to hospital.  This could 
reduce costs associated with void properties, homelessness, social care and health. 

Page 54



38 
 

 
The Welfare Reform Act 2012 brought about wholesale reform of the benefits system.  Reforms 
include capping the amount of benefits households may receive, the so-called ‘bedroom tax’ 
affecting social housing tenants and Universal Credit, which combines several benefits into one 
payment, paid monthly.  The effects of the reform have been that many households have had 
their income reduced and may be struggling to pay their bills, eat healthily or adequately heat 
their homes.  A very high percentage of council housing tenants are benefit dependent and have 
been affected by the changes.  Providing support to tenants to mitigate the impact by helping to 
maximise income and budget effectively will help to sustain tenancies and contribute to the 
health and well-being of those affected by the reforms. The Supporting People programme 
currently supports approx. 5000 people to help them remain independent and in their own 
home with support on a range of areas such as budgeting, maximising income, access to services 
and finding work.  
 
9. Help reduce fuel poverty by making homes more energy efficient and providing people with 
advice on how best to heat their homes 
 
Fuel poverty affects people on low incomes who are unable to adequately afford to heat their 
homes.  People in fuel poverty will be more susceptible to poor health and well-being.  Rising 
energy costs mean that more people will be at risk of fuel poverty.  Many households in the 
county borough are on low incomes and may be struggling to adequately heat their homes.  
Providing advice to people on how best to heat their homes, making homes more energy 
efficient, including the development of new energy efficient homes, and the use of new 
technologies can help to reduce the overall level of fuel poverty in the county borough. 
 

How we used the ‘5 ways of working’ to set this Well-being objective  
 
Involvement – Given that a range of outcomes make up this objective, it is likely that there will 
be different groups associated with different outcomes.  In order to ensure the outcomes are 
successful we will involve a wide range of people including homeowners, private rented sector 
and council tenants, tenants and residents associations, Caerphilly Homes Task Group, private 
sector landlords, public sector bodies, housing associations and third sector organisations. The 
Supporting People programme commissions over 36 providers (such as Gofal, GAVO and Llamau) 
and runs approximately 86 projects and schemes. This involves many partners in helping people 
with a wide range of needs. 
 
Collaborate – In order to facilitate successful outcomes, we will collaborate with a range of 
different organisations and people.  These include Welsh Government, Rent Smart Wales, 
internally with other departments, regionally with other local authorities, building contractors, 
housing associations, third sector organisations, local churches, private sector landlords, empty 
property owners and Credit Unions.  We acknowledge that the constraint on public sector 
finances means that this is an area we will want to do more of to share resources and achieve 
joint outcomes. For example we commission the Citizens Advice Bureau to help people to 
become ‘confident with cash’ which support the long term for their quality of life and 
acknowledges the early prevention element of managing debt.  
 
Long term – Housing is a long-term social need and therefore, the housing and services we 
provide are set within this context.  The outcomes we are attempting to achieve in the short to 
medium term will ensure that housing is sustainable (cost, quantity, quality, condition and 

Page 55



39 
 

suitability) for people to occupy over the longer term, whilst minimising the effects on the 
environment and contributing to the health and well-being of our communities. Support for 
longer term solutions may be in part come from the City Deal and in particular the potential 
‘Housing Investment Fund’.  
 
Integration – Given that the provision of good quality housing is central to the good health and 
Well-being of the population, it is likely that this objective will impact on the successful outcome 
of other bodies’ objectives.  The provision of good quality housing is, therefore, likely to have a 
positive impact on the budgets and priorities of other public bodies such as the local health 
board.  
 
Prevention – Preventing people from becoming homeless by providing access to good quality 
accommodation and related services, creating communities that are sustainable and resilient, all 
impact positively on health and well-being.  The part of the objective that concentrates on 
improving homes (WHQS) will also help to tackle local unemployment and is detailed in our 
Employment Objective.  Lifetime Homes takes a ‘cradle to grave’ look at design of homes so is 
‘prevention in action’. 
 
The aim of improving lives and communities with an improved look and feel of the environment 
can help to prevent anti-social behaviour when people have pride in where they live.  The 
provision of specialist accommodation and adaptations for disabled people links closely to 
Health Services prevention agenda by reducing the need for hospital admissions / residential 
care placements.  
 
We run a Welsh Government funded ‘Supporting People’ programme which was introduced in 
2003. This service supports everyone to prevent homelessness and provides a wide range of 
housing related support for anyone who is homeless or potentially homeless.  Every service that 
is offered is based on the principle of prevention, from money advice to helping complete 
benefit forms, to providing support for women fleeing domestic violence to name just a few.  
Our Emphasis programme offers support to young people (aged 13-19) who are likely to or risk 
becoming homeless in order to prevent the homelessness occurring.  

 

What steps will we take to achieve this Well-being Objective?  
 

Outcomes  By When 

1.  All council housing is improved to meet the WHQS by 2020 

Develop a WHQS housing strategy. 2018 

o Deliver the annual capital investment programme for both internal and 
external works. 

o Ensure compliance with Charter for Trust standards. 
o Comply with Part 6 of the WHQS by undertaking environmental improvements 

to make communities attractive and safe. 
o Comply with Part 7 of WHQS by undertaking adaptations where a need is 

identified. 
o Agree a planned maintenance programme to ensure the WHQ Standard is 

maintained for the future post 2020. 

Annually 
recurring 
to 2020 
 
 
 
 
Post 2020 

Page 56



40 
 

2. Provide support to improve housing conditions in the owner-occupied sector 

o Administering assistance to home owners via loans and grant aid. 
o Working in partnership with credit unions to ensure loans for homeowners are 

affordable. 
o Provide assistance and raise awareness of homeowners as to the availability of 

financial assistance, via the Arbed scheme and other grant funded. 
Opportunities, to install external wall insulation and associated measures, 
boiler replacement and loft insulation if required.  

 

Annually 
recurring 

3. Increase the provision of new, affordable, social housing that meet the ‘Lifetime Homes’ 
principles and identified needs, whilst supporting the governments’ innovative housing 
programme. 
  

Produce a Housing Strategy which provides a framework for the provision of housing 
and related support. 

2018/19 

 
Complete the Local Housing Market Assessment which will identify the number, type 
and location of homes required and will help look at solutions. 

2017/18 
then 
every 2 
years 

Produce and submit quarterly to Welsh Government the programme delivery plan, 
based on the evidence of housing need. 
 

Every 
Year 

Obtain a decision by the Council in support of the development of new affordable 
homes.  
 

2018 

Review designation of council accommodation for smaller households in light of 
changing demands. 
 

2018/19 

Submit a bid to Welsh Government for Rent to Own/ Shared Ownership funding. 2018/19 

Housing associations to complete bid for innovative housing programme Phase 1 and 
submit planning applications. 

2018 

Housing associations complete bid for innovative housing programme Phase 2 
To submit planning application, Development to start on site - Phase 1. 

2018/19 

Start on site for innovative housing programme – Phase 2: 
 
o Develop 38 units to Passivhaus standard at the former Caerphilly Magistrate’s 

Court (Linc Cymru) 
o Develop 17 units to Passivhaus standard at the former Cwm Ifor primary 

school (United Welsh) 

2021/22 

Complete an evaluation of the Passivhaus and Beattie Passive schemes. 
2021/22 

Review quantity and quality of sheltered housing schemes and consider implementing 
remodelling options that better meet the needs and aspirations of older people. 
Complete options appraisal on remodelling of the 6 sheltered housing schemes. 
 

2021/22 

Page 57



41 
 

4. Deliver adaptations to support the health and well-being of people in their homes and 
maximise the delivery and appropriate use of accessible homes  

o Provision of appropriate minor works of adaptation across all tenures by 
expenditure of the available Social Services budget. 

o Provision of appropriate major works of adaptation in public and private 
sector housing via the spending of available capital funding and Welsh. 
Government ENABLE funding. 

o The provision of discretionary relocation grants in cases where the existing 
property is not suitable to adapt to meet the needs of the disabled resident. 

o Continued partnership working with Care and Repair enabling the elderly and 
infirm to receive additional assistance via a range of initiatives including the 
Rapid Response Adaptations Programme and Independent Living Grant.  

o Complete the ongoing categorisation exercise to identify accessibility levels of 
the social housing stock owned by the council and its partner landlords. 

o Develop enhancements to the common housing register in relation to the 
medical coding of properties available for social rent via both our own stock 
and that belonging to our partner landlords. 

o Improve accessibility of current stock that lends itself to meeting demand for 
accessible housing.  

o Work with housing association partners and the occupational therapist 
(housing) to deliver accessible housing. 

 

2018 -  
2023  

5. Increase the supply of housing by bringing long-term, empty homes back into use 
 

o Providing assistance to support bringing long-term empty homes in the private 
sector back into beneficial, use including loans. 

o Providing grant assistance to convert non-residential properties into 
residential properties in certain circumstances. 

o Demolition of empty homes in the private sector where the renovation of the 
property is no longer the most appropriate course of action. 

o Engagement and enforcement action against owners of long-term empty 
homes in the private sector, where appropriate, in order to return them into 
beneficial use. 

o Targeting the owners of empty properties with ad hoc initiatives such as letter 
drops and private sector leasing. 

 

As and 
when 
need 
arises 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Promote the development of a healthy and vibrant private rented sector as a viable housing 
option 

Provide assistance to and raise awareness of private sector landlords as to the 
availability of assistance, via the Arbed scheme and other grant funded energy 
initiatives, to install external wall insulation and associated measures, boiler 
replacement and loft insulation if required. 
 

2018/19 

Page 58



42 
 

o Administering financial assistance to landlords via loans and conversion grants. 
o Enforcement of housing legislation to ensure minimum standards are met in the 

private rented sector both in properties in single and multiple occupations, 
including repair, prohibition and demolition, where appropriate. 

o Working in partnership with Rent Smart Wales to drive up standards in the 
private rented sector. 

Annually 
recurring 

7. Prevent homelessness and tackle rough sleeping  

Work in partnership with local authorities in the region to produce a Regional 
Homelessness Strategy and local action plan. 

2018/19 

Pilot a shared housing project for single people under 35 and evaluate its success. 2018/19 

Provide tenants with floating support to assist with tenancy sustainment.  Ongoing  

To undertake a Church’s night shelter project between (December to March) each 
year to help tackle rough sleeping.  

2018-
2023 
 

Work in partnership with the Rough Sleepers Coordinating group to provide support 
for rough sleepers through tackling underlying needs e.g. substance misuse. 
  

Annually 
recurring 

Run the Emphasis and Family Safety/ Emphasis projects which focuses on elements of 
housing outcomes of both family support and preventing 13-19 year olds becoming 
homeless. 

2017-
2020 

 
8. Prevent tenancies from failing by providing a range of housing related support (including those 
affected by financial hardship and mental health issues or physical disabilities) 
 

Provide training for all frontline housing staff in mental health training and to support 
people sustaining their tenancies. 

2018/19 

As part of the review our housing management policies and procedures take into 
consideration of mental health issues. 

2018/19 

o Work with mental health organisations to review signposting arrangements. 
o Work closely with the Supporting People Team to identify additional support 

services. 
o Coordinate advice offered to ensure that there is no duplication or gaps. 
o Review the information we provide on our website to ensure it is up-to-date. 
o Provide help to tenants to enable them to budget effectively, to claim the 

correct welfare benefits and to mitigate the consequences of welfare reforms. 
o Refer tenants in need of money and debt advice to the right agencies. 
o Provide advice to tenants on energy usage and other measures to help save 

money.  

Annually 
recurring 

Run the ‘Confident with Cash’ project (provided by Citizen’s Advice) to provide 
finance / debt management and welfare benefit to families who have disabilities or 
are part of ‘team around the family’ projects.  Run similar projects to support those 
families with housing related needs.  

2018-
2020 

Page 59



43 
 

Explore potential model of ‘Housing First’ to reduce the level of homelessness for 
people who are unable to maintain tenancies due to mental health, substance 
misuse or chaotic lifestyles. 
 

2018/19 

Continue to commission specific agencies to assist those with benefit claims and 
appeals including Employment Support Allowance and Personal Independence 
Payment.  

2018-
2023 

9. Help reduce fuel poverty by making homes more energy efficient and providing people with 
advice on how best to heat their homes 
 

Submit bids to the Welsh Government under Arbed or other energy efficiency 
initiative funding to carry out energy efficiency improvements in the private and 
public sector.    

2017/18 

Provide advice to tenants on energy saving measures and energy usage and 
installations 

Upon 
request 

 

Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 
 
This objective is wide ranging and multifaceted.  We know that the provision of good quality 
housing and related services has positive health and well-being outcomes, provides a safe and 
secure place to live, promotes vibrant and sustainable communities, provides employment and 
training opportunities and minimises the impact on the environment.   
 
Achievement of this objective supports education improvement because good homes and 
neighbourhood conditions can help young people to achieve. Reduced exposure to traffic, noise 
and air pollution and designing homes with minimum energy needs (water, fuel) contributes to a 
healthier Wales and one of cohesive communities.  
Housing can be designed so people can be physically active in their homes and research shows 
there are links between housing issues and physical and mental well-being, particularly linked to 
poverty, which is recognised within the Welsh Government’s ‘Prosperity for All’ National 
Strategy 2017 as housing is one of the strategy’s priority areas.    
We have identified that the successful accomplishment of this objective maximises contribution 
to all the 7 National Well-being Goals.  
 

How we will resource this Well-being Objective 
 

We will resource our actions using a range of different funding sources some of which are noted 
below: 

 

 WHQS investment programme using rent paid by our tenants, monies from Welsh 
Government (Major Repairs Allowance), prudential borrowing and any other income we 
may receive. 

 Providing apprenticeship places, employment opportunities and work placements using 
the Housing Revenue Account and WHQS funding. 

 Affordable housing development using Social Housing Grant funding from Welsh 
Government (capital and revenue) and private funding accessed by the housing 
associations. 

Page 60



44 
 

 Piloting the build of energy efficient, sustainable homes using Innovative Housing 
Programme funding bids from Welsh Government and private funding accessed by 
housing associations. 

 Providing adaptations using Welsh Government and Council funding (General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account). 

 Improving conditions in the private rented and owner-occupied sectors using funding 
from Welsh Government and the Council (General Fund). 

 Supporting the return to use of long-term empty properties in the private rented sector 
using funding from Welsh Government and the Council (General Fund). 

 Preventing homelessness and tackling rough sleeping using transitional funding from 
Welsh Government and Council funding (General Fund). 

 Supporting People Programme is funded by Welsh Government grant £6,232,790 (please 
see comment on page 22 about changes to the way these programmes are funded). 

 Providing support to tenants using funding from the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Supporting People programme. 

 Training will be provided to existing staff on safeguarding, mental health, energy efficiency 
and financial management 

 Support will be provided to residents by using existing staff including tenant liaison 
officers, tenant support officers, liaison officers and estate management officers.  

 Reducing fuel poverty by raising awareness of and using energy efficiency grant funding 
from Welsh Government, WHQS funding and external sources of funding, for example 
energy companies. 

 
There are a number of challenges, varying in size and complexity, which may affect the 
successful outcome of this objective.  For many of these challenges the Council has little or no 
influence over.   
 
The main challenges include national economic, welfare and housing policy frameworks (Welsh 
and UK Government), demographic changes, staff capacity to priorities existing tasks and take 
on new tasks, the requirement to satisfy the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan priorities 
and in-house expertise to make best use of exploring new and emerging technologies. 

 
When will the objective be completed? 
 
Developing sustainable housing and housing related services is an ongoing journey and, 
although, methods and government policy may change, the cause and effect on well-being 
within housing does not have an end date.  However, over the next 5 years we will have made 
significant progress when the following actions have been successfully completed: 
 

Objective Success  
 

Date  

We have completed the Local Housing Market Assessment (which will provide an 
evidence base for our Housing Strategy) going forward. 

2017/18 

We have a completed Housing and Regional Homeless strategy which we are 
delivering on.  

2018/19 

The WHQS investment programme for Caerphilly Homes is completed 
 

2020/21 

We have completed the Local Housing Market Assessment (evidence base for 
Housing Strategy) which will complete with the Gypsy and Traveller 

 
2020/21 

Page 61



45 
 

Accommodation Assessment. 

We have completed a review of our common housing register to ensure it is 
effective. 

2018/19 

We have successfully worked in collaboration with our housing association 
partners to provide new affordable homes. 

2018-23 

We have provided a homelessness prevention service. 2018-23 

We have contributed to bringing long-term empty homes back into use. 2018-23 

Innovative Housing Programme phases 1 & 2 are completed 2020/21 

All homes provided by social landlords have been categorised using the 
accessibility coding system. 

2019/20 

We have increased the supply of accessible homes  2018-2023 

We have provided adaptations to support tenants / residents to remain in their 
homes.  
 

Where 
required 

 
In addition to monitoring success of projects we will use the following performance indicators to 
measure how we are performing.  For some of the indicators we are unable to set targets as 
performance is linked to the demand or use of a service.   
 
We will regularly monitor performance to ensure that we stay on course to meet the desired 
outcomes.  
 

Outcome Measure 

1 No. of homes compliant with WHQS (fully, external and internal elements) 

1 The percentage of tenants whose homes have been improved internally who are 
satisfied with completed WHQS works 

1 The percentage of tenants whose homes have been improved externally who are 
satisfied with completed WHQS works 

2,7,8 11 Outcome measures from the Supporting People programme based on wider 
determinants of homelessness prevention. 

3 Increased number/size/type of new, affordable homes delivered through the housing 
associations or the Council, including how the home was delivered - e.g. via IHP etc. 

3 Completion of the sheltered housing options appraisal and the number of sheltered 
housing schemes where the outcome has been implemented 

3 The number of homes delivered through the Innovative Housing Programme 

4 Increase the percentage of social housing stock that has an accessibility code 

4 Increased number of accessible, social homes provided. 

4 The number of adaptations provided (Enable, major and minor works) 

5&6 The number of grants/loans provided to improve housing in the private sector (e.g. 
Houses into Homes, Home Improvement loans, conversion grants, Home Repair 
grants and HMO loans) 

5 Increase the number of long-term private sector empty homes brought back into 
beneficial use 

7 The number of homelessness cases by outcome (sections 66, 73 & 75) 

7 The number of homelessness instances prevented through successful mediation 

8 The number of mortgage rescue cases completed 

Page 62



46 
 

8 Number of tenants visited and provided with support and advice to help mitigate the 
effects of welfare reform 

8 Number of council tenants supported to access the benefits they are entitled to 

8 Value of financial savings (£) generated for council tenants as a direct result of 
support 

9 Number of council tenants visited and provided with advice regarding energy saving 
measures and energy use 

9 Number of council properties provided with energy efficiency measures as a result of 
external grant funding by type of measure 

9 The amount of external funding (£) accessed by the council for home energy efficiency 
improvements 

9 The number of residents referred to the Nest scheme for energy efficiency advice 
 

 
For context we will also review the National indicators for Wales below as part of this overall 
objective 
 

   

General Well-being Indicators-    Source of Data 

Percentage of dwellings which are free from hazards Annual Housing Hazards and 
Licences data collection.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



47 
 

 
 

 4. Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system 
that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse 
impacts on the environment 
 
  

Outcomes    

   
 
1. Work with the delivery of the South East Wales Metro, aiming for 
the Valley Lines Electrification programme as part of the delivery of the 
wider South East Wales Metro scheme. 
 
 

  2. Develop the CCBC Regeneration Strategy  and Delivery Plan with 
connectivity at its heart, promoting accessibility, the Metro and digital 
and Broadband improvements that support innovation and improves 
accessibility for all.  

   

  3. Promote the reinstatement of passenger services to the Nelson to 
Ystrad rail line under the Metro programme. 
 
 

  4. Promote the reinstatement of the Caerphilly to Newport rail line as 
part of the Metro programme. 
 
 
5. Promote a sustainable bus network that supports accessibility and 

connectivity both locally and regionally through a road network that 

encourages efficient bus operation. 

 

  6. Maximise transport connectivity within and between modes by 

integrating the delivery of the CCB Active Travel Plan with the Metro 

to improve bus, rail, walking and cycling provision to increase 

accessibility and add value to the Metro proposals. 

 

   

   

 

 

Page 64



48 
 

 

4.  Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that 
increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimise the adverse impacts on 
the environment 
 

Well-being Statement    
 
“The current infrastructure is not coping. There’s too much traffic congestion. The infrastructure 
(roads, trains, shops) needs developing before new developments start” (Participant at the 
Viewpoint Panel event 11th July 2016) 
 
In 2015 there were 39,100 commuting trips outside of the county borough on a daily basis whilst 
there were 18,900 commuting trips into the county borough. Overall, there is net out-commute 
of 20,200 to jobs outside of the county borough, with the most popular destinations being 
Cardiff and Newport, whilst Rhondda Cynon Taff is the origin of the most  in-commuting trips, 
closely followed by Cardiff and Blaenau Gwent. This shows that whilst the strongest commuting 
flows are between the county borough and Cardiff, there is also significant commuting in the 
Cardiff Capital Region and across the Valleys.  Feedback, that came up on many occasions from 
community engagement events for both the Local Development Plan and the Local Well-being 
Assessment, was that there was a perception of limited public transport opportunities for 
moving from east to west within or outside the county borough, and therefore it is possible to 
assume that the majority of lateral journeys are undertaken by car. 
Travel distance to job and training opportunities is an important factor in determining access to 
employment. Barriers raised by our residents in relation to public transport availability and the 
associated costs could exacerbate the need to use the car as the primary means of travel for 
employment.   

 

The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal will provide the most important funding opportunity in 
South Wales’ history. City Deal aims to stimulate the local economy, and that of the wider South 
East Wales region, for current and future generations. The £1.2bn City Deal formally signed on 
15th March 2016 by the ten constituent local authorities, Welsh Government and the 
Westminster Government sets out the intention to deliver 25,000 new jobs levering in £4 billion 
of private sector investment across the region.  
 
The City Deal consists of a £500m loan from UK Government, with a similar contribution from 
the Welsh Government, and the remainder coming from the ten constituent local authorities in 
the region, including Caerphilly County Borough Council. The constituent local authorities have 
set up the Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet, which will take the lead and will be the decision 
making body tasked with delivering the City Deal.   
 
The City Deal will provide local partners with the powers and the resources to unlock significant 
economic growth across the Cardiff Capital Region. It is a deal that builds on the region’s sectoral 
strengths, its high skill base and three successful universities. The City Deal provides an 
opportunity to continue tackling the area’s barriers to economic growth and its aims are:  

 Improving transport connectivity;  

 Increasing skill levels still further;  

 Supporting people into work;     

 Giving business the support they need to innovate and grow; 

Page 65



49 
 

 

In further detail this will include:  

 

 £1.2 billion investment in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure – a key priority 
for investment will be the delivery of the Metro, including the Valley Lines 
Electrification Programme.  

 Connecting the region – the Cardiff Capital Region has established a new non-
statutory Regional Transport Authority to coordinate transport planning and 
investment, in partnership with the Welsh Government.  

 Support for innovation and improving the digital network – to develop the 
capabilities in compound Semiconductor applications the UK Government will invest 
£50 million to establish a new Catapult Centre in Wales. The Cardiff Capital Region will 
also prioritise investment in research and development and provide support for high 
value innovative businesses.  

 Developing a skilled workforce and tackling unemployment – the Cardiff Capital 
Region Skills and Employment Board will be created (building on existing 
arrangements) to ensure skills and employment provision is responsive to the needs of 
local businesses and communities. The Cardiff Capital Region and the Welsh 
Government will work with the Department for Work and Pensions to co-design the 
future employment support from 2017, for people with a health condition or disability 
and/or the long term unemployed.  

 Supporting enterprise and business growth – a Cardiff Capital Region Business 
Organisation will be established to ensure that there is a single voice for business to 
work with local authority leaders.  

 Housing development and regeneration – the Welsh Government and the Cardiff 
Capital Region commit to a new partnership approach to strategic planning. This will 
ensure the delivery of sustainable communities, through the use and re-use of 
property and sites.  

 

A key factor in achieving City Deal’s ambitious economic growth objectives is increasing 
accessibility and connectivity throughout the City Region, linking the population to 
employment opportunities. The largest proportion of the City Deal budget will be used to fund 
the Metro, the regional public transport proposals that aim to increase connectivity throughout 
the region and other parts of the country and to reduce journey times, particularly to Cardiff.   
 
At the time of publishing the Joint Cabinet of the City Region agreed to invest £40m of funding 
towards a new Cardiff Central railway station. As the electrification of the valley lines will see 
far more frequent train journeys up and down the valleys, the capacity of Cardiff Central 
station is crucial to the smooth running of the region and the capital city on a national basis.   
 
The vision of the Metro is 

“Metro is a new transport system that will transform the way we travel around the Cardiff 
Capital Region. It will provide faster, more frequent and joined-up services using trains, buses 
and light rail. Metro will bring benefits to passengers, link communities together and help 
transform the economy. It will have a positive social, economic and environmental effect. It will 
also shape our region’s identity.” 

 
The Metro seeks to deliver a minimum of 4 services per hour across the whole of the network 
through integration between trains, buses and, potentially, light rail. The Metro will integrate 

Page 66



50 
 

ticketing to provide a single ticket system and will link with the active transport network to 
increase connectivity to employment and other facilities and services 
 
We recognise the important role of the bus in achieving our aspirations for a reduced carbon 
footprint, improved local and regional accessibility and helping to reduce  congestion. 
Congestion is one of the main barriers to the provision of efficient and reliable bus services and 
we need to address local congestion hotspots and work on a regional basis to reduce the 
impact that congestion has on key route corridors into key destinations to achieve faster, more 
direct bus services that offer a real alternative to travelling by car. The Council is taking a lead 
role in the installation and management of new generation ticket machines for smaller 
operators throughout Wales on behalf of the Welsh Government, which will provide smaller 
bus operators opportunities to support digital ticketing systems, contactless payment and real 
time information provision.  This will complement the recent investment in similar 
infrastructure made by the larger bus operators and provide the platform that will promote 
integrated ticketing and information systems.   

Journey time is an important factor in determining accessibility to employment by public 
transport. The concerns raised by our residents in relation to the provision and cost of public 
transport will only reinforce the use of the car as the primary mode for employment based 
trips. Caerphilly County Borough Council supports the Capital Region’s commitment to a low 
carbon future, which has a transport network and mobility culture that positively contributes to 
a thriving economy and the health and well-being of its citizens, and where sustainable travel is 
the option of choice.   
 
Good transport is crucial in improving access to job opportunities and enhancing general       
Well-being for local people. In order to deliver City Deal it is essential that the region is served 
by a fast and efficient transport system that can link its people to employment opportunities, 
and services and facilities throughout the region.  As a result, the Metro, the programme aimed 
at delivering this transport system, is included as part of the City Deal.  
 

An essential part of the delivery of the network is its expansion, using the re-instatement of 
former transport routes and the creation of new ones, to provide an expanded and connected 
transport infrastructure for the Region. We want to protect disused rail lines from any adverse 
development or incompatible uses to ensure their future use for transport purposes is not 
comprised for future generations. We are actively pursuing the reinstatement of passenger 
services on two former passenger lines, the Cwmbargoed rail line between Ystrad Mynach and 
Bedlinog and the Machen line between Caerphilly and Newport.  
 
The Cwmbargoed line, whilst operating as a freight line for the Ffos-Y-Fran mineral extraction 
works, remains as the last significant rail line within the county borough that does not have 
passenger services. The Cwmbargoed line links Nelson to Ystrad Mynach and the services on 
the Rhymney Valley line.  Reinstatement of this line for passenger services would facilitate 
movements to and from Nelson, particularly for the proposed employment uses at Ty Du. 
Whilst the line is identified in the Metro Phase 3, the reinstatement of this line is dependent 
upon the use of the line for freight as there is no appropriate provision for the passing of 
passenger and freight trains. 
 
The Machen line originally ran from the eastern side of Caerphilly, through Machen to Newport 
Station.  There were concerns regarding its reinstatement but, as part of its rail review in 2013 
SEWTA, the South-East Wales Transport Authority, undertook a desktop feasibility study for the 

Page 67



51 
 

line and found that it was possible for the line to be brought back for passenger services. The 
reinstatement of this line is critical as it would be the first line to link east to Newport, rather 
than south to Cardiff, and would open the transport network wider across the region.  
 
Our Active Travel Plan which addresses walking and cycling, is important in promoting healthier 
lifestyles and reducing the negative impacts of traffic upon our neighbourhoods and 
communities.  It is Welsh Government policy to seek to maximise the use of active travel for 
short distance trips and improvements to walking and cycling networks should increase local 
accessibility to facilitate this change.  
 
The Wales and Border rail franchise is due to be renewed in 2018 and is currently the subject of 
a bidding process for potential operators.  As well as being responsible for delivering the rail 
services set out in the franchise, the successful bidder will also be responsible for delivering the 
rail/light rail/tram elements of the Metro.  As a result the successful bidder for the franchise 
will have a significant input into the direction and nature of the Metro improvements. Key 
issues, such as whether the main element of the system will be rail or light rail/tram or even 
bus, are still to be determined and the necessary certainty for planning Metro improvements 
will not be possible until the successful bidder has been identified.  
 
At the relevant time within the process (as noted above) we will be promoting integrated train 
lines and ticketing.  The ability for customers to travel and pay for a ticket for their whole 
journey irrespective of different travel companies (such as bus and rail) would provide a 
seamless service for travellers and has worked well in other cities.   
 
The Capital Region suffers from increasing levels of congestion that adds significant costs onto 
the economy of the region and is one of the most significant barriers to efficient and reliable 
bus operation.  Further to this the public transport network is not fit for the purpose of 
connecting people to employment, health, recreation and leisure services throughout the 
region. City Deal and the key elements in addressing these issues, increasing connectivity and 
accessibility, particularly to employment opportunities, which itself is a key element in tackling 
social disadvantage. The provision of access to employment opportunities is, therefore, a 
fundamental element in improving the future prospects for the county borough residents  

 

How we used the ‘5 ways of working’ to set this Well-being objective? 
 
Involve - The delivery of a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system will involve the 
collaboration of a large number of bodies, including the 10 Capital-Region local authorities, 
both regionally and individually, the private and third sectors. Delivering a transport system 
that improves accessibility to employment and other services will require the involvement of a 
wide range of disciplines, from a wide range of bodies 
 
Collaborate - This is multi collaborative approach as noted above between public and private 
sector including the successful rail franchise and bus operators along with both Welsh and 
Westminster Governments.  Although this objective focuses on the Metro and transport it is in 
the wider sense about accessibility so we will be involved in the collaboration around the digital 
strategy as part of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, which is an exciting aim to become part 
of a world class digital connectivity which would support businesses, employment, schools at a 
regional and local level and has the potential to change the way we live and work. At a regional 
level a strategic ‘dark fibre network’ (DFN) which is an ‘untapped resource’ could be in part 

Page 68



52 
 

owned as a public asset.  To be able to become an ‘open city region’ commonly called the 
‘internet of things’ such as wearable technology and driverless cars would depend on the 
future development of the DFN.    

 

Long term - Transport improvements will continue for at least 10 years as the City Deal is set 
over a 10 year period and regional planning has a 20 year framework so the objective will be 
framed over the long term.  It may be 2-3 years before any actions are to take place but the 
long term benefits, if realised, will significantly affect travel, carbon emissions and employment 
opportunities. The Metro is envisaged as evolving and expanding transport system that will 
require continual investment and improvement beyond these periods to fully realise its 
objectives. 

 
Integrate - The Strategic Regional Strategy will look at how the whole region can benefit from a 
range of ‘joined up’ activity including how transport can help with economic growth and be 
part of wider planning of well-being benefits which will help the objectives of a wide range of 
public service bodies, such as Health Services.  Future internet network cabling could be 
installed by default on all public sector infrastructure projects including the Metro which would 
contribute to the Welsh Government’s aspirations to progress towards world class digital 
connectivity.   

 
Prevention - People have told us in our range of consultations that lack of accessible transport 
is a real barrier to employment opportunities. The provision of an affordable, efficient and  low 
carbon based transport system that seeks to minimise journey times and increase connectivity 
and accessibility will also help support residents in accessing better employment opportunities, 
contributing towards the City Deal objectives of economic growth.  

 
What steps will we take to achieve this objective? 

 

 By When  

Delivery of the South East Wales Metro, including the Valley Lines 
Electrification programme.  Delivery of the wider South East Wales 
Metro scheme 
 

Phase 1 – setting up 
completed 
Phase 2 – 2017-23 
Phase 3 – post 2023 

A new non statutory Regional Transport Authority will co-ordinate 
transport planning and investment, in partnership with the Welsh 
Government.  

1st board meeting held 
on 25/01/18. 

Place Making Project, building up ‘station hubs’ near metro (transport 
hubs) for connecting jobs to places.  This is a wider regional action. 

Transport for Wales 
2023 

At a local level Implement our vision for a new / high quality 
integrated transport hub that replaces the current bus and rail 
facilities    

2018-2023 

Sign off the Regional Transport Authority Strategic Business Plan.   Signed by March 2018 

Produce Integrated Network Maps for Active Travel routes. 
This is a 15-year plan for improving walking and cycling routes across 
the county borough  

Approval from Welsh 
Government in 2018 
 

Page 69



53 
 

 By When  

Develop a CCBC Regeneration Strategy  to support connectivity of  
transport, Metro, digital and broadband services 

Summer 2018 

Protect the routes of former rail lines from development that could 
prejudice their future transport use and actively promote 
reinstatement of former passenger services, particularly on the 
Cwmbargoed and Newport-Caerphilly (Machen) rail lines through the 
Metro programme.  

Protection of routes is 
ongoing. 
Reinstatement possibly 
towards the end of the 
15yr programme. 

Improve and expand station facilities through the provision of 
improved Park & Ride facilities and walking and cycling links to make 
train services more accessible.  Reduce congestion and carbon 
emissions from existing and new rail station by increasing parking at 
Ystrad Mynach Station; significant new parking provision at the 
proposed Llanbradach Parkway Station on the Rhymney line and a 
new car park to complement the proposals for a new station at 
Crumlin on the Ebbw Valley line.   

Ongoing schemes 
determined by 
bid/funding availability 

Delivery of new ticket machine infrastructure based on GPS 
technology for the smaller bus operators in Wales.  Implementation 
throughout Wales planned during the first half of 2018.  Will provide  
a wider platform for real time, vehicle tracking and integrated ticket 
solutions (including contactless transactions) in future. 
 

2018 for installation of 
basic ticketing platform. 
Further development 
dependent on funding 

Develop and deliver a programme of bus priority corridors in 
partnership with the bus operators through measures that address 
the main congestion hotspots to improve reliability and reduce 
journey times 

Phase 1: 2017/18 list of 
priority corridors 
confirmed through 
CCRTA; Phase 2 – 2018 – 
2023 feasibility, design 
and delivery through 
CCRTA and Metro. 

 

 

 
Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 

 
A Prosperous Wales and a more Resilient Wales would supported by this objective as it will 

generate employment opportunities within a low carbon environment. 

A more Equal Wales where everyone can get around and access employment or other 

opportunities will improve.  The Metro, supported by local active travel proposals, will increase 

accessibility and connectivity to vital destinations such as employment opportunities and other 

services and facilities, which will all contribute significantly to increasing prosperity through 

economic growth.  The Welsh Government in their ‘Prosperity for All’ national strategy have 

made skills and employability one of their priority areas, travel and access is an important way to 

enable the connection between jobs and people.  The Welsh Government is seeking to increase 

the number of shorter, more local trips, that are undertaken by walking and cycling (including 

the use of mobility scooters), termed active travel.  Active travel trips will include journeys to 

school, to work, to the shops or to local services such health or leisure centres. Increasing active 

Page 70



54 
 

travel will have the important additional benefits of promoting healthier lifestyles and reducing 

the negative impacts of traffic upon our neighbourhoods and communities. This contributes to a 

Healthier Wales, because the Metro programme will have a low carbon, fast and efficient 

transport system that increases accessibility and connectivity, linking people to employment 

opportunities and realised benefits of the City Deal maximises our contribution to a Globally 

Responsible Wales.  A Wales of Cohesive Communities would benefit as this objective will 

ensure better connected communities through integrated transport at a local and regional level.   

 
How we will resource this Well-being objective  
 
This City Deal reconfirms the continued shared ambition of both Government’s and the Cardiff 

Capital Region to deliver the first 2 phases of the wider Metro scheme. £325 million of the £1.2 

billion Investment Fund has already been committed to the delivery of this scheme (£125 million 

from the UK Government, £94 million from the Welsh Government and £106 million from the 

European Regional Development Fund).  

 
The delivery of further phases of the Metro scheme means that the Welsh Government will    

pre-allocate over £400m further funding from the Investment Fund for its delivery, with the 

necessary design work ongoing.  As part of this City Deal the Welsh Government commits to 

involving the Cardiff Capital Region in the co-design of the wider Metro scheme and in the 

procurement of a delivery organisation.  

 
Wider Investment Priorities - The remaining element of the Investment Fund will be used to take 

forward a wide range of projects and schemes that support economic growth across the Cardiff 

Capital Region. Decisions on the prioritisation of these schemes will be taken by the Cardiff 

Capital Region Cabinet. Schemes taken forward could include: further phases of the Metro; 

investment to unlock housing and employment sites; and development of research and 

innovation facilities.  Integrated ticketing for Caerphilly and Flintshire Council has been grant 

funded by Welsh Government. 

 
Local Authorities have produced an Integrated Network Map (INM) which is a statutory duty and 

provides an aspirational map that sets out Caerphilly CBC’s Active Travel proposals for the next 

15 years. The development and delivery of the routes shown on the INM will be dependent on 

the availability of funding for Active Travel schemes. 

 

When will this objective be completed?  
 
The City Deal programme is over a ten year period but the benefits if realised will be 

generational (25 years) or longer with a range of milestones along the way.  Most of the 

measures for this objective are project based and measured at this time on milestones. This 

means specific measures on the success of the objective will be developed as the programmes 

develop or linked to other measures in other objectives such as the ‘Enabling employment’ 

Objective.  

 

Page 71



55 
 

  
 
5. Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle 
 
  

Outcomes 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Aim to reduce inequalities in health across the county borough 
 
2. Creating a place that supports a healthy lifestyle. 
  Including -  

 Contributing towards the Welsh Government target to reduce 
smoking prevalence rates to 16% by 2020  

 Reducing the overweight and obesity rates in children  
 Understand and address what helps to encourage people to 

become more physically active  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Healthy 
Spaces  

Outdoor 
recreation 
& Country 

Parks  

Parks and 
Play  

Education 
of healthy 

lifestyle  

Sports 
and 

Leisure  

Clean 
Places  

Page 72



56 
 

 
5. Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle 
 

Well-being Statement  
 
Our data shows that residents living in areas of higher deprivation have statistically higher 
levels of ill health and live more years in poor health compared to those who live in the least 
deprived areas.   
 
Life expectancy varies considerably according to where people live within the county borough. 
Data between 2005 and 2009 evidences the gap for healthy life expectancy, between those 
residents living in our most and least deprived communities, was 18.6 years for males and 16.2 
years for females. More recent data, between 2010 and 2014, shows that this gap has been 
reduced to 13 years for males and 14.6 years for females, but it remains significant.  
 
Unhealthy lifestyles arise, at least in part, due to the inequalities in the circumstances in which 
people are born, grow up, live and work. There is still much work to be done to reduce these 
inequalities. 
 
A significant amount of partnership working has taken place over recent years and has 
contributed towards this improvement in health inequalities. However it is important to note 
that there have been recent changes that have altered the operational focus of this work. This 
brings with it both challenges and opportunities i.e. changes to Communities First, Flying Start 
and continuing budget reductions, so we have to look at different ways to support improved 
health and influence where we can.   
 
An individual’s lifestyle behaviour can affect their risk of ill-health and premature death. 
Smoking is currently the largest single preventable cause of ill health and death in Wales. It 
directly contributes to health inequalities as nearly a third of residents in our most deprived 
areas smoke (29%) compared to 11% in our least deprived areas. 18% of adults in Caerphilly 
county borough report being a smoker (2016/17). This has reduced from 23% in 2010/11 and is 
slightly under the Welsh average of 19%, and mirrors the national downward trend.  
 
Obesity – By 2050 it is predicted that 60% of adult men and 50% of adult women will be obese 
and 25% of children under 16 will be obese. The percentage of adults who are overweight or 
obese within Caerphilly county borough was the highest in Gwent (63%) in 2014/15 and higher 
than the Wales average of 59% (2014/15). Rates of obesity in Gwent are rising faster than 
Wales as a whole. Health conditions associated with obesity include Type II diabetes, coronary 
heart disease, high blood pressure, stroke and cancers.  
 
Wider impacts include less contribution to family life and community; reduced employment 
opportunities; less income; reduced productivity and absenteeism; poor school performance 
and poor mental well-being.  Over a quarter (2014/15) 27% of children aged 4/5 in Caerphilly 
county borough are overweight or obese. This is higher than both the Gwent and Wales 
average and alarmingly higher than any English region.   
 
Obesity harms children in the short term, but as up to 80% of children go on to become obese 
adults, childhood obesity also harms life chances.  

 

Page 73



57 
 

 
Public Health Wales also found that overweight and obesity amongst 4-5 years olds increases 
as deprivation increases.  This means there is a strong economic case for investing in the early 
years of life as early years programmes are often less expensive than the services needed to 
address the physical, mental, behavioural and socio-economic consequences of poor early child 
development in addition to improving quality of life. Evidence shows that children with high 
levels of physical fitness have higher academic grades and those with lower levels of fitness 
have lower academic grades (source: Journal of Paediatrics) and that children need at least 1 
hour of physical activity a day. Studies by Public Health Wales (Nov 14) supported key findings 
that pupils with better health and well-being were more likely to achieve better academically 
and that a positive association exists between academic attainment and physical activity levels. 
The University of Strathclyde and Dundee’s (2012) research suggested that physical activity 
particularly benefited girls' performance in science and that children who carried out regular 
exercise, not only did better academically at 11 but also at 13 and in their exams at 16. 
 
Building on this we introduced an initiative called ‘The Daily Mile’ with one simple aim - to help 
children get fit by walking or running for 15 minutes a day.  This will improve the physical, 
emotional and social health and well-being of our children regardless of age of personal 
circumstances.  It encourages children to be more active and helps them understand the 
benefits of physical and mental health and well-being and is gaining momentum across our 
schools and the Gwent region. 
 
We have a statutory duty to produce a ‘Play Sufficiency Assessment’ every 3 years for the 
county borough in recognition of the value of play and open spaces in relation to health and            
well- being. We use a toolkit and map the types of places we have against recognised standards 
in a range of areas such as places of supervised and unsupervised play and how we and our 
partners aim to offer play opportunities that are inclusive and encourage all children to play 
and meet together.  The assessment includes recognition of play in open spaces and we have 
developed our own open space standards in accordance with the advice and requirements of 
planning regulations.   
 
Other wider factors like travel to parks and costs are considered in assessing play and exercise. 
We can evidence strengths from completing this toolkit collaboratively and have identified 
actions to take such as the ‘Large Scale Change’ which is promoting physical activity in the 
Heads of the Valleys area for women aged 14–40.  This is supplemented by work ongoing on 
‘Active Gwent’. 
 
Overall, there has been year on year increases for participation and over half of all children 
have taken part in 5 x 60 minute activities at least once. Participation rates in extra-curricular 
Dragon Multi-skills, designed to offer 7-11 year olds fun and enjoyable sporting opportunities, 
are also increasing each year. There is a significant increase in clubs being run within primary 
schools and sporting communities to ensure there is a sporting pathway in place.  There has 
also been an increase in opportunities for children aged 3-6 years due to the physical literacy 
programme. This provides tots with sessions such as football, netball, rugby and cricket and 
involves the carers.  A free swimming initiative on a Friday at all leisure centres is currently 
running and participation rates have increased year on year.  We also offered free swimming 
during public swimming times for children participating in swimming lessons, and to meet 
demand, additional free swim structured sessions have been put on over the school holidays.   

 

Page 74



58 
 

The Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes was launched in 1999 to encourage the 
development of local healthy school schemes.  The Welsh Government and Public Health Wales 
provided funding and guidance to help health and education services in partnership to set up 
and run local healthy school schemes in all 22 local authorities across Wales.  Since it was 
established in 2001 the Caerphilly Healthy Schools Scheme has grown rapidly and we now have 
all schools actively engaged.  Our aim is to support schools to develop a whole school approach 
to health through 7 key areas: 

 
• Food and Fitness 
• Mental and Emotional Health and Well-being 
• Personal Development and Relationships 
• Environment 
• Substance use and misuse 
• Safety 
• Hygiene 
 

Since 2010 schools have the chance to be awarded with a national final accreditation for 
outstanding practice with the Welsh Governments National Quality Award. We are working 
with our schools to achieve the award as this will show they have not only reached this 
standard but maintained it for 9 years or longer.  
 
The Caerphilly Healthy Early Years (HEY) Scheme was initiated in 2008 to further support early 
years and childcare settings to promote the health and wellbeing of the whole community, 
including children, parents/ carers, and staff members.  Since 2004, early years and childcare 
settings within the borough have been participating in the Caerphilly Gold Standard Healthy 
Snack Award scheme with the majority of settings successfully achieving the award, thus 
setting the scene for the introduction of the HEY scheme.   
 
The HEY scheme extends the work of ‘The Caerphilly Healthy Schools Scheme’ that forms part 
of the Welsh Assembly Government’s ‘Welsh Network of Healthy Schools Scheme’. Since all 
Primary and Secondary schools in Caerphilly are working towards becoming a healthy school, a 
focus on health related activities and policy in early years and childcare settings offers 
continuity for children as they move onto statutory education, as well as enhancing their 
development during their pre- school years.  The HEY scheme encompasses best practice to 
engage children and enabling healthy attitudes and behaviours to be developed at a young age 
and continued throughout later life. It links closely with the Obesity Prevention programme by 
encouraging parents to be more active with their children and by promoting the 10 Steps to a 
Healthy Lifestyle. 
 
The scheme trains in a range of activities such as ‘3 Sticky Fingers’ cooking sessions, Ffa La La 
(physical literacy and movement through the medium of Welsh), Brilliant Babies, Traumatic 
Situations and Mindfulness training, for Mindful Families.  We are also running a Fire Safety 
course and a fourth Internet Safety session.  All of this training is in addition to Busy Feet 
(exercise about Nutrition and Oral Health) and Design to Smile.  This is a successful scheme 
with a high number of our early years and child care providers taking part over ten years.   
We provide sporting opportunities for adults and young people with disabilities.  Working 
closely with Disability Sport Wales we provide access to Leisure Centres, community clubs, 
school holiday schemes and the InSport programme.  The Sport and Leisure Team were 
accredited with the InSport Ribbon Award, which recognises all that we do to create inclusive 

Page 75



59 
 

sporting opportunities for disabled people. Our school holiday programme provides young 
people with the opportunity to try new and exciting sporting activities delivered by our 
specialist coaches and volunteers.  The holiday programme can be tailored to that individual’s 
needs and requirements.   
 
In relation to physical activity, the percentage of adults in Caerphilly county borough who 
reported meeting exercise/physical activity guidelines in the previous week in 2014-15 was 
26%. This compares with a figure of 28% in Gwent and 31% for Wales as a whole.  The science 
on the benefits of physical activity is clear as to the profound benefits and effects it can have 
on health and wider moderate mental health and Well-being.   

 

Active Gwent is a regional collaboration across Gwent whose vision is to improve physical 
literacy, promote a positive future and tackle inequality in communities through sport. In a 
variety of ways the partnership is aiming to get 75% of people ‘hooked on sport’ by 2027 with 
the 2018 milestone target at 55%. The partnership has looked at priority sports that are 
common across the five local authorities that help to meet the underlying demand. Under the 
theme of ‘tackling inequalities’, children and young people from deprived communities and 
living in poverty are being supported through a social inclusion programme called ‘Positive 
Futures’ using sport to engage these young people.  In Caerphilly momentum has continued 
from 6,778 attendances in 2015/16 to over 9,000 attendances in 2017.    
Increasing girls and women’s participation is important for health and other benefits so in 2016 
the collaboration launched a ‘Lets Go Girls’ initiative which allows activity providers and 
females who are interested in taking part in activity to connect. There has been some success 
with helping mums with post natal depression with our ‘mams with prams’ initiative with 
others taking part in netball sessions. Within Caerphilly and within the region we will continue 
to focus on girls and women taking part in activity as tackling inequalities is one of our 
priorities.   
 
One of the ways we contribute to a healthier environment and promote our tourism facilities is 
the Caerphilly 10K run which is now in its sixth year and is set to return in 2018 on Sunday 20th 
May along with the Caerphilly 2k which is attractive for younger runners.  With 2,500 runners 
of all abilities expected to descend on Caerphilly from across the country to enjoy the event, we 
are looking to the 2018 event to be bigger and better. Set in the shadow of the spectacular 
Caerphilly Castle, the Bryn Meadows Caerphilly 10k gives runners both experienced and 
beginners, the opportunity to run on a relatively flat course with some undulating points 
against an historic backdrop.  Further details are at www.caerphilly10k.co.uk 
   

Using exercise to improve health The National Exercise Referral Scheme (NERS) is a Public 
Health Wales (PHW) funded scheme which has been in development since 2007. The Scheme 
targets clients aged 16 and over who have, or are at risk of developing, a chronic disease. The 
scheme is centrally coordinated by Welsh local Government Association and has secured 
funding until March 31st 2019. NERS is an evidence-based health intervention incorporating 
physical activity and behavioural change techniques to support referred clients to make 
lifestyle changes to improve their health and Well-being. The main aims of the Scheme which 
we run are: 
• To offer a high quality National Exercise Referral Scheme across Wales 
• To increase the long term adherence of clients to physical activity 
• To improve the physical and mental health of clients 

Page 76

http://www.caerphilly10k.co.uk/


60 
 

• To determine the effectiveness of the intervention in increasing clients’ activity levels and 
improving their health 
Currently we have between 1000 and 1200 people a year participating and our referrals are 
increasing as the scheme is helping to improve participants quality of life.  
 
Outdoors, Parks and Countryside  
 
It is important we understand a range of activities that contribute towards creating a place 
where people can enjoy a healthier lifestyle (rather than just focus on sport).  We also want to 
build on our strengths, for example we are fortunate in the amount of green space that is 
available and can be used to promote well-being.  Some 80% of the county borough is classed 
as rural and these areas contain a variety of landscapes including accessible uplands and 
significant water bodies, over 800km of public rights of way, five main country parks, a National 
Nature Reserve and a number of other areas and facilities that can be used as part of 
promoting healthier lifestyles.  
 
Caerphilly Adventures also use our great outdoors to work with young people and their families 
to improve family relations, parenting, confidence and self esteem though the medium of 
outdoor activities and pursuits. It also provides opportunities for adults and young people to 
take part in Outdoor Activities such as Hill Walking Canoeing, Rock Climbing Caving and Stand 
Up Paddle boarding by running a range of courses.  Caerphilly Adventures also provides training 
in hill walking and first aid to enable adults to leads groups in the outdoors safely. The Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award delivers the well being objectives through its different sections: 
volunteering, physical activity, skills and expedition.  Caerphilly Adventures also supports CAG 
which is a network of volunteers that organises outdoor activities for its members. 
 
Various Welsh Government initiatives aim to promote the use of green infrastructure to meet 
the desired outcomes prescribed in the Well-being of Future Generations and Environment 
Acts. Under pinning these is the principle of the sustainable management of natural resources, 
being championed by Natural Resources Wales but applicable to and supported by ourselves. 
The ‘services’ provided by our natural resources do play a significant role in our health and 
have the capacity to be increased. An important initiative to promote this increase, through 
greater use of green infrastructure, is the development of a regional ‘Valleys Landscape Park’ 
which is being driven by Welsh Government but will be largely implemented through the 
actions of partner agencies.  We are developing a Green Infrastructure Strategy to support this. 

 
In 2015 we reviewed our Outdoor Recreation Provision looking at Equipped Play Provision; 
Sports Pitches; Allotments and our Green Spaces. From this we mapped what areas needed 
more facilities and what areas had enough.  Reviewing what we have means we can identify 
gaps in provision and this enables us to target those gaps when money becomes available from 
different funding streams.  Our review also looked at quality and accessibility and actions arose 
that we are still working on, for example sports pitches within the county borough have been 
affected by poor standards of drainage, which affects both the ability of the pitch during the 
playing season and the standard of the playing surface.  We have put in place a drainage 
programme to improve this.  Adventurous Outdoor Play, particularly to provide safe 
adventurous play areas suitable for young people to encourage use of outdoor spaces, was 
identified as one of the Youth Forum’s priorities for 2017 following a vote at their Annual 
Conference.  This is made up of young people from 11 to 25 years across the county borough.   
 

Page 77



61 
 

 
Part of creating a healthy environment includes our ‘Tree Strategy’ as we have approximately 
250,000 trees across the county borough and there are many benefits to well managed trees. 
They are an important public resource which produce oxygen, absorb carbon dioxide, absorb 
pollutants, provide home and shelter for food and wildlife and can provide buffer to noise 
pollution to name a few things, they are known to relieve stress of modern lives and provide 
share and shelter to mitigate effects.  

 
Keeping the environment clean  
 
We know from the Council’s household survey and Viewpoint Panel that cleanliness remains a 
concern within our communities and our objectives continue to keep the streets and public 
highways as clean and free from litter and graffiti as far as is reasonably practical.  In relation to 
physical activity many people prefer to walk their dogs, cycle or walk to work for example, and 
prefer use of the outdoor environment than attending leisure centres or taking part in a sport.  
An environment with litter, broken glass, fly tipping or dog fouling for example, can be a barrier 
that prevents people enjoying their regular outdoor space.  

Most of our street scene cleaning and enforcement activities (such as fining people who do not 
abide by the law) is very much business as usual, however we do carry out a range of initiatives 
such as our ‘Enough is Enough’ environmental awareness campaign, where we have 
implemented a series of new measures such as placing a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 
in the park in Ystrad Mynach.  This PSPO aims to tackle irresponsible dog ownership and dog 
fouling through enhancing the council’s ability to take enforcement action.   

The Welsh Government introduced the Unauthorised Deposit of Waste Fixed Penalties (Wales) 
Regulations 2017 on the 25th October 2017 which gives Councils greater powers to fine ‘first 
time offenders’ in relation to fly tipping with a fixed penalty notice pre-empting the need to go 
to court in the first instance but fixed at an amount that is not an incentive to continue enviro 
crime behaviours.  We will use a range of performance measures around cleanliness and 
enforcement to make better connections with creating a space that supports a healthier 
lifestyle.       

Health and Well-being needs to be an integral part of our everyday life and as the largest 
employer in the county borough, we recognise that improving the health and well-being of our 
staff is in all of our interests. Small and often simple lifestyle changes can help prevent illnesses 
such as strokes, cancer, diabetes and heart disease. In light of this we have established a Health 
and Well-being group with the aim of providing employees with easy access to information 
regarding the improvement of their general health and well-being.   
 
As approximately 75% of our employees live in the county borough any lifestyle improvements 
that employees share with their families and friends will benefit our communities more widely.  
Preventing ill health across the population is generally more effective at reducing health 
inequalities than medical or clinical involvement and requires many partners to work together.  
Success in this area would lead to long-term savings by reducing the risk of health and social 
problems and improve education, training and employment prospects.   
 

The nationally recognised (Public Health Wales) five healthy lifestyle behaviours include – 
remaining smoke free, drinking alcohol sensibly, and maintaining a healthy body weight, 
regular physical activity and a balanced diet.  The above factors are best tackled in a 

Page 78



62 
 

partnership across many organisations in the public, voluntary and private sectors as no one 
agency can carry this alone.  
 
Indeed our Public Services Board are looking at how we can build in resilience across the course 
of a life to prevent poor quality of life through poor health and have set an action area in the 
draft Well-being Plan (published June 2018) for ‘Good Health and Well- being’.  Action areas 
will set delivery plans to take specific activities to improve this and we will fully contribute to 
this improvement area.      

 
How we used the 5 ways of working to set this Well-being Objective? 
 
Involvement – This objective could never be delivered in isolation and the individual and many 
partners have to be involved to improve individual quality of life. The main involvement needs 
to be with citizens using the principles of ‘co-production’ (which starts from the idea that no 
one group or person is more important than anyone else and everyone has skills, abilities and 
time to contribute).  Specifically we work with and involve a range of partners such as Public 
Health Wales, schools and parents (for initiatives like the Daily Mile initiative). The nature of 
preventing ill health requires the involvement of the individual as well as health services, GP’s, 
Health Visitors, the voluntary sector and local groups such as walking groups.  For example the 
‘Healthy Hearts’ Walking Initiative with the NHS, has 3000 participants in Caerphilly.  Another 
initiative is the South Eastern Caerphilly Landscape Partnership which involves developing the 
recreation potential of the south eastern Caerphilly urban fringe and countryside, an initiative 
being led by the communities and should have particular benefits to Lansbury Park, our most 
deprived area. 
 
Long term – The objective is framed in the long term from a generational life course to deal 
with the long term implications of poor health which affects the quality of life and the wider 
economy if we do not improve on the current position. This objective starts from pre-
pregnancy and 0-3 within the Flying Start programme through to healthy places for adults and 
children.  Opportunities for health improvements with the development of the Valleys 
Landscape Park is a long term generational commitment and will probably run for the next 25 
years. 
 
Collaborate – As noted under involvement we must collaborate to improve this aspect, there 
are too many partners to list here but staff from the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, 
Public Health Wales, Sport Wales all carry out activities in partnership.  National Resource 
Wales (NRW) have a passion and willingness to allow the public use of their sites for outdoor 
recreation and  the South Wales Countryside Officers group collaborate to ensure both local 
and region initiatives are developed and implemented that promote benefits to health, 
particularly through the Sustainable Management of Natural Resources. 
 
Integration – Good Health underpins all the other Well-being objectives as without good health 
many other objectives such as maintaining sustainable employment, making the most of 
education and general quality of life opportunities is simply not possible. Success of this 
objective will meet the goals of the other organisations listed here as we all want the same 
outcomes. 
 
Prevention - This objective is in its totality is about preventing poor health and building more 
resilience in our citizens over the life course to enable a better quality of life. There are many 

Page 79



63 
 

contributions to this area that are not always instantly obvious, for example we have a capital 
programme to improve drainage on playing fields which will allow fixtures to be played during 
periods of bad weather, improved drainage will maximise the use of pitches and therefore 
prevent cancellations and for sports to continue. At the heart of people’s ability to work, learn 
and enjoy a good quality of life, good health and well-being is the starting point for all other 
opportunities. Demand on already stretched services such as social care, primary and 
secondary health care, can be reduced by supporting residents to have a healthy and 
independent life for as long as possible.   

 
What steps will we take to achieve this objective?  

 
There will be a detailed action plan developed for the next 4-5 years.  Below we detail some of 
the main actions that we will take over this time:  

 

Outcomes   
 

When  
(Time Frame) 

Outcome 1: Aim to reduce inequalities in Health 

Continue to increase the ‘Daily Mile’ programme in schools across the county 
borough. 

2018-2023 

Continuation of the Healthy Hearts programme in partnership with Aneurin Bevan 
Health Board.  

 

Continue to run our Flying Start programme which provides a wide range of support 
0-3 years and their families for improving life in early years. This includes activities 
such as:  

 Get Cooking - recipes and cookery sessions for family foods.  

 Henry (Healthy Exercise and Nutrition for the Really Young) - nutrition and 
exercise course for parents to know the most up-to-date information on the 
best foods and exercise for their child's development. 

 Healthy Start scheme - Healthy Start vouchers for fresh fruit and vegetables 
and vitamins 

 

2017-2021 

Run our health outreach (shared contract) ‘On the Move and On to Food’ (to support 
parents with solid feeding and nutrition moving onto HENRY (Health Exercise 
Nutrition for the Really Young).  

2017-2021 

Promote the Healthy Schools programme (a Welsh Government, Public Health and 
Education Programme) to provide specific actions to improve child health.  
 

2018/19 

Disability in Sport – providing sporting opportunities for individuals with disabilities. 
 

2018-2023 

Participation in ‘large scale change’ collaborative programme: Let’s Go Girls  
(Campaign to get more girls and women aged 14-40 more active, more often 
through different forms of engagement through physical activity). 

2018/19 

Supporting greater physical activity through continued delivery of targeted 
programmes on a local and regional basis such as ‘Positive Futures’, which is a sport 
based social inclusion programme that uses sport as a tool to engage young people 
in local community facilities, and through a referral process from a range of 
partnership agencies.  

Ongoing  
(2018-2023) 

Page 80



64 
 

Outcomes   
 

When  
(Time Frame) 

Sporting Pathways – a targeted approach to helping clubs develop their playing, 
coaching and volunteer base. 
 

2018-2020 

Complete a Play Sufficiency Assessment to assess gaps in provision and identify 
improvement actions  
 

March 2019 
 

Outcome 2: Creating a place that supports a healthy lifestyle. 

Implement a county borough wide Sport and Leisure Strategy to establish a vision 
and specific actions to sustain  
 

Summer 
2018 

Set up a Health and Well-being employee group to provide lifestyle improvements 
that can benefit the wider communities. 
 

2018/19 

Promote and run the Elite Caerphilly Scheme 2018  
(This aims to reduce the financial burden of training costs for talented athletes, 
many of whom aspire to represent both Wales and/or Great Britain in their 
respective sports on the international stage. 
 

2018-2023 

Promoting access and use of our parks and countryside (Rural Development 
Programmes), through cycling and walking and events such as the ‘Caerphilly 
Challenge’. 

Ongoing 
(2018-2023) 
 

By 2020 aim towards Welsh Government target to reduce the smoking rate to 16% 

 Trader education/awareness on 18 age limit for purchases of tobacco products, No Proof No 
Sale packs issued to traders which include guidance for traders, shop display items and 
information for employees. 

 Promote and facilitate take up of Proof of Age cards to young people 16 to 18 via schools and 
colleges. 

Delivering on our Tree Strategy Actions  
 

2018-2023 

 
Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 
 

A Prosperous Wales – Research suggests that young people who are healthier are more likely 
to perform better at school and less likely to be unemployed, receiving benefits or involved in 
crime.  Any age of people who have their health have more potential for enjoying paid or 
unpaid work.  Good health and personal reliance will support residents, of all ages, to fully be 
part of the labour market and help contribute towards a prosperous county borough. Giving 
every child the best start in life will ensure that they have the support they need to reach their 
full educational potential, that they are able to secure rewarding and meaningful employment 
and that they becomes productive members of society. Our environment and green spaces can 
provide employment and other benefits such as inward investment and tourism.  
 
A Healthier Wales – Creating a supportive environment that enables our residents to manage 
their own physical, mental and well-being needs is an important part of ill health prevention. 
Demand on already stretched services can be reduced by supporting residents to have a 

Page 81



65 
 

healthy and independent life for as long as possible. Providing support to the child and family in 
the early years reduces the risk of the individual engaging in health harming behaviours and of 
developing diseases such as cancer, heart disease, diabetes and poor mental health. 
Communities with attractive public open space help residents to be more active and more 
engaged and support better mental and physical health.  
  
A More Equal Wales - All the Sporting programmes at their core are about ‘tackling 
inequalities’ whether that is to help women and girls back into exercise or sport, young people 
who need help or those who have disabilities and this supports greater inclusivity.  
Residents living in areas of deprivation are at greater risk of poor health. Supporting residents 
to adopt healthy behaviours will help them to take responsibility and manage their own 
physical health, mental health and well-being. Lifestyle choices are a key cause of health 
inequalities and can have a major impact on healthy life expectancy.  The need to reduce our 
health inequalities is unquestionable.  Every individual deserves the opportunity to fulfil their 
potential, regardless of their socio-economic characteristics, background or circumstances.     
 
A Resilient Wales – Improvement with regard to enviro crime as proposals to prevent fly 
tipping will contribute to a cleaner, safer environment by removing the likelihood of fly tipping 
and associated environmental issues. Supporting residents to have good health and ensuring 
our children have the best start in life will develop skill sets that enable residents to respond 
positively to the constantly changing world that we all live in and enable them and their 
families to be more resilient and adapt to change in the future. Regular participation in sport, 
for both children and adults, is associated with good mental health.  A network of healthy, 
green, well-functioning, well-connected and sustainable communities can deliver multiple 
benefits for environmental, social, economic and cultural well-being.   

 
Supporting residents to have the best start in life will help reduce youth offending, anti-social 
behaviour and other crime levels leading to safer communities within the county borough. 
Attractive country parks and opportunities to walk and cycle and allow all to experience places 
to enjoy activities is very much a part of providing ‘A Wales of Cohesive Communities’.  
 
Opportunities for taking part in community and sporting activities will help to reduce feelings of 
isolation and loneliness.  In the same way creating a county borough where people can 
participate in sport and recreation and where they feel healthy and empowered to be engaged 
citizens, all supports a Wales of Vibrant Culture; for example whilst the Caerphilly 10k run 
helps people partake in exercise within a supportive environment, it also encourages tourism 
as people come to visit the area. 

 

A Globally Responsible Wales – Enabling behaviour change towards a more preventative and 
sustainable approach will have a huge impact on the local and global environment. Positive 
early intervention and improving residents’ health can prevent higher healthcare costs in 
adulthood. By encouraging residents to protect and look after their local environment and 
natural resources we strive towards our global obligations.   
 

How we will resource this Well-being objective  
 
Resources in this area have been significantly reduced over the past few years.  This is 
impacting our availability to deliver a range of programmes so it is important that we pool our 

Page 82



66 
 

expertise and resources to set this within the way of working that involves other people in the 
delivery of this objective.    

 
When will the objective be completed?  
 
Improved health data is a long term measurement and can rarely be measured on a year to 
year basis.  As this objective is about making a difference at an early age and to promote more 
physical activity there cannot be a specific ‘completion date’ therefore we will look at 
completion dates regarding actions and changes.  
 
Measures of progress are noted below: 

Outcome Measure 

1 Increase the number of schools participating in the ‘daily mile’. 
 

1 Increase the number of schools achieving Welsh Governments National Quality Award 
for Healthy Schools. 

1 Number and % of participant parents benefitting from an evidence-based parenting 
programmes. 

1 Number of clubs signed up to be part of the ‘Lets Go Girls’ campaign. 
 

1 Engage with a minimum of 5 new settings in promoting the Healthy and Sustainable 
Preschool Scheme (Hey Scheme)  

2 Reduce smoking rates. 
 

2 % of children age 4/5 who are overweight or obese. 
  

2 Percentage of children at 11 years who can swim 25 meters.  
 

2 Increase the number of visits to our parks and countryside. 
 

2 ‘Increase numbers participating in a broadened ‘Healthy Hearts’ initiative. 
 

2 Number of people participating in the Health Referral scheme.  
 

2 Adopt a ‘Valleys Landscape Park strategy’. 
 

2 Street Scene Cleanliness Index LEAMS Score for the whole of the county borough 
(STS005a) 

2 % of highways & relevant land inspected of a high or acceptable standard of 
cleanliness (STS005b). 

2 % of reported fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 working days (STS006). 
 

2 The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents which lead to enforcement activity. 
 

2 Number of enforcement actions issued for Dog Fouling. 
 

Page 83



67 
 

2 The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents which lead to enforcement activity. 
 

 
For context we will also review the National indicators for Wales below as part of this overall 
objective 
 

   

General Well-being Indicators-  
  

 Source of Data 

Percentage of adults who have fewer than two healthy lifestyle behaviours 
(not smoking, healthy weight, eat five fruit or vegetables a day, not drinking 
above guidelines and meet the physical activity guidelines) 

National Survey of 
Wales 

Percentage of Children who have fewer than two healthy lifestyles as above School Aged 
Children Survey, 
New analysis  

Healthy life expectancy at birth including the gap between the least and 
most deprive. 

ONS and Public 
Health Wales 

Percentage of people feeling safe at home, walking in the local area, and 
when travelling.  

National Survey of 
Wales 

Mean mental Well-being score for people National Survey of 
Wales 

 
Additional Information  

 
As a wider consideration of creating a ‘healthy place’, part of our tree strategy is to develop 
scope on council allotments for potential small scale ‘allotment forestry’ as a partnership 
between council and tenants called the Allotment Forum Initiative.   
 
Ideally this would involve the planting of useful trees in positions which would not affect the 
site’s primary function as a place to grow vegetables.  We will encourage tenants to plant 
appropriate fruit trees where they will not significantly interfere with vegetable production.  
 
Besides fruit trees, there is also the potential for the planting of small coppice areas if it was 
supported by tenants. These could be planted on plots that, because of shading, or say 
waterlogged conditions, are less suitable for vegetable growing.   
 
Coppicing of species such as hazel, willow, or sweet chestnut would produce valuable 
products such as bean poles, pea sticks, or fencing materials, which could be harvested 
communally and would represent a sustainable use of these plots while maintaining wildlife 
value.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



68 
 

 
 
6. Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being 
 
Outcomes 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 

1.  Support people to ‘help themselves’ by providing comprehensive 
advice and information including signposting to other services. 
 
2.  Have ‘meaningful conversations’ to help people identify ‘what 
matters’ to them to inform ‘outcome focused’ planning.  
 
3. Provide support to reduce the need for higher tier statutory 
interventions. 
 
4. Identify and support carers. 
 
5. Improve the recruitment of Foster Carers and Shared Lives carers. 
 
6. Continue to identify opportunities to work collaboratively wherever 
appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



69 
 

 
6. Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being 
 

Well-being Statement 
 
2016/17 saw the implementation of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 
across Wales.  This is possibly the most wide ranging and radical change in legislation 
impacting on the delivery of Social Care for generations. 
 
The Legislation is underpinned by a series of key principles and the Local Authority is charged 
with delivering services to enable these to be achieved. The principles are: 
 

 Provide support at the lowest level to reduce the need for statutory services or 
interventions. 

 Provide information and advice aimed at helping people to help themselves. 

 Signposting people to community based and third sector services wherever 
appropriate to do so. 

 Facilitate ‘what matters’ conversations with people referred for support to ensure 
services are aware of what the individual actually wants and would benefit from 

 Identify personal outcomes and provide services to enable people to achieve these 
outcomes. 

 Only provide ‘Care and Support’ to those people whose needs ‘can and can only’ be 
met through the provision of Social Care services 

 Continue to safeguard and protect those most vulnerable people  
 
As part of the newly implemented Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, the 
Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) team, has been established in Caerphilly.  IAA acts as 
the first point of contact for all referrals into both statutory and preventative services. An 
assessment is undertaken to identify if the family needs, require ‘Care and Support’.  
 
On occasion, a person or family’s needs may not be eligible for a Care and Support Plan and 
can instead by met through preventative well-being services. The Welsh Government funded 
Tackling Poverty Programmes - Families First, Flying Start, Supporting People and 
Communities First - all work at an early intervention and prevention level.  
 
Providing low level support to families and individuals should reduce the need for statutory 
and specialist services, whilst providing timely support for families which will enable them to 
improve their well-being. Early intervention should enable families to establish positive 
behaviour, increase their parenting capacity and help prevent abuse or neglect.  
 
Within Caerphilly, the Families First programme offers targeted, time-limited interventions to 
ensure that families get the right support and the right time. Support is provided for a wide 
range of needs including parenting and behaviour, well-being and mental health, advocacy, 
financial support, young carers, literacy and numeracy support, youth engagement, support 
for families affected by domestic abuse, pre and post natal support, emerging developmental 
delays in pre-school children and community engagement. In addition, the Team Around the 
Family (TAF) model in Caerphilly, locally known as Supporting Family Change, co-ordinates 
support for families with multiple needs.  
 

Page 86



70 
 

 
How we used the ‘5 ways of working’ to set this Well-being Objective?  
 
Involvement - Using the principles of the Social Services and Well-being Act, service users 
should be fully involved in identifying their needs and personal outcomes and planning their 
Care and Support requirements. Supporting People and Families First programmes involve 
hundreds of projects and providers and partners. Service users are involved in their own care 
through having the ‘what matters to you’ conversation. 
 
Long Term - Our long term aspiration is to ensure citizens are supported to remain 
independent in their own homes and communities for as long as possible.  Being independent 
gives people a feeling of purpose and self-worth and for some older people moving to 
residential accommodation can be distressing as home is often where people are happiest. 
This is important to well-being.  
 
Collaboration - This Well-being Objective is reliant on all partner agencies collaborating and 
co-operating to provide early intervention support to prevent the need for statutory 
intervention. Much of the preventative work undertaken by the Tackling Poverty programmes 
is tendered out to third sector organisations working within the Caerphilly county borough. 
This allows for greater partnership and multi-agency working across all organisations.  
 
Integration - The Information, Advice and Assistance Service and Supporting People are 
already integrated across Adults and Children’s Services. Opportunities for further integration 
across wider partner agencies will be developed as and when they arise. This objective if 
successful would contribute to a wide range of health, third sector and other public bodies 
outcomes including the Social Services Gwent Area Plan, by helping people (where they can 
be) to become more resilient.   
 
Prevention - The foundation of the Social Services and Well-being Act is the concept of early 
intervention and prevention support services that enable citizens to access services to help 
themselves. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



71 
 

 
What steps will we take to achieve this objective?  
 

Outcome  
 

When  
(2018-2023) 

1. Support people to ‘help themselves’ by providing comprehensive advice and 
information including signposting to other services. 
 
2. Have ‘meaningful conversations’ to help people identify ‘what matters’ to them to 
inform ‘outcome focused’ planning.  
 

Provision of an effective Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Service to 
ensure compliance with the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 
 

2017 – 2022  

Support staff to undertake meaningful conversations with citizens to 
identify what matters to them and identify the outcomes that they want to 
achieve 
 

2017 – 2022  

Implement and support further development of the ‘DEWIS’ web base to 
ensure it becomes the ‘go to’ site for people to access information in order 
to ‘help themselves’.  
 

2018 

3: Provide support to reduce the need for higher tier statutory interventions 
 
 

Work in partnership with Aneurin Bevan University Health Board to prevent 
unnecessary admissions to hospital and facilitate timely discharges. 
 

2018-2022 

Continue to support the work of Families First and the Welsh Government  
Tackling Poverty programmes to provide support to families at a 
preventative and early intervention level 
 

2017 – 2021  
 
 

Support individuals in hospital with housing related support (including those 
who may be homeless at point of discharge. 
 

2018-2019 

Maximise the use of Welsh Government Grant funding to enhance and 
expand the ‘edge of care’ service for children and young people. 
 

2018 – 2019  

Expansion of the Supporting People programme, ensuring effective 
processes are in place to increasing referrals to the programme.  
 

2018-2020 

4: Identify and support carers 
 
 

Improve the support provided to carers including young carers, through 
development of information, improved identification and enhanced services 
to improve the well-being of carers and enable them to continue to 
undertake their caring roles. 
 

2017 – 2022  

Page 88



72 
 

Outcome  
 

When  
(2018-2023) 

5: Improve the recruitment of Foster Carers and Shared Lives carers. 
 

Increased recruitment activity and improved follow up rates to ensure 
additional paid carers i.e. Foster Carers and Shared Lives carers, are 
recruited with the overall aim of achieving a net increase in the number of 
carers. 
 

2017 – 2019  

Gain political support for the continuation of a radio advertising campaign 
for foster carers. 
 

2017 

6: Continue to identify opportunities to work collaboratively wherever appropriate 
 

Continue to engage in regional partnerships and collaborations to ensure 
Caerphilly are represented and able to influence the direction of travel. 
 

2017 – 2022  

Caerphilly to lead on the delivery of a regional Children’s Advocacy Service 
for Gwent Local Authorities and the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board. 
 

2018 onwards  

Development of a regional Learning Disabilities Strategy. 
 

2018 – 2019  

Work with the Gwent Children & Families Partnership Board to develop 
enhanced services for children with complex and challenging needs and for 
those young people leaving care. 
 

2018 – 2020  

 
Why we consider that our Well-being Objective will maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being goals 

 
The Well-being Objective maximises contribution to two key national Well-being goals: 
A Healthier Wales: Social Care services support the promotion of good physical and emotional 
health in order to support individuals to remain independent for as long as is possible. 
 
A more Equal Wales Irrespective of background or circumstance, if an individual require the 
Care and Support of Social Care Services then the appropriate level of support is provided. 
 
This also contributes to Welsh Governments ‘Prosperity for All National strategy particularly  
The Healthy and Active theme which promotes the following: 
 

 Deliver quality health and care service fit for the future 
 Promote good health and well-being for everyone 
 Build healthier communities and better environments 

 

 
How will we resource this Well-being Objective 
 

Most of the actions identified in Section 4 require little by way of additional funding but do 
require staff and partner time to be committed to achieve.  However, the action in relation to 

Page 89



73 
 

‘edge of care’ services requires that we protect the current Welsh Government grant funding 
when it becomes part of the Revenue Support Grant from 2018 onwards.  The action relating to 
the Gwent Children & Families Partnership is also reliant upon the allocation of Intermediate 
Care Funding (ICF).  In 2018-2019 the funding for the Supporting People Programme and the 
Families First Programme is changing to merge into a Flexible Funding pot with a pilot called 
the ‘Early Intervention, Prevention and Support Grant.  This may affect how these activities are 
funded in the future and we will update you on in future updates.     
 

When will the objective be completed? 
 

A few of the outcomes have already been completed or are in the process of being completed. 
For several others, it is the case that the actions identified will be continually reviewed and 
amended in order to remain current.  However, targets are able to be set in relation to the 
following: 

 

Outcome Measure 

1&2 Relevant staff will receive ‘meaningful conversations’ training by the end of 2018 
 

1&2 The DEWIS website will be fully operational by April 2019 
 

3 Undertake a review of all ICF investments to maximise the effectiveness of the grant 
funding by September 2018 

3 Children’s Services Intensive Support Team to be fully operational from April 2018 
 

4 Numbers of carers (including young carers) supported 
 

4 Levels of respite support provided 
 

5 Achieve an increase in the overall number of carers recruited – this will be monitored  
quarterly and annually 

1-5 The Families First programme has 14 outcome measures that are reported yearly to 
Welsh Government, we will use the relevant measures to support progress with this 
objective.  

 
For context we will also review the National indicators for Wales below as part of this overall 
objective: 
 

   

General Well-being Indicators-   
 

 Source of Data 

Percentage of people who are lonely National Survey for 
Wales 

Percentage of people agreeing that they belong to the areas; that people 
from different backgrounds get on well together; and that people treat 
each other with respect. 

National Survey for 
Wales 

 
 

Page 90



74 
 

 
Any other additional Information  
 
The Welsh Government is currently reviewing the Performance Indicator data sets that 
measure the Social Services Well- being Act and it is likely that this will change the data we 
collect.  We will have to update our measures above when the new sets of performance 
measurement framework has been agreed. 
 
It is recognised that Social Care is unable to achieve all these actions alone and acknowledges 
the vital role that partners, both internal and external to the Council, will play in completing 
them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



75 
 

 
6. Reviewing our Objectives 
 
How we will govern ourselves to meet our Well-being Objectives; 
 
The process for each Well-being Objective will be the same so here are the main ways that we 
will govern ourselves in the meeting of our objectives 
 

 We will have an Action Plan for each Objective. 
 We will use an electronic (Ffynnon) scorecard to measure our performance where 

appropriate. 
 The actions will be linked to individual Service Plan’s so it is part of service delivery and 

not separate from it. 
 Progress and emerging risks will be reported to our Corporate Management Team 

reporting.  
 We will consult with the public to ensure our objectives are still relevant to them.  We 

may use existing consultation methods from services rather than always run a 
separate engagement exercise simply for objectives.  For example we ask the public 
what is important to them when we are consulting on our budgets and these existing 
mechanisms can play a greater more integrated part in assessment.  

 We will use the monitoring for the Well-being Plan as our review as they will 
contribute towards the Public Services Board Plan.   

 Our auditors and the Future Generations Commissioner will assist us in providing good 
practice in how we can best meet our objectives.  

 
The steps we will take to keep our objectives under a review  
 

 Our reporting structure will include frequent reporting to our Corporate Management 
Team working within our medium term financial planning to ensure resourcing plays 
an integrated role in the delivery of objectives. 

 We will assess at a point in time whether we are unsuccessful, partially successful or 
fully successful and invite our reporting bodies and any relevant partners to challenge 
our self-assessments. 

 Reporting to Cabinet (the Executive) on our progress.  
 Reporting to our Future Generations Advisory Panel which is a member led panel. 
 Reporting to relevant member scrutiny committees for challenge and scrutiny twice a 

year. 
 Reporting to any relevant partners as part of any collaboration set up to deliver on our 

objectives. 
 Report at least yearly to the public on our progress and review or our objectives as 

part of our performance management arrangements. 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 92



76 
 

7. Well-being Goals  

Goal Description of the goal 

A prosperous 
Wales 

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises 
the limits of the global environment and therefore uses resources 
efficiently and proportionately (including acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an 
economy which generates wealth and provides employment 
opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the wealth 
generated through securing decent work. 

A resilient Wales A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural 
environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support 
social, economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt 
to change (for example climate change). 

A healthier Wales 
A society in which people's physical and mental Well-being is 
maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit future 
health are understood. 

A more equal 
Wales 

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background or circumstances (including their socio economic 
background and circumstances). 

A Wales of 
cohesive 
communities 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 

A Wales of 
vibrant culture 
and thriving 
Welsh language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the 
Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in the 
arts, and sports and recreation. 

A globally 
responsible 
Wales 

A globally responsible Wales. A nation which, when doing anything 
to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural      
Well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing 
may make a positive contribution to global Well-being. 

More information about the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 and what 

that means for public bodies can be found at the site below:  

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en 

 

Page 93

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en


77 
 

8. Contact us 

Your views and opinions on the content of our plans and the priorities are important 

to us. We welcome your input so that we can continue to provide meaningful 

information that helps inform you of the service focus, ensuring that we are working 

on the things that are important to making a difference to you, our citizens and our 

communities. 

Please contact us by: Email: PMU@caerphilly.gov.uk OR by  

Web-link: Council Performance and follow the instructions on screen:  

  

Alternatively, please contact: 

Ros Roberts 

Performance Manager 

Corporate Performance Management Unit 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Penallta House 

Ystrad Mynach 

Hengoed CF82 7PG 

       

 
Tel: 01443 864238    

E-mail: roberr@caerphilly.gov.uk 

   

This document is also available in different languages and formats upon request. 

Further information can also be found on our website: www.caerphilly.gov.

 

 

 
Page 94

mailto:PMU@caerphilly.gov.uk
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/contact-us/General-enquiries/Performance-Management-Unit.aspx
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/main.aspx?lang=cy-GB
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/main.aspx?lang=cy-GB


 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

CABINET – 11TH APRIL 2018  
 

SUBJECT: DRAFT GWENT VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN, DOMESTIC ABUSE AND 
SEXUAL VIOLENCE STRATEGY 

 

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND SECTION 151 
OFFICER 

 

 
 

1.1 The report, which was considered by Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
on the 20th March 2018 presented Members with the draft Gwent Violence Against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Strategy.  The Strategy is required by the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 and has 
been prepared by the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board of which the Council is a 
Member.  It calls for the Public Sector in Wales to work together in a consistent and cohesive 
way to improve the outcomes for individuals and their families subjected to VAWDASV. 
 

1.2 The Partnership Board has been established to meet the requirements of the Act and 
consists of the five Local Authorities in Gwent, Gwent Police, the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Welsh Ambulance Service, 
Probation Services, Registered Social Landlords, Supporting People Regional Collaborative 
Committee, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent Adult and Children Safeguarding 
Boards, VAWDASV Specialist Sector Partners and Voluntary Sector Organisations. 

 
1.3 Members expressed concerns in relation to the language and terminology used throughout 

the Strategy and felt that this excludes some groups of people.  It was explained that issues 
around the language used will be discussed through training sessions and work will be 
undertaken across Gwent that will target all groups.  The purpose of the training is to ensure 
that Professionals are trained to provide an effective response to anyone affected by any 
form of gender-based violence, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  Through on-going 
monitoring, evaluating and review the VAWDASSV Partnership will ensure issues around 
equality are consistently raised and delivery of the strategy adapted.  In addition, the strategy 
will bring about increased disclosure intended to raise basic awareness.   

    
1.4 The Scrutiny Committee also discussed the need for the strategy to be promoted across 

Third Sector Voluntary Organisations as they feel this message needs to be extended on a 
wider scale. 

 
RESOLVED that subject to the foregoing, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendation in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed: 
 

Page 95

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



(i) the draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (VAWDASV) Strategy, be supported; 
 

(ii) the Strategy be promoted widely across Third Sector Voluntary Organisations. 
 
 
Author:            A. Dredge, Committee Services Officer - Ext. 3100 
 
Appendix 1:    Health Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Report – 20th March 2018 
  
 
 
 
   
 
 

Page 96



 

 
 

 

 
HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE & WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  

20TH MARCH 2018 
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT GWENT VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN, DOMESTIC ABUSE 

AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE STRATEGY 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present to the Committee the draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Strategy and seek any recommendations prior to presentation 
to Cabinet. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy is required by the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse 

and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 and has been prepared by the Gwent VAWDASV 
Partnership Board of which the Council is a member. 

 
2.2 The draft Strategy is included at Appendix A and the Committee are asked to consider and 

offer any recommendations prior to presentation to Cabinet for a decision on the final 
response from the Council to the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the National Strategy on Violence against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 – 2021. 
 
3.2 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the Caerphilly Public Services Board draft 

Well-being Plan, “The Caerphilly We Want” and also to the draft regional Area Plan required 
under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. 

 
3.3 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-

being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: 
 

•  A prosperous Wales 
•  A resilient Wales 
•  A healthier Wales 
•  A more equal Wales 
•  A Wales of cohesive communities. 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy is required by the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse 

and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 which calls for the public sector in Wales to work 
together in a consistent and cohesive way to improve the outcomes for individuals and their 
families subjected to VAWDASV. 

Appendix 1

Page 97



 
4.2 The Gwent Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership 

Board has been established to meet the requirements of the Act  within the five Local 
Authorities that make up Gwent and includes: the five local authorities in Gwent, Gwent 
Police, and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University 
Health Board, Welsh Ambulance Service, Probation Services, Registered Social Landlords, 
Supporting People Regional Collaborative Committee, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, 
Gwent Adult and Children Safeguarding Boards, VAWDASV specialist sector partners and 
voluntary sector organisations 

 
4.3 The main aims of the Act are: 
 

• Improve the public sector’s response to violence against women; domestic abuse and 
sexual violence; 

• Give the public authorities (Councils and Health Boards) a strategic focus on the issue; 
• Ensure the consistent provision of preventative, protective and supportive services. 

 
4.4 The draft Strategy is included at Appendix A and addresses the following areas: 
 

• The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board and its Vision 
• Current Provision in the Region 
• Needs Assessment 
• Survivors as Experts 
• Engagement Findings 
• How we will act together to tackle VAWDASV: Our Strategic Priorities 
• How we will monitor our progress: Our Strategic Delivery Plan 

 
4.5 The Committee are asked to make recommendations on the draft strategy prior to 

presentation to Cabinet for a decision on the final response from the Council to the Gwent 
VAWDASV Partnership Board. 

 
 
5. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 The proposed Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the Well-being Goals set out in the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 as described in 3.3 above.  The Act is 
relevant to the prevention of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence 
and support of survivors.  The Act puts in place a “sustainable development principle” which 
requires public bodies to follow five ways of working to ensure they work collaboratively with 
people and communities, avoid repeating past mistakes and to tackle some of the long term 
challenges being faced.  The five ways of working in the context of VAWDASV are: 

 
• Prevention: Understanding and preventing the occurrence of VAWDASV and preventing 

poor outcomes for victims, survivors and their families.  
 
• Integration: Integrating activity across the statutory and third sector and ensuring the 

coordination of programmes of work such that they achieve the maximum benefit. 
 
• Collaboration: Collaborating through the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board, the 

Strategic Delivery Group and Sub-groups and between the partner bodies. 
 
• Involvement: Listening to victims and survivors to understand their experiences of the 

support offered to them to continually review and make improvements in responses. 
Involving all agencies that are able to make an impact on VAWDASV.  

 
• Long Term: Considering the long term outcomes for victims, survivors and their families 

and in particular any children and young people exposed to VAWDASV. 

Page 98



6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken and is included at Appendix B.  The 
Strategy will have a positive impact across all the protected characteristics and ties in with 
Equality Objective 1 – Tackling Identity-based Violence and Abuse in the Council’s Strategic 
Equality Plan. 

6.2 The purpose of this strategy is to address inequalities inherent in all forms of violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  There are no identified inequality implications 
either intended or unintended as a result of this strategy.  The strategy has been made 
available in Welsh throughout consultation.  All required partner organisations will be 
responsible for their obligations under the Welsh Language Measure. Through on-going 
monitoring, evaluation and review the VAWDASV Partnership will ensure issues around 
equality are consistently raised and delivery of the strategy adapted. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. 

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report. 

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 This report has been sent to the consultees listed below and all comments received are 
reflected in this report. 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 That the Committee consider the draft Gwent VAWDASV Strategy at Appendix A and offer 
any recommendations prior to presentation to Cabinet. 

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To allow the Gwent VAWDASV Strategy to be finalised to improve the prevention of and 
response to violence against women; domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

11.2 To meet the requirements of the legislation. 

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. 

Author:  Robert Hartshorn – Head of Public Protection  
Consultees: Dave Street – Corporate Director Social Services 

Cllr Eluned Stenner - Cabinet Member for Environment and Public Protection 
Cllr Carl Cuss - Cabinet Member for Social Services 
Kathryn Peters – Corporate Policy Manager 
Gareth Jenkins – Assistant Director, Children’s Services 
Jo Williams – Assistant Director, Adult Services 

Page 99



Shelly Jones – Supporting People Manager 
David W J Thomas – Service Manager, Children’s Services 
Sarah Mutch – Early Years Manager 
Keri Cole – Chief Education Officer 
Shaun Couzens – Chief Housing Officer 
Richard Harris - Internal Audit Manager 
Lisa Lane – Solicitor 
Anwen Cullinane - Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language) 
David Roberts - Principal Group Accountant 
Shaun Watkins - HR Manager 
Rebecca Haycock - Regional Adviser (Gwent) VAWDASV Safeguarding Unit 

Background Papers:  
National Strategy on Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 - 2021 

Appendices: 
Appendix A Draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy 
Appendix B Fairness and Equalities Impact Assessment (FEIA)

Page 100



APPENDIX A 
 

 

   

 

 

 

 

Gwent Regional Violence Against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence Strategy 2018-2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



 

  2 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

CONTENTS 

1. Foreword 

2. Introduction: Policy and Legislative Context 

3. The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board and its Vision 

4. Current Provision in the Region 

5. Needs Assessment 

6. Survivors as Experts 

7. Engagement Findings 

8. How we will act together to tackle VAWDASV: Our Strategic Priorities 

9. How we will monitor our progress: Our Strategic Delivery Plan 

10. Appendices 

• Appendix 1 - Understanding the Language Used 

• Appendix 2 - Consultation Outputs:  Survivors as Experts - Available on 
Request 

• Appendix 3 – Gwent Needs Assessment - Available on Request 

• Appendix 4 -  Gwent Data - Annual Strategic Analysis – Available on Request 

• Appendix 5 -  Annual Strategic Delivery Plan – Available on Request 

 

 

 

Page 102



 

  3 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

1. FOREWORD 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence are fundamental breaches of 
human rights, a consequence of the inequality between victims and perpetrators, where power 
and control is used in a way that damages lives, futures and the futures of people around those 
subjected to the actions of perpetrators. Every year lives are damaged needlessly in Wales, all 
forms of violence and abuse are unacceptable. Anyone who experiences violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence deserves an effective and timely response from all 
public services.   

The enactment of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) 
Act 2015 (VAWDASV) requires the public sector in Wales to work together in a consistent and 
cohesive way to improve the outcomes for individuals and their families subjected to 
VAWDASV. The Act sits alongside the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
which requires public bodies to think about what actions and activities are required to improve 
the well-being of current and future generations. Collaboration, preventative activity, the 
involvement of individuals, and long-term incremental improvements in the services delivered 
are threaded throughout the legislative landscape. 

The Gwent Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership Board 
(The Partnership Board) is pleased to publish the region’s first joint strategy to tackle 
VAWDASV by supporting victims and survivors, tackling perpetrators, ensuring professionals 
have the tools and knowledge to act, increasing awareness of VAWDASV and the support 
available, and helping children and young people to understand inequality in relationships and 
that abusive behaviour is always wrong.   

This strategy contributes to the national strategy (National Strategy on Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 – 2021)1 and will reflect the six 
objectives of the national strategy. The Partnership Board have determined that they will adopt 
the objectives of the national strategy as their overarching Strategic Priorities.  It sets out to 
provide the leadership and direction that will promote consistency and best practice for the way 
in which violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is prioritised and tackled 
across the region.   

The South East Wales region, ostensibly considered as Gwent, comprises of five local authority 
areas:  Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Newport, Torfaen and Monmouthshire.  It benefits from 
having the same geographical footprint as Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and Gwent 
Police.   

Gwent has a history of strong partnership working and as the first pilot region in Wales for 
strategic coordination of VAWDASV services there is significant work taking place under the 
new legislative framework.  With its ‘pathfinder’ status Gwent has been given many 
opportunities for pioneering new ways of working and we are proud to be developing this 
regional strategy ahead of other areas and, in so doing, helping to inform national guidance. 

                                                           
1  http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf 

Page 103

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf


 

  4 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

The Partnership Board members are the core partners required to deliver a cohesive response 
to VAWDASV2. Our aim is to work together in partnership to ensure the most efficient and 
effective response to preventing serious harm caused by such types of abuse.  

People do not experience violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in a 
vacuum and neither can services, nor wider society, tackle such issues in isolation.  With a 
strong focus on preventative, protective and supportive mechanisms we will aim to work with 
survivors to ensure the meaningful delivery of this strategic plan. Strong leadership and 
accountability is required by us to ensure that the priorities identified are translated into actions 
that can make a real difference to the well-being and safety of people living in Gwent, both now 
and in the future. 

The Partnership Board aims to lead the way in Wales and our collective vision is for survivors, 
their children and wider family to know how and where to get the help that they need, to provide 
that help, and to work towards a society in which no form of violence against women, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence is tolerated. 

 

Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership 
Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
2 The Partnership Board includes;  the five local authorities, Gwent Police, and the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Wales Ambulance Service Trust, Probation Services, 
Registered Social Landlords, Supporting People Regional Collaborative Committee, Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent 
Adult and Children Safeguarding Boards, VAWDASV specialist sector partners and voluntary sector organisations. 

Page 104



 

  5 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

2. INTRODUCTION: POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT 

 
In Wales, the UK and internationally, violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 
violence is considered to be a violation of human rights and a cause and consequence of 
inequality between women and men. It happens to women because they are women, and 
women are disproportionately impacted by certain forms of violence.  

Whilst it is important that this Strategy acknowledges and communicates the disproportionate 
experience of women and girls this does not, in any way, negate violence and abuse directed 
towards men and boys, or violence and abuse perpetrated by women. This Strategy recognises 
that anyone (women, men, children and young people) can experience and be affected by 
domestic abuse, rape and sexual assault, sexual abuse, forced marriage, child sexual abuse, 
stalking and harassment, sexual harassment and exploitation. This can happen in any 
relationship regardless of sex, age, ethnicity, gender, sexuality, disability, religion or belief, 
income, geography or lifestyle. A significant number of those who experience VAWDASV will 
have one or more ‘protected characteristics’, under the Equality Act 20103 and will face 
additional vulnerabilities and increased barriers to support. This Strategy aims to tackle all 
forms of VAWDASV. 

 

At a global, European and national level legislation and policy acknowledges that violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence operates as a means of social control that 
maintains unequal power relations between women and men and reinforces women’s 
subordinate status. It is explicitly linked to systematic discrimination against women and girls. 
Failing to make the connections between the different forms of violence women and girl’s 
experience, and how this is explicitly linked to the unequal position of women and girls in 
society, can hinder the effectiveness of interventions and prevention work. It is also important to 
recognise that different groups of women experience multiple inequalities which can intersect in 
ways that lead to further marginalisation.  

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence includes the following crime 
types: 

• Sexual violence  

• Domestic abuse 

• Sexual harassment and stalking 

• Trafficking and/or sexual exploitation 

• Female genital mutilation (FGM) 
                                                           
3 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents 

   

Page 105

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


 

  6 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

• Forced marriage 

• So-called ‘honour’ based violence (HBV) and crimes  

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence has far reaching consequences 
for families, children, communities and society.  The direct harm to the health and well-being of 
victims is clear, and at its most severe can, and does, result in death. However impacts are 
wide-ranging not just on health and wellbeing but include human rights, poverty, unemployment, 
homelessness and the economy. It is also important to note that this affects not only adults and 
children exposed to and who experience abuse in the home or in intimate or family relationships 
but wider family members also; the experience of abuse and violence can often also be 
perpetrated in public spaces impacting the wider community.  

 
The International Context 
 
This Strategy is intended to align with the UN Declaration on the Elimination of Violence Against 
Women (1993), most recently enshrined within the UN Sustainable Development Goals 2030 
(2015), and the Council of Europe Convention on Preventing and Combating Violence Against 
Women and Domestic Violence- The Istanbul Convention (2014). 

 

The UN Declaration defines violence against women as: 

 
• Any act of gender-based violence that results in, or is likely to result in, physical, sexual, 

psychological, or economic harm or suffering to women, including threats of such acts, 
coercion or arbitrary deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in public or in private life.  

• This encompasses, but is not limited to: 

 (a) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring in the family, including 
battering, sexual abuse of female children in the household, dowry-related violence, 
marital rape, female genital mutilation and other traditional practices harmful to women, 
non-spousal violence and violence related to exploitation;  

(b) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring within the general community, 
including rape, sexual abuse, sexual harassment and intimidation at work, in educational 
institutions and elsewhere, trafficking in women and forced prostitution;  

(c) Physical, sexual and psychological violence perpetrated or condoned by the State, 
wherever it occurs.  

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

  7 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Article 4 of the Istanbul Convention covers: 

Fundamental rights, equality and non-discrimination  

 

1 Parties shall take the necessary legislative measures and other actions to promote and 
protect the right for everyone, particularly women, to live free from violence in both the 
public and the private sphere.  

2 Parties condemn all forms of discrimination against women and take, without delay, the 
necessary legislative and other measures to prevent it, in particular by:  

• embodying in their national constitutions or other appropriate legislation the 
principle of equality between women and men and ensuring the practical 
realisation of this principle;  

• prohibiting discrimination against women, including through the use of sanctions, 
where appropriate;  

• abolishing laws and practices which discriminate against women.  

3 The implementation of the provisions of this Convention by the Parties, in particular 
measures to protect the rights of victims, shall be secured without discrimination on any 
ground such as sex, gender, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, 
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, age, state of health, disability, marital status, migrant or 
refugee status, or other status.  

4 Special measures that are necessary to prevent and protect women from gender-based 
violence shall not be considered discrimination under the terms of this Convention. 

 
 
The Welsh Context  
The Welsh policy and legislative landscape has prioritised VAWDASV for a number of years 
and the objectives and aims of this Strategy encompass these responsibilities as they are 
placed on those working in the VAWDASV sector in the region.  

In 2010, the Wales Right to be Safe Strategy set out an integrated, cross government 
programme of action to tackle all forms of violence against women and children. This was 
refreshed in November 2016 and published as the Welsh Government’s National Strategy on 
Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, 2016 - 2021.4 Itself a 

                                                           
4 http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf - pages 5 -8. 
http://www.un.org/documents/ga/res/48/a48r104.htm 
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/gender-equality/ 
https://www.coe.int/en/web/istanbul-convention/home?desktop=true 
 

 

Page 107

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf%20-%20pages%205%20-8
http://www.un.org/documents/ga/res/48/a48r104.htm
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/gender-equality/
https://www.coe.int/en/web/istanbul-convention/home?desktop=true


 

  8 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

requirement of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015. 

This Regional Strategy will also support the delivery of a number of key priorities in the Welsh 
Government “Taking Wales Forward” five year plan, as well as the following relevant legislation:   
The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out seven wellbeing goals 
relevant to the prevention of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and 
support of survivors. The Act puts in place a “sustainable development principle” which requires 
public bodies to follow five ways of working to ensure they work collaboratively with people and 
communities, avoid repeating past mistakes and to tackle some of the long term challenges 
being faced. The five ways of working in the context of VAWDASV are: 

• Prevention: Understanding and preventing the occurrence of VAWDASV and 
preventing poor outcomes for victims, survivors and their families.  

 

• Integration: Integrating activity across the statutory and third sector and ensuring the 
coordination of programmes of work such that they achieve the maximum benefit. 

 

• Collaboration: Collaborating through the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board, the 
Strategic Delivery Group and Sub-groups and between the partner bodies. 

 

• Involvement: Listening to victims and survivors to understand their experiences of the 
support offered to them to continually review and make improvements in responses. 
Involving all agencies that are able to make an impact on VAWDASV.  

 

• Long Term: Considering the long term outcomes for victims, survivors and their families 
and in particular any children and young people exposed to VAWDASV.  

 

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014  provides a legal framework for improving 
the well-being of people (adults and children) who need care and support, carers who need 
support, and for transforming social services in Wales. The Population Needs Assessment 5 is a 
Gwent level area assessment that sets out seven core themes and identifies violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence as one of these.  Close working will be 
established between the Greater Gwent Health, Social Care and Well-Being Partnership Board, 
the Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership Board 
and the five Public Services Boards to align future work plans around early intervention and 
preventative services.   

                                                           
5 Social Services and Well-being Act Population Needs Assessment: Gwent Region Report DRAFT Nov 2016: page 54 

Page 108

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/contents/enacted
http://gov.wales/docs/strategies/160920-taking-wales-forward-en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/pdfs/anaw_20140004_en.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.co.uk/documents/care-and-support/population-needs-assessment/population-needs-assessment-gwent-region-report-may-2017.pdf


 

  9 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 - enshrines in legislation the role of the local authority in 
preventing and alleviating homelessness. 

The Welsh Government guidance which supports the practical delivery of the legislation advises 
local authorities and their partners that: 

“Local authorities should be led by the wishes and feelings of the victim of domestic abuse 
when determining accommodation arrangements. The first option, where appropriate, should be 
for the perpetrator to be removed from the property to enable the victim to remain in their home. 
The Local Authority must also consider improving the security of the applicant’s home to enable 
them to continue living there safely. Alternatively, the Local Authority must assist the victim in 
sourcing alternative accommodation, whether on a permanent or temporary basis”. 6 

The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 - sets out a new approach to joint contracts which will 
help survivors by enabling perpetrators to be targeted for eviction.  

The Wales Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) study 7 examined the exposure in childhood 
to a range of ACE’s and presented research on the developmental well-being of children 
growing up in such households. Domestic abuse, emotional, physical and sexual abuse, 
parental separation, as well as parental incarceration, are all indicators that affect childhood 
development due to the stressors they cause. In addition those exposed to four or more ACE’s 
are more likely to adopt health harming behaviour in later life and are more likely to be future 
victims or perpetrators of crime and violence.   

 

The UK Context 

For non-devolved services the Strategy is supported by the Home Office Ending Violence 
Against Women and Girls Cross Departmental Strategy 2016-2020  

The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board members include Gwent Police, the Office of the 
Gwent Police and Crime Commissioner, Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Services and the 
Wales Community Rehabilitation Company. These arrangements build on the strong long-
standing partnerships across the region between the devolved and non-devolved sector and 
reflect other strategic regional arrangements in the Public Services Boards, the Regional 
Transformation Board and Safeguarding Boards. 

Associated legislation that supports delivery at a UK level includes:  

• Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”) introduces FGM Protection Orders  
and an FGM mandatory reporting duty inserted into the 2003 Act by the Serious Crime 
Act 2015. 

• Crime and Security Act 2010 – which introduces Domestic Violence Protection Orders 
(DVPOs) and the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme (DVDS). 

                                                           
6 Welsh Government 2016. Code of Guidance for local authorities on the allocation of housing and homelessness 
7 Public Health Wales (2015) Wales Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) study, PHW 

Page 109

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/1/contents/enacted
http://www2.nphs.wales.nhs.uk:8080/PRIDDocs.nsf/7c21215d6d0c613e80256f490030c05a/d488a3852491bc1d80257f370038919e/$FILE/ACE%20Report%20FINAL%20(E).pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/31/pdfs/ukpga_20030031_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/17/section/7


 

  10 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

• Welfare Reform Act 2012 – A paradigm change to the current social security system 
which will change the way welfare benefits are claimed and paid throughout the UK. 

• Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 - which introduces Sexual Harm 
Prevention Orders (SHPOs) and Sexual Risk Orders (SROs). 

• The Modern Slavery Act 2015  - Considers slavery, servitude and forced or compulsory 
labour and human trafficking, includes provision for the protection of victims.  

• Welfare Reform Act 2012 – A paradigm change to the current social security system 
which will change the way welfare benefits are claimed and paid throughout the UK. 

 

Guidance that informs the delivery of this Strategy includes:  

 

• The 2014 National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidelines: “Domestic violence 
and abuse: how health services, social care and the organisations they work with can 
respond effectively”. This guidance, which applies across England and Wales, highlights 
that domestic abuse is a complex issue requiring sensitive handling collaboratively with 
health and social care professionals.  

 

• FGM statutory guidance 8 issued under section 5C(1) of the Female Genital Mutilation 
Act 2003 and extends to England and Wales and includes updated procedural 
information.  

 

• Updated statutory guidance on conducting Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR). This 
considers the changing landscape and makes reference to new tools that have been 
implemented, such as the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme and Domestic 
Violence Protection Orders, as well as the new coercive and controlling offence 
introduced in the Serious Crime Act 2015. This statutory guidance is accompanied by 
key findings from analysis undertaken by Home Office researchers on a sample of 40 
DHRs from across England and Wales completed between 2013 and 2016.9   

 

• Updated Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme guidance – often referred to as “Clare’s 
Law” – which sets out procedures that could be used by the police to disclose 

                                                           
8https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Rep
orting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf 
 

9https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-homicide-review-lessonslearned 

Page 110

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/schedule/5/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/contents/enacted
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/512906/Multi_Agency_Statutory_Guidance_on_FGM__-_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/revised-statutory-guidance-for-theconduct-of-domestic-homicide-reviews
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-violence-disclosure-scheme-pilot-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Reporting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Reporting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-homicide-review-lessonslearned


 

  11 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

information about an individual’s previous violent and abusive offending behaviour, 
where this may help protect their partner, or ex-partner, from violence or abuse.  

 

• The 2016 England and Wales National Statement of Expectations, sets out what local 
commissioners (Police and Crime Commissioners, Local Authorities or health 
commissioners) need to put in place to ensure their response to violence against women 
and girls is collaborative, robust and effective. 

Page 111

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/574665/VAWG_National_Statement_of_Expectations_-_FINAL.PDF


 

  12 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

3. THE GWENT VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN, DOMESTIC ABUSE AND 
SEXUAL VIOLENCE PARTNERSHIP BOARD AND ITS VISION 

 

Board Membership 

The Partnership Board has been established to provide a governance structure to develop, 
approve and monitor VAWDASV regional working. A key role of the Board is the development 
of the Strategy which is a statutory requirement placed on Local Authorities and Local Health 
Boards under Section 5 the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
(Wales) Act 2015.   

In recognition that effective responses to VAWDASV must, by necessity, involve the full range 
of partners including devolved and non-devolved organisations, third sector specialist 
organisations, survivors and those impacted by forms of VAWDASV, the membership of the 
Board reflects the widest possible perspective and range of information. Membership also 
includes representatives able to provide national context and oversight. A full list of Board 
Membership is available on request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk.   

Board membership is replicated as required across the Strategic Delivery Group which through 
its Sub Groups and Task Groups will work towards achieving the Strategic Priorities of the 
Board.    

Ensuring regular victim/survivor/service-user engagement and input into all work streams not 
just participation at the Board level is an essential requirement for informing the Partnership 
Board on the effectiveness of its work.  This will be achieved through establishing clear 
structures for engagement as outlined in Chapter 6.  

 

Board Structure  

 

Page 112

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk


 

  13 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

The Regional Context 

 
The regional approach to addressing domestic abuse was developed in Gwent by the Welsh 
Government funded Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder Project (Puckett 2014) which made 
recommendations around the need for ‘a coherent regional strategic framework regarding 
accountability, need, service provision, resource allocation, training, performance and 
outcomes’.   

The work now underway in Gwent, including that of the Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder 
Project, has built upon strongly established regional partnerships.  The Pan-Gwent Domestic 
Abuse Forum provided the baseline for where we are now and enabled such collaboration as 
the Welsh Domestic Abuse Modernisation Project10 

 

The Gwent Regional Team was established in April 2015 to formalise regional collaboration; to 
bring together and further develop structures to implement new legislative requirements under 
the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse And Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.   

 

Early development of the regional model was independently evaluated by Cordis Bright 2015 11 
and based on a set of recommendations that has set the direction for continued regional 
working. 

 

During this time Gwent has been an early adopter site for ‘Ask and Act’ targeted enquiry, 
developing policy and training ahead of national roll out.  It is also in this role as a pathfinder 
region that Gwent develops its regional strategy ahead of national guidance. 

 

The purpose of this strategy is to set out the regional integrated approach to stop violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence, to improve the health and well-being of 
individuals and families affected by abuse and hold to account those who perpetrate such 
abuse. It aims to build on existing successful partnerships and collaborative working 
opportunities in the region, and to further increase public awareness and assist local 
communities, individuals, family members and agencies to deliver a robust response to violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence prevention across Gwent. The Partnership 
Board’s ultimate goal is to move towards a society where everybody is able to live violence, 
abuse and fear free. 

                                                           
10 Welsh Domestic Abuse Modernisation Project: Report from the Gwent Pilot Group, February 2012 

11 South East Wales VAWDASV Board: Evaluation of the regional VAWDASV model: April 2016. Cordis Bright 

Page 113



 

  14 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

It is intended that this Gwent strategic framework, and the associated actions and activities 
detailed within the accompanying delivery plan, will support the Welsh Government and UK 
Government legislative, strategic and delivery framework to achieve the prevention of violence 
and abuse, the protection of victims and the support of all those affected. The pillars of these 
devolved and non-devolved strategies have informed this Strategy. Over the next four years, 
services and commissioners in Gwent will support a transformation in service delivery and a 
step change in action to achieve a sustainable reduction in violence and abuse, to help 
survivors of abuse rebuild their lives and to prevent such abuse from happening in the first 
place.  

 

Our aim for this strategy is to also influence, help shape and contribute to meeting key regional 
policy priorities. Accordingly, there exists a formal line of reporting for this Strategy and delivery 
plan from the Partnership Board to demonstrate the role that this strategy has in contributing to 
a number of key regional priorities for: 

  
• The five Public Services Boards  

• The SEW Children’s Safeguarding Board 

• The Gwent Adult Safeguarding Boards 

• The Supporting People Regional Collaborative Committee 

• Greater Gwent Health, Social Care and Well-Being Partnership Board 

• Safer Gwent 

• Gwent Substance Misuse Area Planning Board  

• Gwent Criminal Justice Board 

 

This Strategy mirrors the national strategy in organising the work that needs to be done along 
three key strands: 

 

 Prevention 

 Protection 

 Support 

 
 
In developing the Strategy the Partnership Board has considered current service provision, 
integrated the requirements of the Act and Welsh Government Policy, the result of the needs 

Page 114



 

  15 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

assessment of the area, a strategic analysis of needs, and involved victims and survivors. The 
associated Strategic Delivery Plan follows the six strategic aims of the National Delivery Plan 
and sets them in a regional context for the area. In so doing the key objectives and activities 
required to enhance current service provision over the lifetime of the Strategy are captured. 

The Partnership Board recognises, and is committed to, regional working with a view to 
increased consistency of provision, shared best practice including information sharing, the 
development of common commissioning principles, and harnessing the contributions of all 
partners in the strategic vision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



 

  16 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

 

4. CURRENT PROVISION IN THE REGION 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services rest within the statutory 
and specialist sector. Statutory duties are organised through criminal justice services, local 
authority social services, housing services and local health board provision. The role of the 
specialist sector enhances statutory delivery bringing expertise and knowledge that is not 
possible in the statutory sector and an ability to effectively engage with victims and survivors.  

Commissioned, and grant funded services, have historically evolved at the individual 
geographical level of the five constituent authorities in the region. Notably those services 
commissioned through the management of Welsh Government anti-poverty programme funding 
by local authorities.  More recently regionalised planning of the Supporting People Programme, 
through the Regional Collaborative Committee and the VAWDASV fund has determined 
regionalised arrangements, including the Regional VAWDASV Team and commissioned 
homelessness prevention services. Other Welsh Government programme funding i.e. Flying 
Start, Families First, and the former Communities First funding has been managed at local 
authority geographies. Due to the prevalence of VAWDASV in the casework of social services 
departments, core local authority funding has also been used to commission specialist services 
from the third sector to enhance statutory provision. There is, however, no local authority 
funding or commissioning of sexual violence services. Devolved and non-devolved funding 
models have presented an immediate risk to the sustainability of Sexual Assault Referral 
Centres (SARCs) as identified in the needs assessment that underpins this strategy. 

The Greater Gwent Health Social Care and Well-being Partnership Board is the statutory 
regional board under the Social Services and Well-being Act and has identified VAWDASV as a 
key strand in its Area Plan (under development). 

 

Specialist Sector 

There are currently 10 specialist sector providers in the region delivering a range of services 
that address violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. As the specialist 
sector has historically been operating on smaller geographies some services operate in smaller 
areas than the whole region, others more latterly provide services across the area.  

1. Barnardos 

2. BAWSO 

3. Cyfannol Womens Aid 

4. Hafan Cymru 

5. Llamau 

6. New Pathways 

Page 116



 

  17 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

7. Newport Women’s Aid 

8. Phoenix Domestic Abuse Services 

9. Victim Support/Connect Gwent 

10. SEWREC 

 

The specialist sector has developed in response to need over many years and while services 
may serve similar client groups the mechanisms and specialisms differ in each provider. In 
addition to the local sector provision, national services also exist. A current directory of services 
available in the region is held on the Gwent Adult Safeguarding Board website at: 

http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-
_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf 

The VAWDASV needs assessment and strategic analysis includes further information on 
specialist services. 

 

There are multi-agency centres in each of the five local authorities that have been supported by 
Welsh Government capital funding. Historically this was managed by local authority Community 
Safety Partnerships and hence there is a ‘centre’, often termed a ‘one-stop shop’, in each local 
authority that provides a focus for support services to operate out of, and a centre for  victims, 
survivors and their families to receive services and programmes of support from the specialist 
sector. The benefits of multi-agency centres is that they are close to populations and therefore 
will continue to be important in the delivery of the Strategy going forward. Multi-agency centres 
across the region are either owned and provided by the local authority or the specialist sector. 

 

Other grant funding includes that which is devolved through the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Home Office. Aligned to criminal justice provision, the support for victims 
and the reduction in attrition of witness evidence in order to increase the conviction of 
perpetrators, the funding supports specialist Independent Sexual Violence Advisors (ISVA) and 
Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA) positions. The Gwent Police and Crime 
Commissioner (along with Welsh Government) has funded a regionalised approach to IDVA 
provision  including support for posts across Gwent and a regional IDVA manager located within 
the Regional VAWDASV Team. 

Specialist criminal justice support for victim/witnesses through ISVA and IDVA positions also 
exist within specialist sector arrangements, including the local Sexual Assault Referral Centre 
(SARC), located in Risca. 

 

Public Sector 

Outside of the specialist sector public services across Gwent provide support and intervention 
as part of universal services.   

Page 117

http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf
http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf


 

  18 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) operate in each of the five local 
authority areas. Chaired by Gwent Police Detective Inspectors, with a fortnightly frequency of 
meetings, the MARACs discuss high risk cases referred from all partners to establish what 
further support is needed and to coordinate that support through the MARAC. 

Domestic Abuse Conference Calls (DACCs) are an early prevention mechanism with the aim of 
identifying interventions for victims who come to the attention of Gwent Police prior to MARAC 
threshold levels. The call has been replaced by a Mircrosoft Sharepoint package that currently 
delivers the necessary information on victims to all partners. DACCs are managed from the 
Gwent Police Public Protection Unit.   

Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (“MAPPA”) operate in Gwent. These are 
designed to protect the public, including previous victims of crime, from serious harm by sexual 
and violent offenders. They require the local criminal justice agencies and other bodies dealing 
with offenders to work together in partnership in dealing with these offenders.  

WISDOM (Wales Integrated Serious and Dangerous Offender Management)  is a multi-agency 
team consisting of Probation, Police, Psychologists and other local partners working together to 
risk of serious harm through offending by integrating agencies in the management and 
supervision of offenders. Priority domestic abuse perpetrators fall within the WISDOM definition 
of high risk of causing serious harm and are the focus of the Gwent pilot. 

Violence against women, in its definition includes; female genital mutilation, forced marriage, so 
called ‘honour based’ violence and trafficking of women and has lead police officers within the 
Gwent Police Force structure to link closely to specialist Black Minority Ethnic (BME) support 
providers and national coordination mechanisms.  

Connect Gwent, the Gwent Police victims’ hub draws together specialist victim support services 
in a centrally managed location so that the most appropriate support can be identified and 
delivered to victims of crime. Connect Gwent receive all victims details electronically direct 
through Police systems and hence provide a further coordinating mechanism for VAWDASV 
victims where consent is given. 

Probation services, through the Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service and the Wales 
Community Rehabilitation Company, provide bespoke interventions and support for offenders 
with VAWDASV in their backgrounds. 

VAWDASV within the local health board is given focus through safeguarding structures. 
Mandated targeted enquiry exists through midwifery and health visiting services. The Aneurin 
Bevan University Health Board will also form part of the Gwent early adopter site for Ask and 
Act. More widely within the health board the links to the causative factors of VAWDASV e.g. 
mental health, substance misuse and the effects of VAWDASV ( i.e. injury, counselling needs) 
are acutely felt.  

The impacts on adults, children and young people exposed to VAWDASV are all too evident.  
Local Authority Social Care Services provide care and support to adults and children at risk of 
abuse or neglect.  All forms of VAWDASV feature significantly as presenting issues.  Ask and 
Act policy framework will support earlier disclosure and appropriate referral into services. 

 

Page 118



 

  19 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Housing Related Support 

Across Gwent the Supporting People Programme invests approximately £1.8 million in services 
for women and men who have experienced VAWDASV. These services include refuge 
provision, specialist refuge provision, floating support, drop in services, family support, 
specialist BME services, and target hardening. In addition the programme funding across the 
region enables people to receive other support that reduces their risk of becoming homeless 
including direct financial support and support for people with needs that often co-occur with 
VAWDASV e.g. mental health, substance misuse, debt etc. 

The Supporting People planning framework adopted across the region considers population 
needs through the Gwent Needs Mapping Exercise, performance information, stakeholder 
input, service user feedback, best practice, and legal and policy drivers. Plans exist at the 
regional level and within Local Commissioning Plans. A regional refuge equipped to address 
more complex needs is being developed in the South of Gwent to receive referrals from across 
the region. 

Registered Social Landlords, and in Caerphilly council ‘Caerphilly Homes’, have their own 
programmes of support that prioritise VAWDASV victims and provide target hardening so that 
they may stay in their own homes. 

 

Perpetrator Services 

Programmes to deter the continued and escalating abusive behaviour of perpetrators exist 
within Gwent although, as with the rest of the UK, some of these are relatively new and have 
strict criteria for inclusion. Within Gwent, in addition to court mandated programmes run by the 
Wales Community Rehabilitation Company (probation service), there are community based 
perpetrator programmes. These consist of a Barnardos programme based in Caerphilly and  
Newport (since January 2017) which are both funded by Social Services working with 
perpetrators where there is a recognised risk to children, and one operated by Phoenix 
Domestic Abuse Services in Blaenau Gwent which is open access for local residents and at 
cost for others. Programmes for young perpetrators (under 18 years of age) are run in Blaenau 
Gwent, Caerphilly and Newport usually through the local Youth Offending Services. These 
programmes focus on a mixture of intimate and adolescent inter-familial abuse. Work needs to 
be undertaken to understand perpetrator work in relation to early intervention and other forms of 
VAWDASV within all types of relationships. 

 

Training 

The region has been one of the Welsh Government early adopter sites for Ask and Act and as 
such has begun the roll out of Group 1, 2 and 3 of the National Training Framework to relevant 
authority staff across Gwent.  A suite of VAWDASV multi-agency training is delivered across the 
region raising awareness on specialist topics: Domestic Abuse; Sexual Violence; Working with 
Male Victims; ‘Honour-Based Violence’; Understanding Perpetrators; Effects upon Children; 
Coercive Control; referral into MARAC. 

Page 119



 

  20 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Healthy Relationships 

Across the region there are a range of healthy relationship programmes being delivered to 
children and young people both within educational and community settings.  Whilst there are a 
number of organisations delivering preventative work, within schools healthy relationship 
sessions are predominantly delivered as part of the Hafan Cymru Spectrum Programme funded 
by Welsh Government.   In addition schools across Gwent have their own provision and online 
resources around respectful and healthy relationships that they can access at their own pace.  
The Gwent Education Safeguarding Leads have been critical partners in identifying pilot sites 
within education for the early adoption of Ask and Act. 

 

5. NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 
This Strategy has been informed by a VAWDASV needs assessment for the region, and an 
associated strategic analysis. The full assessment document and strategic analysis is available 
on request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk. The Partnership Board commissioned 
Welsh Women’s Aid to undertake the needs assessment, building on the 2014 work done as 
part of the Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder Project. Further work has been done to analyse 
the results of the needs assessment through a strategic analysis to help define the strategy and 
delivery plan for the region. 

The needs assessment is linked to the Greater Gwent Health, Social Care & Well-being 
Partnership Population Needs Assessment required under the Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014. There is a commitment to ensure that this strategy and its underpinning 
needs assessment will be used as the basis for forward planning and to inform the Area Plan 
for the region.   

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in Gwent 

It should be noted that a detailed demography and population profiles for individual local 
authorities is included in the five Public Services Board’s well-being assessments under the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Included within the Board’s assessment 
and analysis are snapshots from the abbreviated profile and population projections for the 
region contained within the Social Services and Well-being Act Population Needs Assessment: 
Gwent Regional Report (2016)12 In addition the Safer Gwent Strategic Assessment13, national 

                                                           
12 http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/PopulationNeedsAssessment(eng).aspx 
 
13http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-
DRAFT-v3.pdf 

 

Page 120

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s7459/04%20z%20PNA%20Draft%20Dec%202016.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/PopulationNeedsAssessment(eng).aspx
http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-DRAFT-v3.pdf
http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-DRAFT-v3.pdf


 

  21 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

data, and proxy data e.g. number of children on the child protection register has been included 
in the full assessment documen 

 

Commissioning to meet needs 

Whilst it is important to recognise that this is not a commissioning strategy, its content and 
associated strategic delivery plan will inform the development of regional commissioning 
guidelines. It is important to consider key commissioning principles, drivers and barriers in 
terms of delivering the strategic priorities.  Currently the Partnership Board does not directly 
hold any budget for commissioning VAWDASV services. Services are commissioned by a wide 
range of funding sources and directly from funding providers to those services themselves, 
rather than through any centrally held procurement arrangements. Likewise, Board partners 
commit significant core funding to mitigate the effects of VAWDASV across the population. 
However, in developing this strategy the knowledge and expertise resides in the Board’s 
partners, and its operational groups.  It will be the aim of the Partnership Board to use this 
expertise at the earliest opportunity to guide commissioning across the region.  

For example, in order to deliver a mixed market of specialist support services for violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence survivors it is essential that we consider at 
an early stage the approach we will take and the principles we will adhere to when doing this.  
Our commissioning principles will be informed by the 10 procurement principles of The Welsh 
Public Procurement Policy14.  

This also takes into account the feedback that we have had from providers and survivors in 
terms of stability, consistency and continuity of services and will contribute to the delivery of 
strategic priorities. 

Accordingly we will develop commissioning principles based on: 

• Using the data and information contained within this strategy to inform our thinking in the 
development of a regional commissioning strategy. 

• Developing specifications that take into account the delivery of our strategic priorities for 
violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in Gwent. 

• Considering the sustainability of funding for services and contributing to the Welsh 
Government scoping on a sustainable funding model for VAWDASV 

• Where possible, providing stability to the sector in terms of the duration of the 
contract(s) and funding for the lifetime of the contract for violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence  services  

• We will work collaboratively with our partners and stakeholders within the violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence sector and other associated 
sectors (for example, education) in the development and commissioning of a mixed 
market for violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services. 

                                                           
14 Wales Procurement Policy Welsh Government 2015:  

Page 121

http://www.gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015
http://www.gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015


 

  22 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Furthermore, during workshops with providers to map out and understand current and potential 
future referral pathways and survivor journeys a number of barriers were identified.  This led to 
the focus groups determining that it is essential that any eligibility criteria associated with 
accessing service provision is based solely on a need to access any violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence service rather than a level of risk, complexity or the 
availability of services. 

 

Page 122



 

  23 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

6. SURVIVORS AS EXPERTS 
  

This strategy recognises the vital importance of  collaborating with survivors and service users, 
who are ‘experts by experience’ in terms of what has worked for them, their pathways through 
services and how easy (or difficult) it has been to find the right service and move towards 
independence and freedom from abuse. 

‘Putting our opinion forward is most important’         ‘Our feedback matters’  

‘I can make a difference to others’         ‘I have a voice’  

(Strategy consultation – survivors)  

Local survivor engagement has informed the development of this Strategy and will continue to 
be an important aspect for delivery for the Partnership Board. Without the input and opinion of 
service users providers cannot shape service provision to be responsive to the very individual 
needs of victims and survivors. Service user perceptions provide the continuous opportunity to 
inform, refine and improve services.    

The structures for continued survivor engagement in the delivery of this strategy are being 
developed as a distinct work-stream that will provide the Partnership Board with the 
mechanisms to ensure the voice of survivors in Gwent is central to all work. 

To underpin and inform the development of this strategy, two focus groups were held in Gwent 
with survivors who have been involved in services within the Region.  The purpose of the focus 
groups was to map the experiences of survivors and service users of specialist services in 
Gwent and to assess the coverage and availability of services. 

Following publication of the draft strategy the Regional Partnership consulted widely in the form 
of a survey monkey questionnaire and focus groups held with survivors.  This has been critical 
to further develop the strategy, and has significantly informed the intentions and understanding 
of our 6 strategic priorities as outlined in chapter 8.    

National survivor consultation has also informed this document taking the key findings of the 
Welsh Government “Are you listening and am I being heard?” report15.  This work was informed 
by 66 survivors who attended focus groups, having experienced a range of violence and abuse 
including domestic abuse, sexual violence, forced marriage, Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), 
‘honour-based violence’, sexual exploitation, trafficking and child sexual abuse. 

It is important to note that there was limited consultation with male survivors during the 
development of the strategy which has highlighted significant gaps in knowledge. The 
Partnership Board will endeavour to consult widely with all survivor groups including male 
victims and others who are affected by VAWDASV (including community support networks).  
Survivor consultation underpinned by best practice guidance for the Region, will continue to 
inform the delivery of this strategy.  

                                                           
15http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_
FINAL_July_2016.pdf   

Page 123

http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_FINAL_July_2016.pdf
http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_FINAL_July_2016.pdf


 

  24 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

 

Output from Consultations with Survivors 

The detail associated with the focus groups, together with the outputs and outcomes from other 
survivor consultation is included at Appendix 2, however, a summary of key points is provided 
below. 

• Survivors identified a number of key concerns in terms of the levels of awareness and 
knowledge when trying to get help, assistance and advice that were common across 
statutory services, encounters with GPs, ambulance and paramedics, and housing 
organisations. 

• Survivors felt that their experience may have been different if professionals had received 
appropriate training in order to be able to identify violence against women, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence and know who to inform.  

• Some survivors felt that in their encounters with (for example) social services (adults 
and children/young people), survivors reported that (it) frequently felt like “…a secondary 
source of victimisation…” and reported experiences of “bullying” in terms of their choices 
and decisions they needed to make.  

• The perception of some survivors was that services were sometimes disjointed with 
eligibility, access, and referral pathways not always clear, whilst services for women 
from black and minority communities were only available in certain areas and not always 
accessible throughout Gwent. However, it should be noted that this is not the perception 
of all survivors who were consulted. 

• Survivors expressed their fear of disclosing to Social Services in case their children 
were removed from their care. This view is also reinforced by perpetrators to exert 
further control over their victims. 

• Survivors recognised that the National Strategy includes priorities for action that if 
implemented would challenge the behaviours and actions of perpetrators, and they felt 
that this is very positive. They identified a number of actions in terms of how they felt 
perpetrators should receive harsher consequences for violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence offences and actions to address issues at an earlier 
age to prevent abusive behaviours. 

• Survivors felt that it is essential that trained staff from independent specialist violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services are co-located in a wide 
range of public services 

• Survivors (along with other stakeholders) identified a range of suggestions for improving 
services in Gwent, details of which are provided at Appendix 2. 

 

 

Page 124



 

  25 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

7. ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS 

 

Engagement and consultation was carried out with survivors (see Section 6 Survivors as 
Experts), specialist service providers, generic service providers, commissioners, stakeholders 
and Partnership Board members.   

Participants were highly engaged in providing both positive and negative observations of the 
current and future landscape. To achieve this level of engagement considerable effort was 
made to engage with contributors and to arrange one-to-one appointments and/or focus groups.  
Contributors were also offered the option of filling in a questionnaire. 

The information gathered during this process formed a broad spectrum of opinion.  Issues 
highlighted can be matched to the Welsh Government six national strategic objectives (see 
Chapter 8) and are presented within Appendix 2. 

Key concerns are outlined below: 

• Lack of understanding amongst professionals leading to reduced confidence in 
professional contacts. 

• Both recognition and concern over the preventative and pastoral role of education in 
dealing with issues of VAWDASV. 

• The effectiveness of services aimed at holding perpetrators to account and the 
consistency and availability of provision across the region. 

• The persistent difficulty to prioritise and define early intervention. 

• Consistency and sustainability of training. 

• The lack of an integrated referral pathway into services and how to ensure that services 
are sustainable long term. 

• Perceived victim blaming by statutory services  

The findings from this engagement process are fully integrated within the Partnership Boards 
Strategic Priorities going forward. 

 

 

Page 125



 

  26 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

8. HOW WE WILL ACT TOGETHER TO TACKLE VAWDASV: OUR STRATEGIC 
PRIORITIES 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence impacts upon all services, not 
least adult and children’s social services, housing, criminal justice, education, the police, health 
services, and voluntary and community organisations. This strategy will further enable a 
coordinated community response within Gwent in order to reduce the prevalence and impact of 
violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and increase the awareness and 
ability to act swiftly and effectively within communities and professionals.  

The Partnership Board want to ensure that all agencies and organisations within the region 
respond effectively to the challenges and issues both within their own organisations and in 
collaboration with partners and stakeholders to prevent harm, reduce risk and increase the 
immediate and long term safety of people living within the region. 

In line with The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, we intend to deliver on the 
actions within this strategy using the “sustainable development principle” and follow five ways of 
working to ensure we work collaboratively with people and communities, avoid repeating past 
mistakes and tackle some of the long terms challenges we face. 

Accordingly we will achieve this by: 

• Prevention: Recognising that early intervention is the primary overarching principle to 
tackling VAWDASV and improving outcomes for victims and those closest to them, 
particularly children in families.  

• Integration: Consider how the violence against women domestic abuse and sexual 
violence objectives impact upon each of the well-being goals16, and on the objectives 
and priorities of other key statutory services strategies. 

• Collaboration: Members of The Partnership Board will work collaboratively with partners 
and stakeholders to ensure that the actions, objectives and targets of this strategy are 
met. 

• Involvement: We will ensure that we engage and involve the right people at the right 
time with a focus on survivor engagement. 

• Long Term: We will approach regional commissioning and the implementation of an 
agreed sustainable funding model pragmatically and ensure that the short term needs of 
survivors continue to be met whilst any longer term reconfiguration is undertaken 

 

We will also ensure the efficient integration of services in terms of the effective management 
and delivery of specialist violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services 

                                                           
16 The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Page 126

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


 

  27 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

so that service beneficiaries receive a continuum of preventive, safe and supportive services, 
according to their needs that is consistent throughout the region. 

The seven well-being goals contained within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 underpin the objectives which are enshrined within the key thematic purpose of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act): 

 Prevention 

 Protection 

 Support 

Preventing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is the predominant 
outcome that the Partnership Board will focus its efforts on. The associated Delivery Plan will 
align its milestones and targets against the above themes and the strategic priorities. 

Preventing violence and abuse 

Violence against women and girls has been described as 'perhaps the most pervasive violation 
of human rights across the globe' 17 yet it is entirely preventable.  

The priorities identified within this strategy and accompanying Strategic Delivery Plan will 
ensure that The Partnership Board continues to build upon the collaborative approach to 
preventing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence from happening, by 
challenging the attitude and behaviours which foster it, intervening early, where possible, to 
prevent its recurrence, reducing the impact of violence against women, domestic abuse and 
sexual violence and working toward a future where it is eliminated. 

• We will actively work together with schools, government, health, the police/criminal 
justice system, local authorities, and the community to work in a coordinated and 
collaborative way to raise the awareness of violence against women, domestic abuse 
and sexual violence to stop abuse before it begins. 

• We want to be confident that all professionals within our area are equipped with the 
knowledge to effectively respond to any disclosures of violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence.  

Protection  

Protection of survivors is a critical aspect of the coordinated response to violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and The Partnership Board is committed to 
working collaboratively to protect those who are experiencing violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence from suffering further harm, and protect any children within 
the family.   

                                                           
17  http://www.un.org/press/en/1999/19990308.sgsm6919.html 

Page 127

http://www.un.org/press/en/1999/19990308.sgsm6919.html


 

  28 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

• Through collaborative working with partners we will ensure that alleged perpetrators of 
abuse in Gwent are dealt with appropriately and that survivors and their children are 
given protection against further abuse. 

• We want to further develop the evidence base on different manifestations of violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence to help inform regional targeted 
and innovative approaches. 

• We will consider the evidence base for what works in the context of perpetrator 
programmes, identify and disseminate good practice. 

 

Support 

Providing effective support services for people who have been affected by violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is complex, as people’s experiences and needs 
can be vastly different.  However, we will work with partners to promote a supportive culture that 
is underpinned by a range of services that respond to individuals and their families. 

Specialist services in Gwent have adopted an empowerment approach which seeks to restore 
the control to survivors that is stolen by violence. The support they provide creates an 
environment in which survivors can exercise choice and self-determination.  

Gwent has a range of excellent services established over many decades.  Access to such 
services is a right for survivors when suffering domestic violence or abuse, when at risk of 
forced marriage or female genital mutilation, when subject to abuse related to sexual violence, 
prostitution, and all other forms of gender based violence.  The Partnership Board will ensure 
that this good practice is replicated across the region and that the availability of services is 
consistent.      

• We want anyone experiencing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 
violence to be aware of the support that is available within Gwent and have the 
confidence to access them 

• We want survivors to be able to access the service that they need, delivered in the right 
place and at the right time on their recovery  journey 

 

Strategic Priorities 

The Partnership Board has set a clear rationale for identifying the six Strategic Priorities based 
upon the evidence provided:  

 

Strategic Priority 1: Increase awareness and challenge attitudes of violence against 
women, domestic abuse and sexual violence across Gwent. 

Survivors felt that there were people in all services who lacked the necessary knowledge, 
understanding and empathetic attitude to encourage confidence to disclose violence against 

Page 128



 

  29 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  We need to increase awareness for all staff 
within public services; we need also to challenge public perceptions. We need members of the 
community to spot the signs and know where there is support available.  At the same time we 
need to send a clear message that these forms of abuse are not acceptable.  

‘The media, family, schools and employers all need awareness’. 

 ‘People need practical advice on safe ways to contact the police or 
other agencies’.  

‘[We] need to get this issue into public consciousness’  

(Strategy consultation responses – survivors) 

  

Strategic Priority 2: Increase awareness in children and young people of the 
importance of safe, equal and healthy relationships and that abusive behaviour is 
always wrong 

Survivors felt that there was not enough education about healthy relationships and gender 
equality to prevent future abusive behaviour particularly where children had already been 
subjected to violence and abuse in their own homes. Raising awareness of safe and healthy 
relationships enables young people to differentiate between what is acceptable and 
unacceptable behaviour. It is also important that we educate children and young people to know 
that help is available, as well as how to access that support.  

‘I met him when I was 13.  He used to stand outside the school’.   

‘Schools have firework safety sessions every year, but we need to do 
something with VAWDASV which is happening every day of the year’.  

(Strategy consultation responses - survivors) 

 

Strategic Priority 3: Increase focus on holding perpetrators to account and provide 
opportunities to change their behaviour based around victim safety 

There is a need for increased understanding of the current provision across Gwent and 
development of best practice guidance for commissioning services which prioritises victim 
safety.  If we do not hold perpetrators to account we give them no incentive to change their 
behaviour. At the same time we need to provide a clear message about what behaviour/s are 
acceptable in our society.  Some survivors felt that perpetrator programmes did not always 
consider the safety of victim/survivor and any children as a primary focus. Work with 
perpetrators cannot happen in isolation and needs to be rooted in victim safety and prevention. 
If the cycle is to be broken, there is a huge role to play for all services. 

‘The cord is cut once you go to court…if a perpetrator is found not guilty 
in court they can walk down any street and knock on any door…the 
victim has to change their whole life’.   

‘Perpetrator programmes are ‘enigmas that need much more research’’.  

(Strategy consultation responses – survivors) 

Page 129



 

  30 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Strategic Priority 4: Make early intervention and prevention a priority  

Providers tell us that there are many lost opportunities to make every intervention an effective 
and preventative one. Domestic Homicide Reviews highlight missed opportunities to intervene.  
We need professionals and members of the community, to recognise signs, to safely ask 
questions and take appropriate action.  A focus on prevention is important if we are to break the 
cycle of abuse and will mean working holistically to tackle VAWDASV, including working with 
perpetrators, undertaking awareness raising work across all communities including children and 
young people. Providers have expressed concern about prioritising early intervention and 
prevention alongside other competing priorities for the public sector. We must ensure early 
intervention and prevention is core business across all Strategic Priorities.  

‘Support can be good from GPs but you need to be able to have a voice.  
It takes time to build a relationship which is difficult in 10 minutes’.  

‘’Survivors spoke of the need to promote early awareness to by-standers 
so ‘individuals feel empowered to speak up’’.  

(Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

Strategic Priority 5: Relevant professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and 
appropriate responses to victims and survivors 

It is clear from the evidence that disclosures are made by survivors and their families to a range 
of public services.  Survivors felt there was a need for more consistency between services e.g. 
police, housing and support services.  Some survivors felt that staff in both statutory and other 
professional services were not trained and/or did not have the confidence to pick up on issues 
raised, albeit that this may be indirect. The National Training Framework (NTF) aims to 
strengthen the response amongst those offering specialist or universal services.   It aims to 
bring quality assurance and consistency with respect to training professionals around 
VAWDASV issues. Through the NTF we will improve responses across public services, 
promoting early intervention and providing a gateway for victims to access appropriate forms of 
help and support.   

‘Professionals kind of know what you’re going through but they don’t 
acknowledge it because then they would need to do something with the 
information’.  

 ‘Referral process is like walking on hot coals’.  

 ‘I went to the GP every Monday after an incident and I just wanted him 
to ask why are you here? What is happening?’  

 (Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

Page 130



 

  31 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Strategic Priority 6: Provide victims with equal access to appropriately resourced, high 
quality, needs led, strength based, gender responsive services throughout the region. 

Providing support to people affected by VAWDASV can be complex and people’s experience 
and needs can be vastly different. Survivors will choose to engage with services in a variety of 
ways; there needs to be a range of services that are accessible and can respond effectively and 
universally to these needs.   Survivors felt that there were not enough experts based in key 
disclosure points like police stations, hospitals and GP surgeries, The Needs Assessment 
highlighted some of the gaps and capacity issues in specialist service provision.  Providers of 
services raised concerns over insecure funding. Services that are strength- based increase 
resilience, independence and a life free from abuse. Public services, community and voluntary 
organisations and independent specialist services all have a key role to play.  We will focus on 
working collaboratively to develop a framework for service delivery that is sustainable, informed 
by survivors and enables clear referral pathways into specialist services.  

‘You can’t overturn a situation on your own when you’re already 
vulnerable.  Living in fear all the time you are a nervous wreck.  [You] 
don’t always have control over your responses’.   

‘You have to stand on the other side of the glass and explain why you 
are there – people in the waiting room can hear…we need opportunities 
to speak alone’  

 ‘Referral process is like walking on hot coals’  

 ‘Once you’ve told someone you need to leave straight away’ 

 ‘Getting help was the best thing that’s ever happened to me’   

(Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

There will be critical challenges to achieving these which the underpinning engagement 
work and Needs Assessment has articulated.   

 

9. HOW WE WILL MONITOR OUR PROGRESS: OUR STRATEGIC DELIVERY 
PLAN 

 

The Partnership Board will provide the governance structure to develop, approve and monitor 
this joint regional strategy as required by Local Authorities and Local Health Boards under the 
Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.   

There will be formal lines of reporting from the Partnership Board into Public Services Boards, 
Safeguarding Boards and other regional partnerships with opportunities identified to influence 
and inform regional strategic planning. The cross-working and aligned work plans across adults 
and children’s safeguarding structures will assist in the delivery of this strategy.  

Page 131



 

  32 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Measuring the progress of the Strategy 

Welsh Ministers are required to publish annual reports of the progress made towards achieving 
both the objectives in the National Strategy and achievement towards the purpose of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. Section 11 
of the Act also requires Welsh Ministers to ‘publish national indicators that may be applied for 
the purpose of measuring progress towards the achievement of the purpose of this Act.’ The 
national indicators will measure collective national progress in achieving the purpose of the Act.  

Regionally, these National Indicators present agencies and partnerships in Gwent with a 
renewed opportunity to work towards a quality assured coordinated and coherent measurement 
framework and to mainstream violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence 
data across wider policy areas, in a way that aligns with these national indicators.  

The Partnership Board will identify regional outcomes and indicators to measure progress and 
success in delivering this Strategy which, along with the National Indicators, will help public 
bodies, other stakeholders and communities to understand the extent to which our priorities are 
being achieved. 

Regional data will also be used to inform national progress reports, referred to above, which will 
help demonstrate how effective we have been in achieving the Strategic Priorities set out in this 
regional and National Strategy. 

In recognising its role as the ‘Pathfinder Region’ the Partnership Board will commit to 
influencing and contributing to the national VAWDASV agenda.   

 

The Strategic Delivery Plan 

The Strategic Delivery Plan which accompanies this strategy is a working document that 
outlines The Partnership Boards commitment to the next 12 months activity.  The 6 Strategic 
Priorities detailed within the Delivery Plan will contribute to the pursuit of the prevention of 
violence and abuse, the protection of victims and the support of all those affected.   

The statutory responsibilities under the VAWDASV (Wales) Act 2015 will be discharged through 
the VAWDASV Partnership Board and annual reporting against this Regional Strategy and its 
Delivery Plan will be submitted to Gwent Public Services Boards and incorporated into Well-
being plan reporting. 

In developing this strategy and its underpinning research, the on-going work and the focus of 
the Partnership Board has been defined.   The work undertaken to date has provided the region 
with an overview of provision whilst revealing gaps in knowledge and data and that will be 
necessary to address in the immediate and longer term.    

Through its Strategic Delivery Plan the Board has set clear objectives that address each of the 
6 Strategic Priorities and the means by which to achieve these.   The Partnership Board will be 
committed to building on successful work with the specific aim of strengthening and progressing 
provision collaboratively across all areas. 

Page 132



 

  33 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

The Partnership Board through its Strategic Delivery Group will be responsible for the 
implementation and monitoring of the Strategic Delivery Plan. This document is available on 
request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk.  Through its communication framework the 
Partnership Board will ensure that information relating to this Strategy reaches the relevant 
audience by a variety of different methods which are relevant to their needs.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk


 

  34 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Appendix 1   

UNDERSTANDING THE LANGUAGE USED 

 

1. Definitions of abuse (Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 
Sexual Violence Partnership Board Terms of Reference). 

Violence Against Women 

The United Nations defines “Violence against Women” as a "form of discrimination against 
women and a violation of human rights and shall mean all acts of gender-based violence that 
results in, or is likely to result in, physical, sexual or mental harm or suffering to women, 
including threats of such acts, coercion or arbitrary deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in 
public or in private life." 

Domestic Abuse 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 domestic abuse means ‘abuse where the victim of it is or has been associated with the 
abuser. This can be committed by an intimate partner, ex-partner, spouse, civil partner or family 
relative’ (a full definition of intimate and familial relations can be accessed within the Act).  

The abuse can be physical, sexual, psychological, emotional or financial abuse.  

This is in line with the Home Office’s definition of domestic abuse as ‘any incident or pattern of 
incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 
16 or over who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or 
sexuality’. 

The Serious Crime Act 2015 legally defines the offence of coercive and controlling behaviour 
within intimate or familial relations as domestic abuse. ‘Controlling behaviour is a range of acts 
designed to make a person subordinate and/or dependent by isolating them from sources of 
support, exploiting their resources and capacities for personal gain, depriving them of the 
means needed for independence, resistance and escape and regulating their everyday 
behaviour. 

Coercive behaviour is an act or a pattern of acts of assaults, threats, humiliation and 
intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish or frighten their victim’.  

Rape and sexual violence 

Sexual violence is any unwanted sexual act or activity. According to the Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 sexual violence means sexual 
exploitation, sexual harassment, or threats of violence of a sexual nature. The act further 
defines sexual exploitation as something that is done to or in respect of a person which 
warrants an offence under Part 1 of the Sexual Offences Act 2003.This includes the following 
definitions: 

Page 134



 

  35 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

• Rape is when a person intentionally penetrates the vagina, anus or mouth of another 
person with his penis when that other person does not consent to the penetration, 
and/or he does not reasonably believe that the other person consents.  

• Assault by penetration is the intentional sexual penetration of the vagina or anus of 
another person with a part of the person’s body or anything else, when that other person 
does not consent to the penetration, and/or he does not reasonably believe that the 
other person consents. 

• Sexual assault is a person intentionally touching another person sexually in a manner to 
which the other person does not consent to the touching, and/or the person does not 
reasonably believe that the other person consents. 

• Child sex offences including rape or any sexual activity with a child, familial child sex 
offences and meeting a child following sexual grooming. 

 

Sexual harassment 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 harassment means a course of conduct (including speech) by a person which he or she 
knows or ought to know amounts to harassment of the other. For incidents that took place after 
1st October 2005 there are two types of sexual harassment – unwanted contact on the grounds 
of your sex and unwanted physical verbal or non-verbal conduct of a sexual nature. 

Gender Based Violence 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 gender-based violence means: 

• Violence, threats of violence or harassment arising directly or indirectly from values, 
beliefs or customs relating to gender or sexual orientation.  

 

This includes ‘Honour based violence’ which can be distinguished from other forms of 
violence, as it is often committed with some degree of approval and/or collusion from 
family and/or community members.  Examples may include murder, un-explained death 
(suicide), fear of or actual forced marriage, controlling sexual activity, domestic abuse 
(including psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional abuse), child abuse, 
rape, kidnapping, false imprisonment, threats to kill, assault, harassment, forced 
abortion.  This list is not exhaustive. 

 

• Female genital mutilation which is an act that is an offence under sections 1, 2 or 3 of 
the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003. 

 

Page 135



 

  36 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

FGM also known as female circumcision or female genital cutting, is defined by the 
World Health Organisation (WHO) as "all procedures involving partial or total removal of 
the external female genitalia or other injury to the female genital organs for non-medical 
reasons"  as defined by the World Health Organisation (WHO). 

 

• Forcing a person (whether by physical force or coercion by threats or other 
psychological means) to enter into a religious or civil ceremony of marriage (whether or 
not legally binding).This is commonly known as Forced Marriage. The pressure put on 
people to marry against their will can be physical (including threats, actual physical 
violence and sexual violence) or emotional and psychological (for example, when 
someone is made to feel like they’re bringing shame on their family). Financial abuse 
(taking your wages or not giving you any money) can also be a factor. 

 

2. Glossary 

Victim/Survivor:  The term used to describe the person who is potentially experiencing 
violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. Other terms encompassed may 
include; ‘service user’ ‘client’ and ‘patient’ and reflect the terms used by different organisations 
to define their relationship to the person at risk.   In practical terms it is suggested that the 
person experiencing these issues selects the term they prefer, where a term is required. 

Public Service:  Public services are services delivered for the benefit of the public, supported 
via government, to serve people in a particular society or community.  This can include services 
delivered through the third sector, through social enterprise or through services that are 
contracted out. 

Local Authority:  A county council or county borough council 

Relevant authorities:  county councils and county borough councils, Local Health Boards, fire 
and rescue authorities and NHS trusts 

VAWDASV specialist sector:  Third sector organisations whose core business is violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

Independent Domestic Violence Adviser (IDVA):  Trained specialist worker who provides 
short to medium-term casework support for high risk victims of domestic abuse.  

Independent Sexual Violence Adviser (ISVA):  Trained specialist worker who provides 
support to victims/survivors of rape and sexual assault. 

BME/BAME – Black and Minority Ethnic or Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic is the terminology 
used to describe people of non-white descent. 

Ask and Act:  A process of targeted enquiry across the Welsh Public Service in relation to 
violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

Page 136



 

  37 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Target Hardening:  Target hardening is a means with which to make a property safer for the 
resident and reduce the risk of attack in this case by the perpetrator of domestic abuse. (It 
should be part of a ‘spectrum’ of services made available to help to protect victims of domestic 
abuse alongside support in the community, access to refuge provision, involvement of the 
police or other statutory services and programmes for perpetrators of domestic abuse - 
Domestic Abuse and Housing in Wales Factsheet (CIH Cymru 2013) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



APPENDIX B 

1 
 

Fairness and Equalities Impact Assessment (FEIA)  
   
Version 3.6 May 2017 

The purpose of this assessment is to provide balanced information to support decision making 
and to promote better ways of working in line with equalities (Equalities Act 2010), Welsh 
language promotion (The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011), sustainable development 
(Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015), and the four parameters of debate about 
fairness identified by the Newport Fairness Commission (NFC Full Report to Council 2013). 

Completed by:  Rebecca Haycock  Role: Regional Adviser (VAWDASV)  
  
Head of Service: Sally Jenkins  Date: 28/02/2018  
 
I confirm that the above Head of Service has agreed the content of this assessment  

Yes  

When you complete this FEIA, it is your responsibility to submit it to 
impact.assessment@newport.gov.uk  

1. Name and description of the policy / proposal being assessed. Outline the policy’s 
purpose.  
 
 
The Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 
Strategy is a requirement under the VAWDASV (Wales) Act 2015.  The Strategy has been 
prepared by the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board of which Newport City Council is a 
member and the lead organisation for the Regional Coordination Team. 
 
This first joint strategy for Gwent aims to tackle VAWDASV by supporting victims and 
survivors, tackling perpetrators, ensuring professionals have the tools and knowledge to 
act, increasing awareness of VAWDASV and the support available, and helping children 
and young people to understand inequality in relationships and that abusive behaviour is 
always wrong.   

 
 
 

Page 138



APPENDIX B 

2 
 

2. Outline how you have/ will involve stakeholders who will be affected by the 
policy/proposal 
 
The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board is responsible for developing and delivering this 
strategy. Membership includes;  the five local authorities, Gwent Police, and the Office of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Wales 
Ambulance Service Trust, Probation Services, Registered Social Landlords, Supporting 
People Regional Collaborative Committee, Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent Adult and 
Children Safeguarding Boards, VAWDASV specialist sector partners and voluntary sector 
organisations. 
 
Regular victim/survivor/service-user engagement and input into the delivery of the strategy 
is an essential requirement for informing the Partnership Board on the effectiveness of its 
work. 
 
Local survivor engagement has informed the development of this Strategy and will 
continue to be an important aspect for delivery for the Partnership Board. Without the input 
and opinion of service users providers cannot shape service provision to be responsive to 
the very individual needs of victims and survivors.   

Engagement and consultation was carried out with survivors, specialist service providers, generic 
service providers, commissioners, stakeholders and Partnership Board members.   

Activity has included: 

- Oversight/steer at quarterly Board meetings 

- Data collection to inform a VAWDASV needs assessment and an associated strategic 
analysis 

- One to one engagement/interviews  

- Survivor focus groups to develop the strategy (through specialist VAWDASV organisations) 

- Survivor focus groups to consult on the draft strategy (through specialist VAWDASV 
organisations) 

- Public online consultation on the draft strategy 

 

The structures for continued survivor engagement in the delivery of this strategy are being 
developed as a distinct work-stream that will provide the Partnership Board with the 
mechanisms to ensure the voice of survivors in Gwent is central to all work. 

 
 

Page 139



APPENDIX B 

3 
 

3. What information/evidence do you have on stakeholders? e.g. views, needs, 
service usage etc. Please include all the evidence you consider relevant.  
 
Needs Assessment data/Strategic Analysis Document 
Engagement interviews 
Focus group data 
Public consultation feedback 
Board minutes 

 
4. Equalities and Welsh language impact 

 
 
Protected 
characteristic 

Impact:  
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 Po

si
tiv

e 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Age  ☒ ☒ ☐ Children 0-10 

Young people 11-25 
Older people 
Census categories 
0-9 
10 - 24 
25 - 34 
35 – 44 
45 – 54 
55 – 64 
65-74 
75+ 

 
Disability  ☒ ☒ ☐ Disabled including: 

 
Hearing Impaired 
Learning Difficulties 
Physical/ Mobility Impaired  
Speech Impaired  
Visually Impaired 
Other impairment 
 
Not disabled 

 
Gender 
reassignment/ 
transgender  

☒ ☒ ☐  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



APPENDIX B 

4 
 

 
Protected 
characteristic 

Impact:  
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 Po

si
tiv

e 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Marriage or civil 
partnership  

☒ ☒ ☐ • Never married and never registered in a same-sex 
civil partnership 

• Married 

• Separated, but still legally married 

• Divorced 

• Widowed 

• In a registered same-sex civil partnership 

• Separated but still legally in a same-sex civil 
partnership 

• Formally in a same-sex civil partnership which is 
now legally dissolved 

• Surviving partner from a same-sex civil partnership 

 
Pregnancy or 
maternity  

☒ ☒ ☐  
In employment a woman is protected from 
discrimination when she is pregnant and during a 
period of compulsory or additional maternity leave. 
 
In the provision of services, goods and facilities, 
recreational or training facilities, a woman is protected 
from discrimination when she is pregnant and for 26 
weeks from when she has given birth. 
 

 
Race  ☒ ☒ ☐ A White 

☐ British 
☐ Irish 
☐ Gypsy or Irish Traveller 
☐ Any other white background ……….. 
B Mixed/ Multiple 
☐ White and Asian  
☐  White and Black African  
White and Black Caribbean???? 
☐ Any other mixed background…………………………. 
C Asian or Asian British 

Page 141



APPENDIX B 

5 
 

 
Protected 
characteristic 

Impact:  
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 Po

si
tiv

e 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

N
ei

th
er

  

☐ Indian 
☐ Bangladeshi 
☐ Chinese 
☐ Pakistani 
☐ Any other Asian background 
D Black or Black British 
☐ African 
☐ Caribbean 
☐ Any other Black background …………. 
E Other ethnic group 
☐ Arab 
☐ Any other ethnic group …………… 

 
Religion or Belief 
or non-belief  

☒ ☒ ☐ Buddhist  
Christian  
Hindu  
Jewish  
Muslim  
Sikh  
Other religion or belief  
Humanist  
No religion nor belief 
 
 

 
Sex/ Gender 
Identity  

☒ ☒ ☐ Female 
Male 
Prefer to self- describe e.g. Intersex 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sexual Orientation  ☒ ☒ ☐ Gay / Lesbian 

Heterosexual/ Straight 
Prefer to self-describe 
Bisexual 
 
 
 
 

Page 142



APPENDIX B 

6 
 

 
Protected 
characteristic 

Impact:  
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 Po

si
tiv

e 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
 
 
 

 
Welsh Language  ☒ ☒ ☐  What are the Welsh language related impacts/ 

effects (whether positive or negative or both)? 

 How does it mitigate any adverse impacts/ effects 
on the Welsh language? 

 Does it promote and facilitate the use of the Welsh 
language? 

 Does it increase the number of people speaking 
Welsh? 

 
 

 

Page 143



APPENDIX B 

7 
 

 

5 How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable 
development principle in its development? 

Sustainable 
Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this principle?  
Describe how. 

Balancing short 
term need with long 
term needs 

We are required to look beyond the short term timescales for 
financial planning and political cycles and instead plan with 
the longer term in mind (guidance says at least 10 years, but 
preferably 25). Consider what impact this will have on the 
community in the long term. 
 
This VAWDASV Strategy seeks to consider the long term 
outcomes for victims, survivors and their families and in 
particular any children and young people exposed to 
VAWDASV. 
 
We will approach regional commissioning and the 
implementation of an agreed sustainable funding model 
pragmatically and ensure that the short term needs of 
survivors continue to be met whilst any longer term 
reconfiguration is undertaken. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Working together to 
deliver objectives  

Have you considered how acting in collaboration with any 
other person, organisation or any other part of our 
organisation could help meet this proposal and meet our well-
being objectives? 
  
The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership will work collaboratively 
with partners and stakeholders to ensure that the actions, 
objectives and targets of this strategy are met.   
 

Page 144



APPENDIX B 

8 
 

Sustainable 
Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this principle?  
Describe how. 

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

Who are the stakeholders who will be affected by your 
proposal? Have they been involved? Do you plan to involve 
them in the future?  Do those people reflect the diversity of the 
area which is served? 
 

• Residents 

• Local businesses 

• Community groups 

• partners 

Integral to the development and on-going review of this strategy is: 
Listening to victims, survivors and their families to understand their 
experiences of support offered to them to continually review and 
make improvements in responses; Involving all partner agencies 
that are able to make an impact on VAWDASV. 
 

 
 
 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

 
When developing this proposal have you considered what the 
root causes of the issue are? Does this proposal address the 
root causes and prevent them from occurring? 
 
Understanding and preventing the occurrence of VAWDASV 
and preventing poor outcomes for victims, survivors and their 
families.  This strategy recognises that early intervention is the 
primary overarching principle to tackling VAWDASV and 
improving outcomes for victims and those closest to them, 
particularly children. 
 

Page 145



APPENDIX B 

9 
 

Sustainable 
Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this principle?  
Describe how. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies   
 

 
How does this proposal impact on the Well-being Goals, the 
council’s Well-being Objectives and Well-being Objectives 
from other organisations 
Well-being Goals  
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of more cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture an thriving Welsh Language 
• A globally responsible Wales 
It is important to refer to the definitions of each of these goals to 
ensure that you are considering the full implications of each goal.  
These can in the guidance. 
Newport City Council Well-being Goals 
• To improve skills, educational outcomes and employment 

opportunities 
• To promote economic growth and regeneration whilst protecting 

the environment 
• To enable people to be healthy, independent and resilient 
• To build cohesive and sustainable communities 

 
  
6  
The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the Well-being Goals set out in the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of more cohesive communities 
 
The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the Newport City Council Well-being Goals: 

• To enable people to be healthy, independent and resilient 
• To build cohesive and sustainable communities 

 
 

Page 146



APPENDIX B 

10 
 

 
7 Will the proposal/policy have a disproportionate impact on a specific 
geographical area of Newport?  
 
 
No.  This strategy aims to ensure a consistent approach across Gwent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8 How does the proposal/policy relate to the parameters of debate about 
Fairness identified by the Newport Fairness Commission  

 
 
The purpose of this strategy is to address violence against women, domestic abuse and 
sexual violence recognising that it is a violation of human rights and a cause and 
consequence of inequality between women and men.   
 
Whilst it is important that this Strategy acknowledges and communicates the 
disproportionate experience of women and girls it recognises that anyone (women, men, 
children and young people) can experience and be affected by domestic abuse, rape and 
sexual assault, sexual abuse, forced marriage, child sexual abuse, stalking and 
harassment, sexual harassment and exploitation. This can happen in any relationship 
regardless of sex, age, ethnicity, gender, sexuality, disability, religion or belief, income, 
geography or lifestyle. A significant number of those who experience VAWDASV will 
have one or more ‘protected characteristics’, under the Equality Act 2010 and will face 
additional vulnerabilities and increased barriers to support. This Strategy aims to tackle 
all forms of VAWDASV. 
 
 
 

 
9 Taking this assessment as a whole, what could be done to mitigate any 
negative impacts of your policy and better contribute to positive impacts?  
 
 
There are challenges to ensuring that all groups are effectively involved.  It is important to 
note that there was limited consultation with male survivors during the development of the 
strategy which has highlighted significant gaps in knowledge. The Partnership Board are 
aware of the challenges for engaging with particular groups and will endeavour to consult 
widely with all people from a range of different circumstances including male victims and 
others who are affected by VAWDASV (including community support networks).   
 
Survivor consultation underpinned by best practice guidance for the Region, will continue 
to inform the delivery of this strategy.   

Page 147



APPENDIX B 

11 
 

10 Monitoring, evaluating and reviewing 
 
How and when will the impact of the proposal/ policy be monitored and reported on? 
 
The Strategic Delivery Plan which accompanies this strategy is a working document that 
outlines the annual commitment to achieving the strategic priorities.  The Partnership 
Board through its Strategic Delivery Group will be responsible for implementation and 
monitoring.    
 
On-going and emerging issues around equality and diversity will be a priority focus across all 
work-streams and the delivery of the strategy will be informed by these. 
 
Survivor and service user perceptions provide the continuous opportunity to inform, refine and 
improve services. 
 
 

 
11 Involvement 

How will people be advised of the changes and of the FEIA? 
 
The outcome of this FEIA will be reported to each relevant authority partner organisation 
and will be published on Newport City Council’s equalities page. 
 
 

 
12 Summary of Impact (for inclusion in any report)  

 
Equality Act 2010 AND Welsh Language  
 
The purpose of this strategy is to address inequalities inherent in all forms of violence 
against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  There are no identified inequality 
implications either intended or unintended as a result of this strategy.   
 
The strategy has been made available in Welsh throughout consultation.  All required 
partner organisations will be responsible for their obligations under the Welsh language 
Act  
 
Through on-going monitoring, evaluation and review the VAWDASV Partnership will 
ensure issues around equality are consistently raised and delivery of the strategy adapted. 
 
 
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations  (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out seven wellbeing goals relevant to 
the prevention of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and support of 
survivors. The Act puts in place a “sustainable development principle” which requires public bodies 
to follow five ways of working to ensure they work collaboratively with people and communities, 

Page 148

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


APPENDIX B 

12 
 

avoid repeating past mistakes and to tackle some of the long term challenges being faced. The five 
ways of working in the context of VAWDASV are: 

• Prevention: Understanding and preventing the occurrence of VAWDASV and preventing 
poor outcomes for victims, survivors and their families.  

 

• Integration: Integrating activity across the statutory and third sector and ensuring the 
coordination of programmes of work such that they achieve the maximum benefit. 

 

• Collaboration: Collaborating through the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board, the 
Strategic Delivery Group and Sub-groups and between the partner bodies. 

 

• Involvement: Listening to victims and survivors to understand their experiences of the 
support offered to them to continually review and make improvements in responses. 
Involving all agencies that are able to make an impact on VAWDASV.  

 

• Long Term: Considering the long term outcomes for victims, survivors and their families 
and in particular any children and young people exposed to VAWDASV.  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 149



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 150



 

 
 

 

 

CABINET – 11TH APRIL 2018 
 

SUBJECT:  FUTURE REGENERATION PROJECTS – USE OF DIRECTORATE 
RESERVES FOR PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FUNDING 

 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR (COMMUNITIES)  
 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek the agreement of Cabinet to earmark a sum of money from the Communities 

Directorate Reserve to facilitate regeneration project delivery.  
 
1.2 To note that a further report will be presented to Cabinet seeking approval of a proposed 

governance structure which will facilitate the project delivery. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The advent of the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) and pending agreement of a joint business 

plan by the 10 CCR authorities presents significant opportunities for Caerphilly County 
Borough Council to lever in funding for regeneration projects. 

 
2.2  In addition to the CCR opportunities there are a number of other Welsh Government 

regeneration initiatives such as the Valleys task force and Targeted Regeneration Investment 
Fund which may lead to significant capital funds being made available for local projects in the 
future. 

  
2.3  In order to take advantage of funding that may become available it is necessary to develop a 

number of “shelf ready” projects which have been effectively planned and developed to a 
stage where they are ready to progress to an implementation stage. 

 
2.4  At present the Authority does not have projects in a “Shelf Ready” position where delivery 

could be progressed. In this regard the key issues that need to be addressed include:-  
 

 The need for clear strategic direction on projects and identification of key projects to be 
progressed. 

 A development fund to develop, design and cost schemes so that they are ready for 
submission and delivery. 

 The lack of capacity in internal teams (Procurement, legal, property, engineering 
consultancy) that would be required to assist in project development.  

 The need for clear project management arrangements to be put in place.   
 
2.5 This report therefore recommends the earmarking of a development fund to enable projects to 

be developed. 
 
 

Page 151

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales.  It requires public bodies to think 
more about the long term, working with people and communities, looking to prevent problems 
and take a more joined up approach.  This will create a Wales that we all want to live in, now  
and in the future.  The Act puts in place seven wellbeing goals and the contents of this report 
which will hopefully contribute to significant levels of community regeneration and 
infrastructure development potentially links into all seven wellbeing goals. 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 In order for the Authority to develop “Shelf Ready” projects budgetary provision is required to 

provide officers with the ability to effectively plan projects and develop, design and cost 
schemes so that they are ready for funding/Planning submission and procurement where 
relevant. 

 
4.2 This could include site investigations, surveys, design, economic impact assessments, 

estimating etc. 
 
4.3 In this regard it is suggested that an initial development fund of £300,000 is earmarked from 

the Communities Directorate Reserve to enable officers to progress key strategic projects to a 
“Shelf Ready” stage.  

 
4.4 The governance structure required in order to facilitate the regeneration project delivery is 

currently under consideration and a further report will be presented to Cabinet seeking 
approval. 

 
 
5. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This report potentially contributes to all seven wellbeing goals as set out in the Links to 

Strategy section above.  These include:- 
 

 A globally responsible Wales 

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A healthier Wales 

 A more equal Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no potential equalities implications associated with this report for any specific 

groups or individuals therefore a full Equalities Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 As stated above, a project development fund of £300,000 will allow a project team of officers 

to develop projects ready for implementation once funding becomes available. 
 
7.2 Designation of a £300,000 project development budget can be accommodated from the 

Communities Directorate reserve and will not therefore require any revenue budget growth for 
2018/19. 

 

Page 152



 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications associated with this report. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 This report reflects the views of the listed Consultees. 
 
 
10 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 It is recommended that Cabinet agrees the earmarking of an initial project development fund 

of £300,000 from the Communities Directorate reserve. 
 
10.2 To note that a further report will be presented to Cabinet seeking approval of the governance 

arrangements to facilitate the project delivery.  
 
 
11. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To enable the Authority to develop a suitable suite of regeneration projects that are ready for 

implementation in order that any externally sourced funds can be efficiently and effectively 
utilised. 

 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER 
 
12.1 Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
Author: Mark. S. Williams Corporate Director (Communities) 

WILLIMS@CAERPHILLY.GOV.UK 
Consultees: Steve Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance  
 Dave Whetter, Interim Head of Regeneration  
 Tim Stephens, Interim Head of Planning 
 Councillor Sean Morgan, Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability & Wellbeing of Future Generations 
 Councillor Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Environment & Public Protection 
 

Page 153



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 154


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar yr 28ain Chwefror 2018.
	4 Cynllun Corfforaethol yn cynnwys Amcanion Lles 2018 - 2023.
	Atodiad 1

	5 Strategaeth Gwent ar gyfer Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Trais Rhywiol a Cham-drin Domestig.
	Atodiad 1
	Draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy
	HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE & WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –
	20th march 2018
	SUBJECT: draft gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy
	REPORT BY: corPorate director, social services
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LINKS TO STRATEGY
	4. THE REPORt
	5. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
	7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10. RECOMMENDATIONS
	11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	12. STATUTORY POWER

	Draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy App A
	Draft Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy App B


	6 Prosiectau Adfywio yn y Dyfodol - Defnydd y Gronfa Datblygu o Adnoddau'r Gyfarwyddiaeth.

